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IMPORTANT NOTICE

This Shelf Prospectus is made in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SEC Rules and
Regulations, the listing and quotation requirements of the FMDQ and the NSE, for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Issuer, the Bank and the Debt Securities which, according to
the particular nature of the Issuer and the Bank, is necessary to enable investors make an informed
assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profit and losses and prospects of the
Issuer and the Bank.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not
contained in or not consistent with this Shelf Prospectus or any other information supplied in
connection with the Programme and, if given or made, such information must not be relied upon
as having been authorised by either the Issuer or the Bank, or any of the parties to the Programme.

Neither this Shelf Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme
or the Debt Securities: (a) is infended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation; or (b)
should be considered as a recommendation by either the Issuer or the Bank or any of the Parties
fo the Programme that any recipient of this Shelf Prospectus or any other information supplied in
connection with the Programme should purchase any Bonds. Each Investor contemplating
purchasing any bonds should make its own independent investigation of the financial condition
and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Issuer or the Bank.

This Shelf Prospectus has been issued in compliance with part IX of the Act, the rules and
regulations of the commission and listing requirements of the Nigerian Stock Exchange (“The NSE”)
and FMDQ Securities Exchange PLC (“FMDQ") and contains particulars which are in compliance
with the requirements of the commission for the purpose of giving information with regards fo the
N50,000,000,000 Bond Issuance Programme.



INFORMATION RELATING TO THIS SHELF PROSPECTUS

1. Presentation of Information

The information set forth herein has been obtained from official sources that are believed to be
reliable, but is not guaranteed to be accurate, reliable or complete. The information and
expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither delivery of this
Shelf Prospectus nor any issue made hereunder or any future use of this Shelf Prospectus shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of
the Issuer and Bank since the date hereof.

All financial and other information presented or incorporated by reference in this Shelf Prospectus
have been provided by the Issuer and the Bank from their records, except forinformation expressly
afttributed to other sources. The presentation of certain information, including tables of receipts
and other revenues, is infended fo show recent historic financial information and is not infended
to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or other affairs of the Issuer and the
Bank. No representation is made that past experience, as it might be shown by such financial and
other information, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future.

A wide variety of other information concerning the Bank, including financial information, are
available from the Bank’s website — www.novambl.com - and other authorised publicly available
Company publications. Any such information that is inconsistent with the information set forth in
this Shelf Prospectus should be disregarded. No such information is a part of or incorporated info
this Shelf Prospectus.

2. Financial Information

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information regarding the Bank indicated in this Shelf
Prospectus has been derived from the Reporting Accountants’ Report on the Bank's audited
financial statements for the years ended December 31st 2017 — December 31st 2018. The Bank's
audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with (a) International Financial
Reporting Standards; (b) the requirements of the CAMA, (c) the Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria Act 2011, and are presented in Naira, the reporting currency of the Bank.

3. Rounding

Certain numerical figures included in this Shelf Prospectus have been subject to rounding
adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different tables may
vary slightly and figures shown in totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of
the figures which precede them.

4. Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements included herein and in any Pricing Supplement may constitute forward-looking
statements that involve a number of risks and uncertaintfies because they relate to events and
depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Such forward-looking
statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminologies such as “believes”,
“expects”, “may”, "are expected to”, “intends”, "will", “will confinue”, “should”, “would be",
“seeks”, “approximately” or “anticipates” or similar expressions or the negative thereof or other
variations thereof or comparable terminologies. These forward-looking statements include all
matters that are not historical facts and include statements regarding the Bank's and lIssuer’s
intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, amongst other things, its operating results,
financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and the industry in which it operates.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THIS SHELF PROSPECTUS

Prospective investors should be aware that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
future performance and that the Issuer’'s and Bank's actual results of operations, financial
condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which they operate may differ
materially from those made in or suggested by the forward-looking statements contained in this
Shelf Prospectus. In addition, even if the Bank's and Issuer’s result of operations, financial condition
and liguidity and the development of the industry in which they operate are consistent with the
forward-looking statements contained in this Shelf Prospectus, those results or developments may
not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Issuer's and Bank's
expectations are contained in cautionary statements in this Shelf Prospectus and include, among
other things, the following: overall political, economic and business conditions in Nigeria;
e overall political, economic and business conditions in Nigeria;
e changesin government regulations;
¢ changesin tax requirements, including tax rate changes, new tax laws and revised tax law
interpretations;
e economic and political conditions in international markets, including governmental
changes;
¢ the demand for the Bank's products and services;
o competitive factors in the industries in which the Bank and its customers compete;
e interest rate fluctuations and other capital market conditions;
e exchange rate fluctuations; and
e the fiming, impact and other uncertainties of future actions.

The sections of this Shelf Prospectus entitled “Risk Factors”, “Description of Nova Merchant Bank
Limited” and “Statutory and General Information” contain a more detailed discussion of the
factors that could affect the Bank's and Issuer’s future performance and the industry in which it
operates. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events
described in this Shelf Prospectus may not occur.

The Bank and the Issuer do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent
written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Issuer or the Bank or fo persons
acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements referred
to above and contained elsewhere in this Shelf Prospectus.

This Shelf Prospectus has been prepared by the Issuer, the Bank and Issuing Houses in connection
with the &50,000,000,000 Bond Issuance Programme of the Issuer (pursuant to which the Issuer will
issue Debt Securities) for the purpose of giving information to the prospective investors in respect
of the Debt Securities described herein. The SEC has cleared this Prospectus and registered the
securities listed herein.

This Prospectus contains certain statements, estimates and projections with respect to the future
performance of the Issuer. These statements, estimates and projections reflect various assumptions
by the Issuer concerning its anticipated future performance, which have been included solely for
illustrative purposes. These statements, estimates and projections should not however, be relied
upon as a representation, warranty or undertaking, expressed or implied, as to the future financial
condition of the lIssuer and actual occurrences may vary materially from the projected
developments contained herein and/or the assumptions on which such statements, estimates
and projections were based.



INFORMATION RELATING TO THIS SHELF PROSPECTUS

The receipt of this Shelf Prospectus or any information contained in it or supplied with it or
subsequently communicated to any person does not constfitute investment advice from the
Issuing Houses to any prospective investor. Each prospective investor should make their own
independent assessment of the merits or otherwise of subscribing to the securities offered herein
and should seek their own professional advice in connection with any prospective investment by
them.

The members of the Bank's Board and Issuer’'s Board individually and collectively accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained herein and have taken reasonable
care to ensure that the material facts contained herein are tfrue and accurate in all material
respects and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, there are no material facts, the omission of which, would make any material statement
herein misleading or untrue. Additional information may be obtained through the offices of the
Issuing Houses as listed on page 14 of this Shelf Prospectus on any Business Day during the period
of the respective opening and closing dates of the issuance of Debt Securities under the Bond
Issuance Programme, provided the Issuing Houses possess such information or can acquire it
without unreasonable effort or expense.

Nothing in this Shelf Prospectus should be construed to mean that the Issuing Houses are bound
to provide any information coming to their attention to any Bondholder or potential investors in
the Bonds. Also, the Issuing Houses are not bound to advise any investor or potential investors on
the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of the arrangement contemplated
therein.



ISSUE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Following the publication of this Shelf Prospectus, a Pricing Supplement would be prepared by the
Issuer, the Sponsor and Issuing Houses for the approval of the SEC in accordance with Rule 279 of
the SEC Rules and Regulations.

Statements contained in any such Pricing Supplement, shall to the extent applicable (whether
expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede statements contained
in this Shelf Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so modified
or superseded, constitute a part of this Shelf Prospectus.

The Bank and Issuer will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy
relating to information included in this Shelf Prospectus, which is capable of affecting the
assessment of the Notes, prepare a Supplementary Prospectus/Pricing Supplement to this Shelf
Prospectus or publish a new Shelf Prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent issue of
Bonds.



DECLARATION BY THE SPONSOR




GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the meanings
respectively assigned to them:

“Applicable Pricing
Supplement”/“Pricing
Supplement” or “SP”

"Allotment Date"

“Board” or “Directors”

"Bonds" or “Debt Securities

“Bond Trustees”

“Bondholder” or “Holder”

"Business Day"

“CAMA"

"CB N"
"CITA"

“CITA Order”

“Coupon”

“Coupon Commencement
Date”

"Coupon Payment Date"

The document(s) to be issued pursuant to this Shelf
Prospectus, which shall provide final terms and conditions of
a specific Series or Tranche of Bonds under the Programme

Date on which the Bonds are allotted to Bondholders
board of directors of the Bank

Any instrument of indebtedness issued by the Issuer on a
continuing basis in accordance with the ferms of this Shelf
Prospectus and any subsequent Pricing Supplement with the
aggregate Principal Amount of &50,000,000,000 which the
Issuer obligates itself to pay to a Bondholder the aggregate
Principal Amount together with any Coupons (if any) on the
specified dates after the Issue Date

Stanbic IBTC Trustees Limited

Any registered owner or beneficial owner of Bond units or
other Debt Securities to be issued under the Programme

Any day except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays
declared by the Federal Government of Nigeria on which
banks are open for business in Nigeria

Companies and Allied Matters Act, Chapter C20, LFN, 2004
as may be amended or replaced from time o time

Central Bank of Nigeria

Companies Income Tax Act Cap. C21 LFN, 2004 (as
amended by the Companies Income Tax (Amendment Act
No. 11 of 2007)

The Companies Income Tax (Exemption of Bonds and Short-
Term Government Securifies) Order 2011 made pursuant to
the CITA.

The interest paid on the Bond periodically, expressed as a
percentage of the face value

The Issue Date for any partficular Series of Bonds, or such
other date as may be specified in the Applicable Pricing
Supplement, from which interest on the Bonds begins o
accrue to the Bondholder or Holder

The date on which a coupon falls due for payment to the
Bondholders, as specified in the Applicable Pricing
Supplement



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

“Coupon Period”

"Coupon Rate"

"Clearing System"

“Debt Securities”

"Exchange Rate"

“Face Value”

“Federal Government” or
"FGN" or “the Government”

“Fixed Rate Bonds”

“Floating Rate Bonds”

b FMDQ"
"High Net Worth Individual”

“IFRS”
"ISA or “the Act™

"Issuer"

"Issue Date"

"Issuing Houses"
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The period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date
(or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding)
the next Interest Payment Date

Interest rate payable to Bondholders or Holders as stated in
the Applicable Pricing Supplement

Central Securities Clearing Systems Plc, the operator of the
securities depositary, or any other clearing house appointed
by the Issuer for subsequent series

Any securities, which include registered bonds, promissory
notes, certificates, debentures and other obligations
authorized to be issued under the Programme by the Issuer

The applicable NGN/USD currency exchange rate which
shall be the applicable CBN clearing rate at the allotment
date

The par value of a Bond

Federal Government of Nigeria

A Bond in respect of which the rate of interest is to be
calculated and paid on a fixed rate basis and will not
change during the life of the Bond

A Bond which pays interest in accordance with a variable
benchmark rate as prescribed in the Applicable Pricing
Supplement

FMDQ Securities Exchange Plc

An individual whose aggregate net worth of investment
assets (excluding personal homes, automobiles and
furniture) exceeds N100 million, in addition to possession of
evident capacity, expertise and sophistication to undertake
high risk investment activities as defined by the June 2017
amendment fo the Rule 321 of the SEC Consolidated Rules
and Regulations, 2013

International Financial Reporting Standards

Investments & Securities Act, No 29, 2007 as may be
amended or replaced from time to fime

NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC

In respect of any particular Series or Tranche, the date on
which the relevant series or franche of the Bonds are issued,
as specified in the Applicable Pricing Supplement

The Lead Issuing House and the Joint Issuing Houses



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

"Joint Issuing Houses"

“Lead Issuing House”

IILFNII

“Master Notes Subscription

Agreement”

"Maturity Date"

lquirall, IINGNII or " Nll
“NBS"
“Nigeria”

“Notes”

“NSE” or “the Exchange”

“OTC"

“PFAs”

“PITA"

“Professional Parties”

“Programme”

"Programme Trust Deed"
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Stanbic IBTC Capital Limited

Union Capital Markets Limited, and any other issuing house
appointed from time to time by the Issuer either generally in
respect of the Programme or in relation to a parficular Series

United Capital Plc, or any other Issuing House appointed
from time to fime by the Issuer either generally in respect of
the Programme or in relation to a particular Series to act as
the lead issuing house solely

Laws of the Federation of Nigeria

The master notes subscription agreement entered into
between the Sponsor and the Issuer pursuant fo which the
Sponsor will issue the Notes to the Issuer

The date as specified in each Applicable Pricing
Supplement on which the principal amount is due for
redemption

The Nigerian Naira

National Bureau of Statfistics

The Federal Republic of Nigeria

Debt instruments issued by the Sponsor to the Issuer
The Nigerian Stock Exchange

Over the Counter

Pension Fund Administrators

The Personal Income Tax Act, Cap P8, LFN 2004 (as
amended by the Personal Income Tax (Amendment Act)
2011)

Professionals engaged by the Issuer to facilitate the
registration and issuance of the Debt Securities

The &50,000,000,000 Bond Issuance Programme described in
this Shelf Prospectus and any other Supplement pursuant to
which the lIssuer may issue several separate Series or
Tranches of Debt Securities from fime to time with varying
maturities, terms and conditions variable rates of interests;
provided however that the aggregate value does not
exceed H50,000,000,000

The deed entered into by the Issuer, the Sponsor and the
Trustee dated 17t July 2020 which empowers the Trustees to
hold, administer and manage the Debt Service Reserve
Account (where applicable) in respect of each series of



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

“Principal Amount”

"Qualified Institutional Investor"

"Rating Agencies"

"Redemption Amount"

“Register”

"Registrar"
"SEC Rules and Regulations"” or

“SEC Rules”

“SEC” or the “Commission”

"Series"

“Share Trustee”

“Shelf Prospectus”

“Sponsor or the “Bank”

"Supplemental Trust Deed" or
"Series Trust Deed"
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Bonds issued pursuant to the Programme, and appoints the
Trustees to act on behalf of Bondholders

The nominal amount of each Debt Security, as specified in
the Applicable Pricing Supplement

A purchaser of securities that is financially sophisticated,
which includes Banks, Fund Managers, PFAs, Insurance
Companies, Investment/Unit Trusts, Multilateral and Bilateral
Institutions, Registered and/or Verifiable Private Equity Funds,
Registered and/or verifiable Hedge Funds, Market Makers,
Staff Schemes, Trustees/Custodians, Stock Broking Firms and
any other category as the Commission may determine as
stipulated by Rule 321 of the SEC Rules and Regulations
Agusto and Co Limited or any other SEC-registered rating
agency appointed by the Issuer

The aggregate Principal Amount outstanding in respect of
the Bonds on the Maturity Date

The record maintained by the Registrar detailing the
particulars of Bondholders and respective Bonds held by
each Bondholder

Greenwich Registrars and Data Solutions Limited and/or, if
applicable, any successor Registrar

The Rules and Regulations of the SEC 2013 (or as amended
from time to fime), issued by the SEC pursuant fo the ISA

The Nigerian Securities and Exchange Commission

A Tranche of Bonds fogether with any further Tranche or
Tranches of Bonds which are (ij expressed to be
consolidated and form a single series and (ii) are identical in
all respects except for their respective Issue Dates, and/or
Issue Prices

Leadway Capital & Trust Limited

The document issued in accordance with the Rules and
Regulations of the Commission, which details the aggregate
size and broad terms and conditions of the Programme
Nova Merchant Bank Limited

A deed supplementing or modifying the provisions of the
Programme Trust Deed entered intfo by the lIssuer, the
Sponsor and the Trustees and empowering the Trustees in
relation to a particular Series or Tranche of Debt Securities



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

“Terms and Conditions”

“The Constitution”

"Tranche"

“Validity period”

“VAT Act”

“VAT Exemption Order”

“VAT Order”
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The terms and conditions of the Bonds as set out in this Shelf
Prospectus

The Constitution of the Federal Republic of Nigeria 1999 (as
amended)

In relation to any particular Series, all Debt Securities which
are identical in all respects (including as to listing)

A period not exceeding three (3) years (or such extended
period as approved by the Commission) from the date of
issue of this Shelf Prospectus unless otherwise renewed by the
Commission

The Value Added Tax Act, Cap V1, LFN 2004 (as amended
by the Value Added Tax (Amendment) Act No 12 of 2007)

The Value Added Tax (Exemption of Commissions on Stock
Exchange Transactions) Order, 2014 made pursuant to the
VAT Act

The Value Added Tax (Exemption of Proceeds of the Disposal
of Government and Corporate Securities) Order, 2011 made
pursuant to the VAT Act



INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

This Shelf Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the Sponsor’s Audited
Annual Report for the eight month period ended 31 December 2017 gnd for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, comprising of the audited annual financial statements of the Sponsor
(and the notes thereto) and any quarterly or interim financial statements of the Sponsor for the life
of the Programme and prepared in compliance with the IFRS issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board prescribed by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (“FRCoN”)
(which include standards and interpretations approved by the FRCoN), together with its
pronouncements thereon from fime to fime on a consistent basis.

The Sponsor will, in the event of any material change in its financial position, which is not reflected
in this Shelf Prospectus, prepare an amendment or supplement to this Shelf Prospectus. Also, the
Sponsor’s information given in this Shelf Prospectus and the terms and conditions of additional
Debt Securities to be issued under the Programme may be updated in a Pricing Supplement
pursuant to the SEC Rules and Regulation. Any such amendment or supplement will be
incorporated by reference to this Shelf Prospectus and form an integral part hereof. Any statement
contained in a document that is incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed o be
modified or superseded such earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise).
Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or
superseded, to constitute a part of this Shelf Prospectus.

The Issuer will provide at no cost to each prospective investor upon request, a copy of any
document deemed to be incorporated herein by reference, unless such documents have been
modified or superseded. Requests for such documents shall be directed to the Issuer at its
registered office as set out in this Shelf Prospectus or the Issuing Houses at the address stated
below:

United Capital Plc Stanbic IBTC Capital Limited Union Capital Markets Limited
3rd & 4th Floor I.B.T.C Place 7 Fatai Durosinmi-Etiti Cres
Afriland Towers Walter Carrington Crescent Victoria Island

97/105 Broad Street, Lagos Victoria Island Lagos
+234 1 280 8471 Lagos +234 1 280 8471

+234 1 422 8855
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THE PROGRAMME

This Shelf Prospectusis beingissued in compliance with the provisions of the ISA, the SEC Rules and Regulations
and the listing and quotation requirements of FMDQ and the NSE, and contains particulars in compliance
with the requirements of the SEC, the NSE, and FMDQ for the purpose of giving information to the public with
regards fo the #50,000,000,000 Bond Issuance Programme being undertaken by the Issuer. An application
will be made to the Board Listings and Quotations Committee of the FMDQ Securities Exchange Plc and/or
the NSE for admission fo its platform of each Series of the Bonds to be issued under the Programme.

Each of the Directors of the Issuer and Bank represent that all reasonable care have been taken to ensure
that the information concerning the Bank and Issuer contained in this Shelf Prospectus is tfrue and accurate
in all material respects as at the date of this Shelf Prospectus and that as of the date hereof, there are no
other material facts, in relation to the Issuer or the Bank, the omission of which would make misleading any
statement herein, whether in fact or opinion.

LEAD ISSUING HOUSE

A United Capital

RC: 444999
JOINT ISSUING HOUSES

RC: 1031358 RC: 370890

On behalf of

NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC

RC: 1642580
are authorized to issue this Shelf Prospectus in respect of

the N50,000,000,000 Bond Issuance Programme

A copy of the Shelf Prospectus has been delivered to the SEC for registration. The registration of this Shelf Prospectus
and any subsequent Pricing Supplement shall not be taken to indicate that the SEC endorses or recommends the
Bonds described herein or assumes responsibility for the correctness of any statements made or opinions or reports
expressed herein.

This Shelf Prospectus must be read in conjunction with any Pricing Supplement to be issued by the Issuer from fime
to time within its Validity Period. No Bonds will be issued on the basis of this Shelf Prospectus read together with any
Pricing Supplement later than three (3) years after the issue date indicated on the cover of this Shelf Prospectus.

This Shelf Prospectus contains:
1. onpages 27-40, the Terms & Conditions of the Programme;
2. onpage 67, an exiract of the Rating Report prepared by Agusto & Co Limited
3. on page 68, the Reporting Accountant’s Report on the Bank’s historical financial information, prepared
by Ernst & Young; and
4. onpage 51, details of claims and litigation prepared by G. Elias & Co.

This Shelf Prospectus and the documents referred to herein can be obtained free of charge from the offices of the
Commission, the Issuer and the Issuing Houses.
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TRANSACTION OVERVIEW

Description of Transaction Structure

The Issuer, NOVAMBL Investments SPV Plc, is a special purpose vehicle set up as a business finance
company toraise finances for the purposes as the directors may approve of, which for the purpose
of the Transaction is specifically to finance the Sponsor’'s funding requirements, by issuing Debt
Securities to the general public. Proceeds of the Bonds will be deployed towards financing the
purchase of the Notes which are to be issued by the Bank in accordance with the terms of the
Master Notes Purchase Agreement (the "MNSA") between the Issuer, the Sponsor and the Trustees
dated on or around the date of this Shelf Prospectus.

Utilization of the Issue Proceeds

Net proceeds of the Bonds under the Programme will be used to subscribe to Notes issued by the
Sponsor pursuant to the MNSA, while the Sponsor will apply the net proceeds towards risk asset
generation.

Servicing of the Bonds

The semi-annual payment of Coupons and the scheduled repayment of Principal Amount, in
accordance with the amortization schedule in the Applicable Pricing Supplement, will be serviced
with payments received from the Sponsor on the Noftes issued in accordance with the terms of
the MNSA.

Undertaking
The Debt Securities are backed by an undertaking issued by the Sponsor in favour of the Issuer
and the Trustee on behalf of Bondholders supporting all the obligations of the Issuer under the

Programme.
Issue proceeds
> Issue proceeds
»

»

a

<« NOVA Bank Limited

Issues debt

Bondholders NOVAMBL note
e Investments

2 SPVissues a A
bond G

Interest & Principal payment to
Administers payment a NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC

A

obligations

Interest & Principal payment
to Bondholders

A 4

Trustees
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TRANSACTION OVERVIEW

Principal Transaction Documents

The under listed is a summary of the key legal agreements required for the above-referenced
structure and is qualified in its entfirety by reference to the detailed provisions of this Shelf
Prospectus, the Programme Trust Deed and supplemental documents to be issued in relation to a
particular Series.

1. Master Notes Subscription Agreement (“MNSA”): The MNSA is an agreement between the
Issuer, the Sponsor and the Joint Trustees by which the Issuer (called the “Subscriber” in this
context) agrees to subscribe to Notes issued by the Sponsor using proceeds from the sale
of Debt Securities as stipulated under this Shelf Prospectus.

2. Deed of Covenant: This is an undertaking by the Sponsor in favour of the Issuer and the
Trustee for the seftlement of payment obligations and compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations including performance of all necessary acts for the legal and efficient
running of the Issuer as a going concern during the entire term of the Programme.

3. Programme Trust Deed: This is the agreement between the Issuer, the Sponsor and the
Trustee which sets out the terms, conditions and covenants governing the issuance of Debt
Securities and the appointment of Trustee under the Programme
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary does not purport to be complete and is taken from and qualified in its
entirety by the remainder of this Shelf Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of
any particular Series of Bonds, the applicable Pricing Supplement. Words and expressions defined
in “Form of the Bonds” and “Terms and Conditions of the Bonds"” shall have the same meaning in

this summary:

Issuer
Sponsor

Programme Size
Lead Issuing House

Joint Issuing Houses

Methods of Issue

Use of Proceeds

Interest Rates

Currency

Ratings

Status of the Bonds

Events of Default
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NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC
Nova Merchant Bank Limited

H50 billion
United Capital Plc

Stanbic IBTC Capital Limited

Union Capital Markets Limited

The Bonds under this Programme may be issued by way of a
public offer, private placement, book build process, or any
other method permitted by the SEC and as specified in the
Applicable Pricing Supplement

The proceeds of the Bond Issuance Programme will be
utilized as stated in the Applicable Pricing Supplement

The Bonds may be interest-bearing or non-interest bearing.
Interest (if any) may be at a fixed rate or vary as indicated
in the Applicable Pricing Supplement and may vary during
the lifetime of the relevant Series.

Bonds will be denominated in Nigerian Naira or such
currency or currency unifs as may be agreed between the
Issuer, the Sponsor and the Issuing Houses, subject tfo
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory
requirements of the Commission

The Bonds issued under this Programme will be rated by at
least two rating agencies duly registered with the SEC and
such rafing shall be reviewed annually in accordance with
the Rules and Regulations of the Commission

The Bonds are direct and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any
preference among themselves. The payment obligations of
the Issuer under the Bonds and in respect of principal and
any coupon on the Bonds shall at all fimes rank at least
equally with all unsecured obligations of the Issuer, present
and future except for obligations mandatorily preferred by
law applying to companies generally

The events of default under the Bonds are as specified within
the Programme Trust Deed and as modified in respect of
any Series by the applicable Supplemental Trust Deed. The
Trustees shall notify the Commission of such event(s) of
default as required by the SEC Rules and Regulation
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Form of the Bonds

Issuance in Series and
Tranches

Maturity Date

Issue Price

Closing Date

Opening Date

Coupon

Frequency

Denominations

Early Redemption
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The Bonds shall be issued in registered form and shall be
transferable. The issue and ownership of the Bonds will be
effected and evidenced by the Particulars of the Bond
being entered in the register by the Registrar and the Bonds
being electronically registered in the CSCS account of the
Bondholder.

Bonds will be issued in series (each a “Series”). The Bonds of
each Series will all be subject to identical terms, whether as
to currency or maturity or otherwise, or terms which are
identical except that the issue date, the amount of the first
payment of interest and/or the denomination thereof may
be different. Each Series may comprise of one or more
franches issued on different issue dates. A Series may only
be comprised of Bonds in registered form

The Bonds may be issued with such maturity periods as may
be agreed between the Issuer and the Issuing Houses and
as indicated in the Applicable Pricing Supplement, subject
fo such minimum or maximum maturity period as may be
allowed or required from time to time by the Issuer or any
laws or regulations applicable to the Issuer or the relevant
specified currency

Bonds may be issued at par or at a discount to par. The Issue
Price of a specific Series shall be defined in the Applicable
Pricing Supplement

The Closing Date of a specific Series shall be stated in the
Applicable Pricing Supplement

The Opening Date of a specific Series shall be stated in the
Applicable Pricing Supplement

The Debt Securities may be interest-bearing or non-interest
bearing. The Coupon if any, payable on the Bonds shall be
determined by the Issuer, the Sponsor and the Issuing Houses
and stated accordingly in the Applicable Pricing
Supplement

The frequency of payment of interest and any other monies
due on the Debt Securities shall be specified in the Pricing
Supplement for the Bond being issued

Bonds will be issued in such denominations as may be
agreed between the Issuer and the Issuing Houses and as
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory
requirements, and in accordance with usual market
practice

Early redemption will be permitted only to the extent
specified in the Applicable Pricing Supplement and
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Principal Redemption

Redemption

Negative Pledge

Business Day Convention

Listing

Supplementary Trust Deed and then only subject to any
applicable legal or regulatory limitations

Bonds will be redeemed on the dates specified in the
Applicable Pricing Supplement

Bonds may be redeemable at par or at such other
redemption amount as may be specified in the Applicable
Pricing Supplement

For as long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Issuer
and Sponsor hereby covenants that they shall not create
any charge, mortgage, lien, pledge or other security interest
upon any of its assets or any other party or any other
indebtedness guaranteed by it without the prior written
consent of the Trustee. Where the Trustee so consents, the
Issuer and Sponsor shall at the same time as the creation of
such indebtedness grant to the Trustee (for the benefit of the
Bondholders) the same or equivalent security as is granted
inrelatfion to the indebtedness. Any new charge, mortgage,
lease, lien, pledge etc. on the Issuer shall be subject to the
SEC’s approval

Where the day on which a payment is due to be made is
not a Business Day, that payment shall be effected on the
next succeeding Business Day unless that succeeding
Business Day falls in a different month in which case,
payment shall be made on the immediate preceding
Business Day

Each Series of Bonds will be listed on the FMDQ and/or the
NSE and/or admitted to listing, frading and/or quotation by
any other listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation
system as may be agreed between the Issuer and the Issuing
Houses

Taxation

Income and interest earned from the Bonds by individual
Bondholders will be exempted from tax imposed under the
PITA by virtue of item 31 of the Third Schedule to the PITA.
This exemption currently has no limitation as to period.

The income and interest earned from the Bonds by
corporate Bondholders will be exempted from tax imposed
under the CITA by virtue of the CITA Order, effective from
2nd January 2012. This exemption is for a period of 10 years
from the commencement date of the CITA Order unless
otherwise extended.

The proceeds from the disposal of the Bonds will be
exempted from VAT imposed under the VAT Act by virtue of
the VAT Order, effective from 2nd January 2012. This
exemption is for a period of 10 vyears from the
commencement date of the VAT Order unless otherwise
extended. In any case, upon the expiry of the VAT Order,
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VAT should not be charged on the disposal of the Bonds. This
is because the VAT Act does not currently impose VAT on
the proceeds readlised from a disposal of intangible
properties such as securities. However, at that time, the
proceeds of the disposal of the Bonds could be held by the
FIRS to be subject to VAT.

In view of the above, the Issuer will not be required by law
to withhold tax on Coupon payments to the Bondholders.
Therefore, all amounts payable under the Bonds will be paid
without deduction or withholding for or on account of any
income tax. In relation to Bonds with a maturity date later
than 2nd January 2022 which are held by corporate
Bondholders, the Issuer shall be required by law, to withhold
tax on Coupon payments to such corporate Bondholders.
Withholding tax implications in respect of the Coupon
payments on the Bonds to Holders who are corporate
entities for the period after 2nd January 2022 will be stated
in the Applicable Pricing Supplement. The exemption order
for Coupon payment to individual Bondholders is indefinite
pursuant to the provisions of the PITA.

Terms and Conditions:

The terms and condifions applicable to each Series (the
“Terms and Conditions”) will be agreed between the Issuer,
the Sponsor and the Issuing Houses at or prior to the time of
issuance of such Tranche or Series and will be specified in
the Applicable Pricing Supplement. The Terms and
Conditions applicable to each Tranche or Series will
therefore be those set out on pages 27 - 40 hereof as
supplemented, modified or replaced by the Applicable
Pricing Supplement

Other Conditions

Such other Terms and Conditions as may be incorporated
by reference to, modified by, or supplemented by
applicable Supplementary Shelf Prospectus for the Issue

Statement of Indebtedness

Save as disclosed, the Bank has no outstanding loans,
charges or other similar indebtedness

Governing Law

The Bonds and all related contractual documentation will
be governed by, and consfrued in accordance with
Nigerian law

Transaction Documents
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Shelf Prospectus

Pricing Supplement

Programme Trust Deed

Series Trust Deed

Share Trust Deed

Master Notes Subscription Agreement
Vending Agreement

Deed of Covenant

Board Resolution authorising the Programme
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= Reporting Accountants Report
= Solicitors’ Opinion on Claims and Litigation & Material

Contracts
= Rating Reports
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PROGRAMME

1.

1.1
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Form, Denomination, Title and Series

Form of Bonds: Unless otherwise specified in any Final Terms, the Bonds shall be issued
in registered form. The Bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the Sponsor.
Bonds issued under the Programme may be Senior Bonds, or Subordinated Bonds, Fixed
Rate Bonds, Floating Rate Bonds, reverse Floating Rate Bonds, Zero Coupon Bonds or a
combination thereof. The Bonds shall be issued in uncertificated (dematerialised or
book entry) form, which shall be registered with a separate securities identfification
code with the CSD.

Issue of the Bonds. Issue of the Bonds will be effected and evidenced by the particulars
of the Bond being entered in the Register of Bondholders of the applicable Series which
the Issuer will procure to be kept by the Registrar, and the Bonds being electronically
registered in the Securities Account of the Bondholder.

Description: The Bonds will be denominated in Naira (but may also be denominated in
such other currency specified in the relevant Final Terms), with provision for Coupon to
be paid (if any) at intervals specified in the Final Terms. Bonds may be issued from time
fo time, in accordance with the Shelf Prospectus and the Final Terms. Unless otherwise
specified in the relevant Final Terms, the Bonds are redeemable at face value on
maturity.

Denominations: Bonds will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between
the Issuer and the Issuing Houses and as specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Title:

(a) Title to Bonds which will be issued in uncerfificated form shall be effected in
accordance with the rules governing fransfer of fitle in securities held by CSD.

(o)  Thelssuer, the Trustee and the Registrar may deem and treat the person listed on
the Register as the absolute owner of the Bonds listed against his name, free from
any equity, set-off or cross-claim on the part of the Issuer against the original or
any intermediate holder of such Bonds. All payments made to the holder shall be
valid and, to the extent of sums so paid, effective to satisfy and discharge the
liability for the moneys payable on the Bonds.

Series: Bonds may be issued in Series. A Series of Bonds may be listed on a Recognised
Stock Exchange, subject to any Applicable Law. The Tranches in each Series will be
subject to identical terms, whether as fo currency or maturity or otherwise, except that
the Issue Date, the amount of the first payment of interest and/or the issue price thereof
may be different. Each Series may comprise one or more Tranches) issued on different
Issue Dates. A Series may only be comprised of Bonds in registered form. The applicable
Series number shall be recorded in the Register. The Register and/or the applicable
Final Terms shall be conclusive as to the series of a Bond.
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2.1

2.2
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Registration and Transfer of Bonds

Register: A Register of the Bonds shall be kept by the Registrar at its office, a copy
thereof shall be made available for inspection at the registered office of the Issuer, and
there shall be entered in such Register:

(a) The names and addresses of the holders for the time being of the Bonds;

(b) The amount of the units of Bonds held by every registered holder;

(c) The Securities Account number of the Bondholder;

(d) The date at which the names of every registered holder is entered in respect of

the Bond standing in his name;
(e) All fransfers and redemption of the Bonds; and
(f) Such other information considered necessary by the Registrar.

The enftries in the Register shallin the absence of manifest error, be conclusive evidence
of the facts, matters and transactions contained therein and the Trustees and the
Registrar may call for and, except in the case of manifest error, shall be at liberty to
accept and place full reliance on (without liability), a letter of confirmation issued on
behalf of the CSD or any form of record made by the CSD or such other form of
evidence and/or information and/or certification as the CSD shall, in its absolute
discretion, think fit as sufficient evidence thereof to the effect that any particular time
or throughout any particular period any particular person is or was, shown in the
Register as the holder of a particular nominal amount of Bonds and, if they do so rely,
such letter of confirmation, form of record, evidence, information or certification shall
be conclusive and binding on all concerned.

Transfers:

(a)  Transfer of dematerialised Bonds shall be by way of a book entry in Securities
Accounts held by the transferor and fransferee in the CSD in accordance with
the procedures of the CSD or such alternative clearing system approved by the
Issuer and the Trustee, and registration of the name of the fransferee in the Bonds
Register in respect of the Bonds then held by him. The transferor shall be deemed
to be the holder of the Bonds until the transferee’s name is entered in the Bond
Register in respect thereof.

(o) If the Bonds are listed, the Bonds shall be transferred on the Exchange in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Exchange.

Change of address: Any change of name or address on a part of the Bondholder shall
forthwith be notified to the Registrar and thereupon the Register shall be altered
accordingly. The Trustee and the Bondholders and any person authorised by any of
them shall be entitled at all reasonable times during office hours to inspect the Register
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2
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and to make copies of or take exiracts from the same.

Amount of fransfer: The Bonds are transferable in whole or in part in such denominations
set out in the applicable Final Terms and Series Trust Deed.

Restriction on Transfer: There are no restrictions on the transferability of the Bonds, unless
otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms.

Transmission: Any person becoming entitled to the Bonds in consequence of the death,
bankruptcy, winding-up or dissolution of the holder thereof may, upon producing such
evidence that he has or is entitled to the capacity in respect of which he proposes to
act under this Condition or of his fitle as the Registrar shall require, be regarded as the
holder of such Bonds, or subject to the preceding Conditions as to fransfer may transfer
the same. The Issuer shall be at liberty to retain any amount payable upon any Bonds
which any person is entitled to transfer under the preceding Condition until such person
shall be registered or duly transfer the same as aforesaid.

Record Date: No Bondholder may require the transfer of a Bond to be registered during
a period of fifteen (15) days immediately preceding each Payment Date during which
the Register will be closed (“Record Date”).

Status of the Bonds. The Bonds issued under the Programme are backed by the
Sponsor’s irrevocable undertaking to pay amounts due in respect of the Bonds.
Addifional status of the Bonds shall be set out in the relevant Series Trust Deed. The
status of the Bonds may be Senior Bonds or Subordinated Bonds, as indicated in the
applicable Final Terms.

Status of Senior Bonds: The Senior Bonds shall constfitute direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall at all fimes rank pari
passu and without any preference among themselves other by reason of priority of
date of issue, currency of payment or otherwise. The payment obligations of the Issuer
under the Senior Bonds and in respect of currency of payment, principal and any
Coupon thereon shall at all times rank at least equally with all other senior unsecured
obligations of the lIssuer, present and future, except for obligations mandatorily
preferred by law applying to companies generally or except to the extent that any
such obligations are by their terms expressed to be subordinated in right of payment
amounts and terms of issue as provided in the applicable Final Terms.

Status of Subordinated Bonds: The Subordinated Bonds will rank pari passu without any
preference to one above the other by reason of priority of date of issue, currency of
payment or otherwise with all other subordinated unsecured obligations of the Issuer,
present and future, except to the extent that any such obligations are by their terms
expressed to be subordinated in right of payment to other subordinated unsecured
obligations as may be provided in the applicable Final Terms.

Negative Pledge. So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, no Obligor shall secure any
other Indebtedness represented by bonds, notes or any other publicly issued debt
securities which are, or are capable of being, fraded or listed on any stock exchange
or over-the-counter or similar securities market without securing the Bonds equally and
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rateably with such Indebtedness, unless otherwise stated in a Final Terms applicable fo
a Series.

Redemption, Purchase and Cancellation

Redemption at Maturity: Unless previously redeemed, purchased or cancelled, a Series
of Bonds may be fully redeemed at its Principal Amount on the Maturity Date specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Redemption by Instalments: Bonds may be partially redeemed in instalments on each
Payment Date at the Instalment Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms
whereupon the Principal Amount Outstanding of such Bond shall be reduced by the
Instalment Amount on each Payment Date until fully redeemed at the Maturity Date.

Redemption at the option of the Issuer:

(a) If the Call Option is specified in the relevant Final Terms as being applicable, the
Bonds may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole on any Opftional
Redemption Date (Call) at the relevant Optional Redemption Amount (Call) on
the Issuer's giving not less than twenty (20) nor more than sixty (60) days' notice to
the Bondholders (which notice shall be irrevocable and shall oblige the Issuer to
redeem the Bonds on the relevant Opftional Redemption Date (Call) at the
Optional Redemption Amount (Call) plus accrued interest (if any) to such date).

(b)  Notwithstanding Condition 5.3(a) above, for as long as any Sponsor Notes
certified by the CBN as forming part of the Sponsor’s regulatory capital remains
outstanding, the Issuer shall not exercise any right to redeem the Bonds prior to
the Maturity Date unless:

(i) The Optional Redemption (and thus the repayment under the Sponsor
Notes) will not result in the Sponsor’s capital adequacy ratio falling below
the regulatory minimum ratio prescribed by the CBN, and

(i)  The Sponsor has obtained the consent of the CBN for such early
redemption of the Sponsor Notes.

Redemption for tax reasons: If the Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately before the
giving of the notice referred to below that:

(a) it has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as a result of any
change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of
Nigeria or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having
power to tax (including for the avoidance of doubft, the expiry of the
Companies Income Tax Act 2004 exemption in respect of the Bonds set out in
the Companies Income Tax (Exemption of Bonds and Short Term Government
Securities) Order, 2011 in relation to Bonds with a maturity date later than
January 2, 2022), or any change in the application or official interpretation of
such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on
or after the Issue Date; and
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(b) the requirement cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures
available to it, the Issuer may at its option, having given not less than twenty
(20) nor more than sixty (60) days’ notice to the Bondholders (which notice shall
be irevocable and shall oblige the Issuer to redeem the Bonds on the relevant
Optional Redemption Date at the Optional Redemption Amount plus accrued
interest (if any) to such date, provided that no such notice of redemption shall
be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would
be obliged to pay such additional amounts, were a payment in respect of the
Bonds then due. Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant
to this Condition 5.4, the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee a certificate signed by
two directors of the Issuer stafing that the requirement referred to in
subparagraph (i) above will apply on the next Coupon Payment Date and
cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available fo it,
and the Trustee shall be entitled to accept the certificate as sufficient evidence
of the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out above, in which event it
shall be conclusive and binding on the Bondholders.

Redemption at the option of Bondholders: If the Put Option is specified in the relevant
Final Terms as being applicable, the Issuer shall, at the option of the holder of any Bond
redeem such Bond on the Optional Redemption Date (Put) specified in the relevant
Put Option Noftice at the relevant Optional Redemption Amount (Put) together with
interest (if any) accrued to such date. In order to exercise the option contained in this
Condition 5.5, the holder of a Bond must, not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty
(60) days before the relevant Optional Redemption Date (Put), deposit with the Trustee
or Registrar the CSD statement of stockholding of the Bond; and a duly completed Put
Option Notice in the form obtainable from the Registrar. The Trustee or Registrar with
which a Bond or CSD Statement of stockholding is so deposited shall deliver a duly
completed Put Option Receipt to the depositing Bondholder. No Bond, once
deposited with a duly completed Put Option Notice in accordance with this Condition
5.5 may be withdrawn, provided, however, that if, prior to the relevant Optional
Redemption Date (Put), an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing in
which event such Bondholder, at its option, may elect by nofice to the Issuer to
withdraw the nofice given pursuant to this paragraph and instead to declare such
Bond forthwith due and payable pursuant to Condition 13 (Events of Default) For so
long as any outstanding Bond is held by the Trustee or Registrar in accordance with this
Condition 5.5, the depositor of such Bond and not the Trustee or Registrar shall be
deemed to be the holder of such Bond for all purposes.

Purchase: The Issuer may at any time and from time to fime purchase at any price
Bonds through the market or by tender (available to all Bondholders alike) but not
otherwise. Any Bond so purchased will be cancelled and will not be available for re-
issue.

Cancellation: All the Bonds which are redeemed in accordance with the provisions of
this Programme Trust Deed will be cancelled and may not be reissued or resold. For so
long as the Bond is admitted to listing and/or tfrading on a Recognised Stock Exchange
and the rules of such exchange so require, the Registrar shall prompftly inform the
Recognised Stock Exchange of the cancellation of any Bonds under this Condition 5.7
(Cancellation).
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Interest and Calculation

Accrual of Interest: The Bonds (save for Zero Coupon Bonds) will bear interest from and
including the Interest Commencement Date at the Coupon Rate payable in arrears
on its Principal Amount Outstanding. Each Bond will cease to bear interest from and
including the due date for final redemption unless, upon due presentation, payment
of principal is improperly withheld or refused, in which event interest will continue to
accrue (as well after as before judgment) at the Coupon Rate in the manner provided
in this Condition until the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Note have
been paid and notice to that effect has been given to the Bondholders.

Interest on Fixed Rate Bonds:

(a)

The Fixed Rate Bonds (being those Bonds that specify the interest is payable at
a fixed rate) shall bear interest on the Principal Amount Outstanding at the rate
of interest specified in the applicable Final Terms from (and including) the
Interest Commencement Date specified in the applicable Final Terms to (but
excluding) the Maturity Date. Coupon shall be payable in arrears on the
Coupon Payment Date in each year. The first payment of interest will be made
on the Coupon Payment Date following the Interest Commencement Date
(specified in the applicable Final Terms) and, if the first anniversary of that
Interest Commencement Date is not a Coupon Payment Date, the first
payment of inferest shall be as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If the Maturity Date is not a Coupon Payment Date, interest from (and including)
the preceding Coupon Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date
specified in the applicable Final Terms, as the case may be) to (but excluding)
the Maturity Date will amount to the final broken amount as specified in the
applicable Final Terms. If interest is required to be calculated for a period of
other than a full year, such interest shall be calculated on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed divided by 365 or such other method as described in
the applicable Final Terms.

Interest on Floating Rate Bonds:

(a)

The Floating Rate Bonds (being those Bonds that specify the interest is payable
at a floating rate) shall bear interest on its Principal Amount on such basis as
may be described in the applicable Final Terms by reference to a specified
floating rate benchmark plus a margin, as described in the applicable Final
Terms.

The Floating Rate Bonds shall bear interest on its Principal Amount Outstanding
from (and including) the Coupon Commencement Date (specified in the
applicable Final Terms) at the rate equal to the Coupon Rate payable in arrears
on the Coupon Payment Date(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Coupon payable from fime to time in respect of each of the Floating Rate
Bonds will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final Term:s.
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Index Linked Coupon Bonds: The Coupon Rate applicable to any Series of Bonds may
be specified as being linked to an index and/or formula or to changes in the prices of
securities or commodities or to such other factors as may be prescrioed in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, and the amount of interest payable in respect of such
Bonds for any Interest Period shall be the relevant Coupon specified in or determined
in accordance with, the applicable Final Terms.

Zero Coupon Bonds:

(a)

(o)

Zero Coupon Bonds will be issued at an issue price such that the yield to maturity
is reflected in the difference between the discounted issue price and the Final
Redemption Amount of such Zero Coupon Bond as specified in the Final Terms
and/or Series Trust Deed. Zero Coupon Bonds will not bear Coupon other than in
the case of late payment.

Where any Series of Bonds specified to be Zero Coupon Bonds is repayable prior
to the Maturity Date or other date for redemption and is not paid when due, the
amount due and payable prior to the Maturity Date shall be an amount equal to
the sum of the applicable Redemption Amount and an amount calculated by
applying the Coupon Rate for any overdue principal of such a Bond to the
Principal Amount Outstanding and multiplying the product with the Day Count
Fraction, or such other methods as described in the applicable Final Terms.

Calculation of Interest:

(a)

The Coupon payable in respect of each Bond (save for Zero Coupon Bonds) for
an Interest Period shall be specified in (an amortisation/payment schedule
appended to), or determined in accordance with, the applicable Final Terms.
The amount of interest payable in respect of any Bond for any period shall be
calculated by multiplying the product of the Coupon Rate and the Principal
Amount Outstanding of such Bond by the Day Count Fraction and rounding the
resulfing figure to the nearest sub unit of the Naira.

For the Purposes of Condifion 6.6(a): “Day Count Fraction” means in respect of
the calculation of an amount for any period of time (the "Calculation Period"),
such day count fraction as may be specified in these conditions or the relevant
Final Terms and:

(i) if"Actual/365" or"Actual/Actual’is so specified, means the actual number
of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of the
Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number
of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a leap year
divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portfion of the
Calculation Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(ii) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is so specified, means the actual number of days in
the Calculation Period divided by 365; and
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(iii) if "Actual/360" is so specified, means the actual number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360.

(c) Business Day Convention: If any date referred to in these Conditions that is
specified to be subject to adjustment in accordance with a Business Day
convention would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, then, if the
Business Day convention specified is (a) the Floating Rate Business Day
convention, such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day
unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (i) such
date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and
(i) each subsequent such date shall be the last Business Day of the month in
which such date would have fallen had it not been subject to adjustment, (b)
the following Business Day convention, such date shall be postponed to the next
day that is a Business Day, (c) the modified following Business Day convention,
such date shall be postponed to the next day thatis a Business Day unless it would
thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such date shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day or (d) the preceding
Business Day convention, such date shall be brought forward to the immediately
preceding Business Day.

Payments

Subject to Condifion 11 (Taxation), any principal, interest or other moneys payable on
or in respect of any Bonds may be paid by the Trustee through the Registrar by
electronic payment transfer.

Payments will be made to the person shown in the Register af the close of business on
the Record Date as defined in Condition 2.7. Where the day on which a payment is
due to be made is not a Business Day, that payment shall be effected on or by the next
succeeding Business Day unless that succeeding business day falls in a different month
in which case payment shall be made on or by the immediately preceding Business
Day.

The Registrar shall give fo the Bondholders not less than thirty (30) days’ notice in writing
of the fime and mode for repayment of the Bonds to be redeemed and each such
nofice shall state the amount of the Bond for redemption.

The CSD rules and procedure will apply to exchange of the CSD statement of
stockholding in the case of payment of the relevant Redemption Amount in respect of
dematerialized Bonds. Whenever any part of the Bond is redeemed a proportionate
part of each holding of the Bond shall be repaid to the Bondholders.

The Bonds shall be deemed redeemed and the obligations of the Issuer discharged on
payment to the Trustee, on behalf of the Bondholders, of the Principal Amount
Outstanding on the Bonds to the Bondholders whose names appear on the Bond
Register on the Record Date. Payment by the Issuer to the Trustee shall be a legal
discharge of the liability of the Issuer towards the Bondholders from all obligations in
connection with the Bonds.
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10.

12.

Priority of Payments. All moneys received by the Trustee in respect of the Bonds or
amounts payable under the Programme Trust Deed or Series Trust Deed shall, despite
any appropriation of all or part of them by the Issuer, be held by the Trustee on trust
and shall be applied by the Trustee:

in payment or satisfaction of such reasonable costs, charges, expenses and liabilities
incurred by the Trustee in the performance of its obligations under this
Programme Trust Deed (including remuneration of the Trustee);

in or fowards payment pari passu and rateably of any amounts due but unpaid in
respect of the Bonds of that Series or Tranche;

in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of any amounts due but unpaid in
respect of the Bonds of other Series or Tranche; and

fo pay the balance (if any) to the Issuer and the Sponsor or such other person entitled
toit.

If the Trustee holds any moneys in respect of Bonds which have become void, orin
respect of which claims have become prescribed, the Trustee shall apply them in
accordance with the order of payment set out above.

Receipts for Money Paid. If several persons are entered in the register as joint holders of
any Bond, the receipt of any of such persons for any Coupon or principal or other
money payable on or in respect of such Bond shall be as effective a discharge to the
Issuer as if the person signing such receipt were the sole registered holder of such Bond.

Freedom from Equities. The Bondholder will be recognised by the Issuer as entitled to
the Bonds free from any equities, set-off or cross-claim on the part of the Issuer against
the original or any intermediate holder of the Bonds.

Taxation. All payments of principal, inferest and any other sum due in respect of the
Bonds shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any
Taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatsoever nature imposed,
levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or within the Federal Republic of Nigeria or
any polifical subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax, unless
such withholding or deduction is required by law. In that event, no additional amounts
shall be paid to the Bondholders as a result thereof. Provided however that the Bonds
shall enjoy the benefits of the provisions of the Tax Exemptions, and such extension,
amendments and modifications thereof.

Covenants of the Obligors:

Each Obligor undertakes that:

12.1

35

Financial statements: It shall send to the Trustee, the Rating Agency and the Registrar

copies of:

(a) as soon as the same becomes available, but in any event within 90 days after
the end of each Financial Year, its audited financial statements for that Financial
Year;
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13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

(o) as soon as the same becomes available, but in any event within 45 days after
the end of each financial quarter, its unaudited financial statements for that
financial quarter; and

(c) (if the same are produced) as soon as practicable after their date of publication
copies of every report or other notice, statement or circular, issued to ifs
shareholders and creditors or to holders of securities other than shareholders as
soon as practicable after the issue or publication thereof,

and procure that the same are made available for inspection by Bondholders at the
Specified Offices of the Registrar as soon as practicable thereafter.

Events of Default. If any of the following events (“Events of Default”) occurs and is
conftinuing, the Trustee may at its discretion and shall, upon the request in writing of the
registered holders of at least one-fifth (1/5M) of the nominal amount of the Bonds for
the time being outstanding or upon being so directed by an Exiraordinary Resolution
by notice in writing to the Issuer declare the Bonds to have become immediately
repayable:

Payment Default: The Obligors do not pay any amount in respect of the Bonds of the
relevant Series or any of them within ten (10) Business Days of the due date for payment;
or

Breach of Condition 12: The Obligors do not comply with their obligations under
Condition 12; or

Breach of other Obligations: The Obligors do not comply with their other obligations
under this Programme Trust Deed or in respect of the Bonds of any Series and, if the
non-compliance can be remedied, does not remedy the non-compliance within
fourteen (14) days after written notice requiring such default to be remedied has been
delivered to the Issuer by a Bondholder or by the Trustee on behalf of the Bondholders;
or

Cross Default: Any Indebtedness in excess of N5,000,000,000 (Five Billion Naira) (or its
equivalent in any other currency) of any Obligor in respect of money borrowed or
raised is not paid within 10 Business Days of: (i) its due date; or (i) the end of any
applicable period of grace, whichever is the Iater; or the Indebtedness of any Obligor
of a value exceeding N5,000,000,000 (Five Bilion Naira) (or its equivalent in any other
currency) in aggregate is declared to be or otherwise becomes due and payable prior
to its specified maturity as a result of an event of default (however described) and such
event shall be cerfified in writing by the Trustee to be in its opinion materially prejudicial
fo the interest of the Bondholders.

Enforcement Proceedings: a disfress, atfachment, execution or other legal process is
levied, enforced or sued out on or against any substantial part of the property, assets
or revenues of an Obligor and is not discharged or stayed within sixty (60) days thereof;
or

Insolvency: An Insolvency Event occurs in respect of an Obligor; or
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13.7

13.8

13.9

13.10

15.1

Cessation of Business: Any Obligor ceases to conduct all or substantially all of its
business as is now conducted or changes all or substantially all of the nature of such
business or merges or consolidates with any other entity without the prior written
consent of the Trustee pursuant to Clause 10.30 of the Programme Trust Deed; or

Obligations Unenforceable: any of the Bonds, the Trust Deeds is or becomes wholly or
partly void, voidable or unenforceable; or

Creditors’ process: Any expropriation, attachment, sequestration, distress or execution
affects any asset or assets of an Obligor having an aggregate value of N5,000,000,000
(Five Billion Naira) (or its equivalent in any other currency) and is not discharged within
ninety (90) days or is not legally challenged within the time prescribed by law; or

Material Adverse Change: any event or circumstance occurs which the Trustee
reasonably believes might have a Material Adverse Effect,

PROVIDED that the Bond shall not be declared immediately payable unless: (a) on the
occurrence of any event specified in sub-clauses 13 13.1 13.3 13.4 and 13.5, the Trustee
shall have first served on the Issuer or the Sponsor, a preliminary nofice requiring the
Obligor(s) as the case may be to pay the principal or interest in arrears or to remove,
discharge or pay out to the satisfaction of the Trustee such distress, execution or process
or to perform and observe the covenant or provisions the breach whereof has been
committed or threatened and the Obligors shall have failed or neglected for a period
of five (5) days to comply with such notice; and (b) in the case of any event specified
in sub-clauses 1313.6 and 13.8, the Trustee shall have certified in writing to the Issuer
that the Event of Default is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Bondholders.

Enforcement. Only the Trustee may enforce the provisions of this Programme Trust
Deed. No Bondholder shall be enfitled to proceed directly against the Obligors to
enforce the performance of any of the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed unless
where Bondholders holding seventy-five (75) per cent of the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Bonds have requested the Trustee in writing to exercise the powers
granted and, the Trustee having become bound as aforesaid to take proceedings fails
or refuses to proceed within twenty-one (21) days and such failure is continuing, in
which event any such Bondholder may, on giving an indemnity safisfactory to the
Trustee, in the name of the Trustee (but not otherwise), himself institute proceedings
against the Obligor to enforce the performance of any of the provisions of this
Programme Trust Deed to the same extent that the Trustee would have been entitled
to do so in respect of the Bonds held by him.

Meetings of Bondholders, Modification and Waiver of Breach

Convening Meeting of Bondholders: The rights and duties of the Bondholders in respect
of attendance at meetings of Bondholders are set out in this Programme Trust Deed
(Provisions for Meetings of Bondholders). Decisions taken at Bondholders meetings may
only be exercised by the Trustee in accordance with this Programme Trust Deed or
under these Conditions. For the avoidance of doubt, the Conditions of the Bond can
only be amended with the consent of the parties as that term is defined in clause [e]
of the Programme Trust Deed and the prior approval of the SEC.
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15.2

16.

17.

Modifications and Waiver: The Trustee may agree: (i) upon the giving of prior written
notification by the Issuer to the Rating Agency which has assigned a credit rating to
the relevant Series or any Bonds comprised therein; and (ii) without the consent of the
Bondholders of any Series, to:

(a) any modification of any of the provisions of the Trust Deed or the Conditions
that is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest
error; and

(b) any other modification (except as mentioned in the Trust Deed) and any waiver

or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of any of the Conditions or
any of the provisions of the Trust Deed which, in the opinion of the Trustee, is not
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders of that Series.

Provided that:

(i) the Issuer has notified the Rating Agency and the Rating Agency has
confirmed that such modification will not affect the then current ratings
of the Bonds; and

(i)  prior consent of the SEC has been given; or

(c) any modification to this Programme Trust Deed which is required or necessary
bring this Programme Trust Deed in compliance with Applicable Law.

Any such modification shall be binding on the Bondholders and shall be nofified by
the Issuer to the Bondholders as soon as practicable, but subject to the SEC being
notified, and the Recognised Stock Exchange as soon as practicable thereafter.

Rights Against Predecessors-in-Title. Except as required by law the Issuer will recognise
the registered holder of any Bonds as the absolute owner thereof and shall not be
bound to take notice or see to the execution of any trust whether express, implied or
constructive to which any Bonds maybe subject, and the receipt by such registered
holder, or in the case of joint registered holders the receipt by any of them, of the
interest from fime fto fime accruing due for any other moneys available in respect
thereof shall be a good discharge to the Issuer notwithstanding any notice it may have
whether express or otherwise of the right, title, interest or claim of any other person to
or in such Bonds interest or moneys. Notice of any tfrust express or constructive shall not
be entered on the Register in respect of any Bonds.

Further Issues. Subject to Condition 4 (Negative Pledge), the Issuer may from time to
time create and issue further Bonds either having the same terms and conditions as the
Bonds in all respects (orin all respects except for the first payment of interest on them)
and so that such further issue shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the
outstanding Bonds of any series (including the Bonds) or upon such terms as the Issuer
may determine at the time of their issue. References in these Conditions to the Bonds
include (unless the context requires otherwise) any other Bonds issued pursuant to this
Condifion and forming a single series with the Bonds.
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18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

Notices

Any notice or other document may be given to or served on any Bondholder either
personally or by sending it by post in a prepaid envelope or delivering it addressed to
him at his registered address or (if he desires that notices shall be sent to some other
persons or address) to the person at the address supplied by him to the Issuer for the
giving of notice to him.

In the case of joint registered holders of any Bonds a notice given to the Bondholders
whose name stands first in the Register in respect of such Bonds shall be sufficient notice
to all the joint holders.

Any nofice or other document duly served on or delivered to any Bondholder under
these Conditions shall (notwithstanding that such Bondholder is then dead or bankrupt
or that any other event has occurred and whether or not the Issuer has notice of the
death or the bankruptcy or other event) be deemed to have been duly served or
delivered in respect of any Bond registered in the name of such Bondholder as sole or
joint holder unless before the day of posting (or if it is not sent by post before the day
of service or delivery) of the notice or document his name has been removed from the
Register as the holder of the Bond and such service or delivery shall for all purposes be
deemed a sufficient service or delivery of such notice or document on all persons
interested (whether jointly with or claiming through or under him) in the Bond.

Any nofice, or other communication may be given to the Trustee hereunder by sending
the same through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to:

(a) If to Stanbic IBTC Trustees Limited, to it af:

The Wealth House

Plot 1678 Olakunle Bakare Close
Off Sanusi Fafunwa Street
Victoria Island

Lagos

Tel: +234 803 300 9192 ; 014221313 ; 08187238223; 014221374

For the Attention of: Seyi Egbarin/Temitope Onabowale
Email: SITLAgency@stanbicibtc.com

Any notice, or other communication may be given to the Obligor by sending the same
through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to:

(Q) If to Novambl Investments SPV Plc, to it at:

121/123 Funso Williams Avenue,
lponri

Lagos State

Nigeria.

Tel:


mailto:SITLAgency@stanbicibtc.com
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18.6

(a)

For the Attention of: [@]
Email: [@]

(a) If to Nova Merchant Bank Limited, to it at:

23 Kofo Abayomi Street,
Victoria Island

Lagos State

Nigeria.

Tel:
For the Attention of: [@]
Email: [@]

Any notice shall be deemed to have been served on the day following that on which
the letter containing the notice is posted and in proving such service it shall be sufficient
to prove that the envelope containing the notice or the notice itself was properly
addressed, stamped and posted. Any nofice given by delivery otherwise than by post
shall be deemed given at the time it is delivered to the address specified.

Any accidental error, omission or failure in giving or delivering or mailing such notice or
the non-receipt of any such notice by a Bondholder shall not invalidate or otherwise
prejudicially affect any act, action or proceeding.

Provided that in each case, any notice given to any Bondholder, the Trustee or the Obligors
by way of publication in two Nigerian national dailies will suffice as sufficient notice.

19.

19.1

19.2

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

Governing Law: The Bonds and all rights and obligations arising from or connected with
the Bonds are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Nigerian law.

Jurisdiction: The provisions of clause 24 (Law and Jurisdiction) of this Programme Trust
Deed shall apply mutatis mutandis to these Condifions.
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INTRODUCTION

Economic outcomes in Africa’s giant, Nigeria has confinued to show signs of improvement,
despite concerns around pre-&-post 2019 general election uncertainties. Thankfully, election risks
are out of the way and economic activities have resumed fully. For instance, remarkable progress
has been achieved in perhaps the some of the most important and contested bills recently
submitted to the senate; the Minimum Wage Bill, the 2020 Appropriation Bill, the Pefroleum Industry
Governance Bill (PIGB), and more recently the Finance Bill.

POLICIES & REFORMS

President Muhammadu Buhari was reported to have signed the National Minimum Wage Bill
(which recommends 830,000 as the new national minimum wage) info law. To finance the
expected increase in the personnel cost and douse the growing concern around debt
sustainability in the country, the ministry of finance recently launched strategic revenue growth
initiative (SRGI) to bolster government revenue. As a follow-up, the finance bill, which seeks to
review all Tax Acts in Nigeria, was sent to the senate. More specifically, the finance bill is designed
with the objective to reform domestic tax laws, promote fiscal equity, incentivize investments in
infrastructure & capital markets, support small businesses and raise revenues for the Government.
Also, the PIGB has now been re-passed by the Natfional Assembly in accordance with the
observations and recommendations of the president, who voted the bill in 2018 because of
legislative drafting concerns. Accordingly, we expect the newly passed version of the bill to be
given some level of consideration by the presidency this time around. Still on the bills, the 2020
Appropriation bill has been passed by the Senate, though it would still have to face the final hurdle
of a Presidential assent. However, with the early passage of the bill, fiscal cycle in Nigeria is
expected to revert to January to December unlikely the traditional July to June experienced for
more than a decade now.

Historical dates of Budget Passage in Nigeria
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Other ongoing reform efforts in Nigeria included the recent effort to enforce stiffer control on land
borders by getting neighboring countries to do their part to curb smuggling, the passage of the
Deep Offshore and Inland Basin Production Sharing Confract Amendment Act 2019 and the
reduction of NNPC's stake in JVCs, amid renewed commitment of the Apex bank to boost money
supply in the system, reduce borrowing rates and private sector credit.
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GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT

Nigeria enjoyed a sustained high single-digit economic growth from 2005 to 2015, averaging a
growth rate of 5.73%. The main driver of growth has been the non-oil sector, contributing c.92.4%
to GDP in 2018, whilst the oil sector contributed c.8.6% over the same growth period. Despite the
low contribution to GDP, the oil and gas sector remains critical fo the development of the country
as oil proceeds account for ¢.95% of exports earnings, over 90% accretion to external reserves
and about 70% of government revenue in Nigeria, according to the CBN.

The Nigerian Economy slipped into a recession in 2016 following a global oil market rout. The
economy recovered mildly in 2017 and remained fairly stable as Q4-2018 GDP numbers published
by the National Bureau of Statistics (NBS), showed a pace of real GDP expansion of 2.4% Y-o-Y
(from 1.8% in Q3: 2018). Notably, the expansion was driven by the confinued growth in the
Agriculture, Manufacturing, Trade and Services sectors among others, amid mild improvements in
oil sector GDP. The NBS reported that average daily oil production dipped to 1.91mbpd - a slightly
lower output when compared with 1.94mbpd and 1.95mbpd produced in Q3-18 and Q4-17
respectively. GDP growth in the non-oil sector of the economy continued to trend northwards,
recording a 2.70% growth in the fourth quarter of 2018, relative fo 2.32% recorded in the third
quarter of 2018 and 1.45% recorded in the fourth quarter of 2017.
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Over the course of 2019, GDP growth confinued its gradual uptick, printing a 2.28% growth as at
Q3-19. Notably, GDP growth was weaker in Q1-19 and Q2-19 compared to the Q4-18 as
electioneering and political activities moderated economic momentum in H1-19.

THE ECONOMY: OUTLOOK IS POSITIVE
In 2020, GDP growth is expected to maintain a gradual uptick amid recent policy initiatives being

implemented by both the fiscal and monetary policy authorities. Again, oil prices, which
predicates economic outcomes in the Nigerian economy, is expected to average $60-$66/b,
supported largely by OPEC'’s supply cut. We expect 2019 GDP to settle at 2.3%y/y predicated on
sustained uptrend in oil GDP and gradual uptick in the non-oil sector.

In the longer term, outlook for the economy over the next 4 years is positive as President Buhari's
victory signals policy stability. Clearly, the administration will continue to invest in infrastructure,
sustain its welfare scheme, reinforce the drive to substitute imports for local production, and retain
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its intervention programs across the Agriculture, Power and the SMEs space by building on its
Economic Recovery and Growth Plan (ERGP). Accordingly, we expect GDP growth to sustain a
gradual uptick over the next four years, rising from 2.0% to 3.5% or more over the period.

To achieve an above 2.1% GDP growth, we believe there is the need to identify strategic sectors
with the highest potential to drive inclusive and sustainable growth in the economy, implement
pro-market policies and accelerate infrastructure development.

There is an expectation that investment in infrastructure such as power projects, rail projects,
roads, and similar social amenities will continue in a bid to bridge the infrastructure gap. Again,
the drive to diversify government revenue via improving the efficiency of tax authorities (such as
the FIRS, Customs and Ports Authorities), support SMEs and boost job creation - through
intervention in the Agric sector - will continue. Finally, efforts to ease doing business in Nigeria, via
the initiatives of the Presidential Enabling Business Environment Council (PEBEC), by reviewing the
bureaucracies and red tapes within the civil service and other government agencies, should be
more obvious going forward.

Inflation & Interest Rate
An historical examination of the trajectory of inflation in Nigeria shows that the rate started another

phase of a sharp increase in 2000 - from a record low of 2.4% in May-2000, touching a record high
of 28.2% in Aug-2005, attfributed to increasing levels of fiscal deficit during these periods. However,
the rate moderated to a single digit of 9.7% in 2015 on the backdrop of the implementation of
sound monetary policies by CBN as well as increase in agricultural output which was able to meet
up growing demand during these periods. Over the last two years, headline inflation has sustained
a moderation amid increasing FX inflow and stability in the currency market. Accordingly,
headline inflation bottomed at 11.06% in August 2019 but climbed to 11.85% in November 2019
respectively, sfill falling short of the CBN target of single digit inflation rate between 6-9%.

In the monetary policy space, the CBN, through its Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) has over
the years been using its Monetary Policy Rates (MPR) as a way to ensure price stability in the
economy. Notably, the CBN was able to achieve its target of a single digit inflation rate for 3 years
straight from Jan-2013 through Nov-2015. The interest rate, which was held at 14% by the MPC for
about 33 months since Jul-16, coupled with the infroduction of the Investors & Exporters FX window
in April-17, among other reforms, drove stability in general price level with the headline inflation
moderating downward to a low of 11.31% in Mar-19. However, in view of price stability hitherto
achieved as well as the aim to boost the level of economic activities, the CBN in its March 2019
MPC meeting held decided to cut interest rate by 50bps to 13.50% while holding other monetary
policy rates constant. In October 2019, the CBN opted to stop the sales of OMO bills to non-banks
corporates and individuals in the domestic economic as means of driving market interest rate
lower while compelling banks to maintain a minimum loan to deposit ratio of 65% to boost credit
to the private sector.

In tferms of outlook for inflation, we expect the rate to remain above the CBN's single digit target
of 6-9% highlighting the inflationary pressures that may come from the implementation of the new
minimum wage policy, possible hikes in electricity costs to resolve the issues facing the power
sector and increased system liquidity.
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Debt
According to the Debt Management Office (DMQO), Nigeria's total public debt increased from

N21.73 ftrillion in December 2017 to N25.7 trillion at the end June 2019, FGN's outstanding debt
alone settled at N20.4trillion. This Increase was largely driven by a sharp increase in external debt
amid fast-rising budget deficit. The DMO noted that the debt figures reflected the impact of the
implementation of the debt management strategy, which entailed substituting high-cost
domestic debt with low-cost external debt. Particularly, the DMO raised $5.3bn in Eurobonds over
2018, thereby reflecting that some measure of investor confidence has been restored. However,
the Eurobond issuance brought the country’s outstanding Eurobond obligation to $11.2bn. We
note that Nigeria's external debt increased by $10.7bn (majorly driven by Eurobonds worth $7.0bn)
to $22.1bn between 2016 in H1-18 while the domestic component stood at N15.6tn as at Jun-18.

In a bid to diversify funding sources for the Government, the DMO introduced the FGN Savings
Bonds, a retail savings product designed to be accessible to all income groups, in March 2017.
The Bonds are to be issued monthly in fenors of 2 and 3 years with quarterly interest payments.
Also, the DMO successfully raised the first Diaspora Bonds in June 2017, a total of US$300m was
offered at a coupon rate of 5.625% for a 5-year tenor. Similarly, the Sovereign Sukuk Bond worth
N100bn for a tenor of 7 years was launched in September 2017. More recently, the DMO extended
the domestic bond yield curve by 10-year to 30-year.

Figure 1: Public Debt Profile
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Source: Debt Management Office
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In spite of the recent rise in public debft, Nigeria enjoys healthy debt sustainability and maintains
one of the lowest Debt-to-GDP ratio among Sub-Saharan African countries and other emerging
market economies as presented in the following chart:

Debt to GDP ratio (%)
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Foreign Direct Investment
Foreign Capital Imported into Nigeria grew by 37.5%y/y to settle at $16.8bn —it’s highest since 2014

- as the overall economy also recorded gradual improvements.

A review of foreign capital inflow into Nigeria since 2013 suggests that the bias of foreign capital
intfo Nigeria has historically tilted in favour of portfolio investments (FPIs). However, this has shifted
from interest in equities between 2013 and 2017 (with 2016 as an exception) to low risk but high
yielding money market instruments from 2018 to 2019. However, while the quantum of Foreign
Direct Investments (FDIs) have remained broadly low relative to other components from 2014 to
Q3-19, from an average of $515.0mn per quarterin 2014 and 2015 to $250.0mn since 2016, capital
flows inform of loans and other claims have continued to rise.

On an annual basis, FDI flow edged higher by 21.7%y/y to $1.2bn in 2018, recovering to a 3-year
high after the decline recorded in 2017. Meanwhile, Foreign Portfolio Investment also improved by
61.0% to settle at $11.8bn. Indication are sustained improvement in the overall economy will
sustain the inflow for foreign capital into the system going forward.

Capital importation into Nigeria continued to favour money market bills

6.0 Capital importation into Nigeria 2013 to 2019
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Source: NBS

Foreign Exchange and Currency Reserves
Before mid-2016, the Central Bank of Nigeria adopted arigid exchange rate system, keeping rates

dollar at ¢. N198.1/$1. Nevertheless, by June 2016, the CBN shifted its goal post and pegged the
official NGN/USD at C. N280.0/$1. Still, falling crude prices put pressure on external reserves and
the CBN'’s ability to continue to maintain the fixed exchange rate, even as there was a growing
disparity between the official exchange rate and the parallel market rate. Hence the CBN
infroduced the | & E Window in April 2017 to provide dollar liquidity and anchorage for exchange
rates.

Trajectory of Naira/USD rate
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Between April 2017 and Dec- 2019, huge inflow has been recorded as inflows via the | & E window,
with Foreign Portfolio Investors and Domestic Non-Bank Corporates accounting for the bulk of
transaction while the CBN continues to intervene to ensure stability of the exchange rate. The CBN
also holds retail and wholesale FX auctions as well as OMO auctions to maintain its stance on
defending the naira. For context, OMO sales to FPIs accounts for ¢.50% OMO bills outstanding as
the CBN contfinues to woo FPIs with attractive returns on OMO bills as strategy to conserve the
external reserves and limit volatility of the FX rates. In addition, the CBN also maintains a list of items
that are banned from sourcing FX via its windows as it sought to frigger local production of those
items. The list which started as a 41-item list with items such as Rice, Cement, Vegetable Oils among
others, saw the recent addition of Textile and Fertiliser. As at December 2019, rates at the Official
CBN Window, | & E Window and Parallel Market stand at N306.7/$, N360.7/$ and N358.5/%
respectively.

With sustained intervention by the CBN, Nigeria's external reserves which had expanded to
$45.0bn as at June 2019, now stands at $39.8billion in December 2019. Overall, outlook for
exchange rate in Nigeria remained stable supported by the resolve of the CBN to sustain it
intervention sales at the I&E window. This is based on the huge dollar reserves of $39.8billion at its
disposal.
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Banking Sector Review

Dynamics in the Nigerian Banking space continued to change in 2019 amid changes in the
monetary policy environment. As the impact of oil price plunge between 2014 and 2016 fizzles
out, asset quality appears to be improving. However, appetite for loan growth remained weak.
While banks were beginning to get comfortable with massive deployment of funds to government
securities, a series of unconventional monetary policy actions deployed by the apex bank to
compel banks to lend to the private sector, resulted in an upfick in loan book from Q3-19.
Meanwhile, muted loan growth, as well as sharp moderation in the yield environment, continued
to constrain the growth of Gross Earnings. In the competitive landscape, Access Bank took the
lead in terms of balance sheet size, following its consolidation with the now defunct Diamond Bank
Plc. This came after the industry withessed the regulatory takeover of Skye Bank Plc by the CBN in
2018. The sector also withessed the licencing of new operators as the CBN approved licences for
two commercial and one non-interest bank, viz.: Titan Trust Bank Limited, Globus Bank Limited and
Taj Bank Limited.

In 2020, stricter regulation on credit expansion to the real sector, further consolidation in the sector,

regulatory recapitalization and stiffer competition among operators, are top factors to watch in
the Nigerian banking landscape.

Regulatory Environment

A sequence of regulatory changes which affected the banks was the biggest driver of activities
in the sector in 2019 and going forward. After launching the Real Sector Support Facility in 2018,
the apex bank is clearly forceful in its approach at driving real sector lending in 2019. To signal the
direction of policy, the Monetary Policy Committee (the MPC) voted for a rate cut from 14.0% to
13.5% in Mar-19, and then, the CBN liquidity mop-ups became less aggressive with OBB and O/N
rates moderating to 11.4% in Q2-19 compared to 16.7% in Q1. In its meeting in May-19, the MPC
recommended the restriction of banks participation in the debt market, followed by an
administrative adjustment of the minimum LDR for Banks to 60% (and subsequently, 65.0% with
speculations of further increase to 70%), with a penalty of risking 50.0% of liquid assets to a further
increase in Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) at zero interest rate. A follow-up regulation further restricted
Bank deposits at the SDF window to N2.0bn from N7.5bn. For the CBN, this regulation is necessary
to rebalance credit distribution in the country, which currently favours the Oil & Gas (28.0%),
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Manufacturing (15.8%) and the Public (8.30%) sectors, at the expense of the more strategic sectors
such as Agric (4.1%), SMEs (2.3%) and Trade & General Commerce (6.8%) sectors.
Source: CBN, NBS, United Capital Research

Banking Sector Credit distribution as at Q3-19
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Financial Performance: Revenue, Efficiency Ratios, and Profitability

The performance of Nigerian Banks in 9M-19 remained broadly positive but was pressured by the
weak macroeconomic environment. Gross Earnings (GE) was muted across the sector as of 9M-
19. Evidently, muted growth in loan book alongside a moderation in the yield environment
weakened y/y growth in GE across the sector to 9.2% on average. This lowered Interest Income
amid unrelenting deployment of funds to financial securities at the expense of loans. Meanwhile,
Non-Interest Income grew 8.6% y/y on average, aftributable to stronger contribution from E-
Business income. Aside E-Business income, trading income also surged in 2019 amid increased
activities in the fixed income and currency market space.

Nevertheless, Nigerian Banks reported impressive after-tax profit during the period amid increased
writebacks. Most operators recorded positive PBT & PAT growth in 9M-19. Aside lower impairment
booking which supported bottom-line numbers, average Cost to Income Ratio (CIR) for the banks
within our coverage settled at 60.1% as of 9M-19, suggesting that efficiency improved across the
sector. Also, Net Interest Margin (NIM) averaged 7.1% relative to Cost of Funds (COF) which settled
at 4.4% on the average as at 9M-19.

Total banking sector asset was N35.1tn as at the end of 2018, still quite low compared to Nigeria's
GDP of N127.8tn ($416.16bn). Implying that the banking sector depth (Banking Sector Assets/GDP)
stood at 27.5% of GDP. Nonetheless, asset quality continues to improve as industry NPL ratio
moderated to 6.8% in Q3-19 from 9.30% in Q2-19.
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Banking Sector NPL is back at single digit and on course to hit the 5.0% mark
q/q trend of Banking Sector NPLs in Nigeria
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Evidently, Tier-2 banks remained very aggressive in terms of loan growth, with an average Loan to
Deposit Ratio (LDR) ratfio of 76.6% in 9M-19 compared to Tier-1 Banks which were broadly
conservative with an average LDR ratio of 59.2%. Frustrated at the refusal of the banks, especially
the fier-1 banks, to lend, the CBN revised its guideline on LDR in Jul-19 to a minimum of 60.0% (then
revised to 65.0% in Oct-19) to compel the banks to lend to the private sector. According to the
CBN, the new LDR rule has resulted in a 7.3% (N1.13tn) growth in credit to the private sector as the
banks move to meet the CBN's target or risk being debited at zero interest rate.

While capital adequacy ratio (CAR) among many banks remained well ahead of a minimum
threshold. Many Nigerian banks opted fo recall their dollar liabilities in the face of growing dollar
liguidity, easier monetary policy in the international market and concerns around the outlook of
the local currency. For context, Eurobond redemption by Nigerian Banks totalled $700.0bn in 2019.
Notably, Zenith Bank ($500.0m) and Diamond Bank ($200.0mn) issuances both matured in Q1-19,
taking out $700.0mn from the corporate Eurobond capitalization. However, Access Bank
($400.0mn), FBN Holdings ($450.0mn), Ecobank ($250.0mn) and Zenith ($300.0bn) were all called
in 2019. This shrank the value of outstanding corporate Eurobonds fo $1.65tn.

The evolution of Payment Service Banks (PSBs) is expected to further shape the banking sector
landscape in Nigeria going forward. MTN was awarded a PSB license — super agent license
through its subsidiary — Y'ello Digital Financial Services Limited. The telco is expected to leverage
its customer base to deliver financial services to rural areas in Nigeria in a plan to include the
financially excluded. The increasing evolution of momentum in the digital banking space is also
expected to gain more impetus, with operators such as Kuda bank luring young Nigerians with
stress-free banking. Pay-Day Loan (PDL) service providers are also worth a mention, with many of
them flooding the market with numerous collateral free credit to individuals. With fighter regulation
by the apex bank for deposit money banks to expand credit to the consumer space, the large
banks are becoming increasingly innovative in their product offerings to actively incubate parallel
start-up type lending platforms to compete with these evolving operators. While the evolution of
these Pay Day Loan operators will continue in 2020, it is important to note that these innovations
will continue to rely largely on the existing traditional banking infrastructure.
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The Information in this section has been extracted from documents and publications available and released by the Issuer.
Neither the Issuer nor its advisers are able to ascertain if facts have been omitted that would render the reproduced
information inaccurate or misleading.

Introduction

NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC was incorporated in Nigeria on 18" day of December 2019 (with
Registration Number 1642580) as a public limited company under the name “NOVAMBL
Investments SPV PLC" and with Registered Address at 121/123, Funso Williams Avenue, Iponri
Lagos. The Issuer has no subsidiaries and has been established as a special purpose vehicle for
the purpose of passing through funds to and receiving funds from Nova Merchant Bank Limited

NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC has an authorised and issued share capital of N1,000,000 divided
info 1,000,000 ordinary shares of &#1.00 each with 999,99%9ordinary shares held by Leadway
Capital and Trusts Limited (representing 99.9999%) and 1 ordinary share held by Oduoza Philips
(representing 0.0001%).

As set out in Clause 3 of its Memorandum and Arficles of Association the principal objectives of
the Issuer, amongst other things, is fo secure repayment of any monies borrowed, raised or owing
the company by mortgage, charge or lien upon the whole or any part of the Company’s
property or assefts.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Issuer to borrow or raise monies in such manner as the Company
shall think fit, and obtain guarantees third parties of the performance by the Company of any
obligation or liability the Company may undertake.Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Issuer may be Inspected at the specified office(s) of the Issuer.

The Issuer has not engaged, since its incorporation, in any activities other than those incidental
to its incorporation and registration as a public limited company, the authorisation and issue of
the Bonds and of the other documents and matters referred to or contemplated in this
document to which it is or will be a party and matters which are incidental or ancillary to the
foregoing.

The Issuer’s activities are restricted by the terms of the Trust Deed, and other related Transaction
Documents.

Directors and Secretary

The Directors and Company Secretary of the Issuer and their respective business addresses are
shown below:

Name ‘ Business Address

Sunday Oroloke 121/123, Funso Williams Avenue, lponri, Lagos

Wuraola Ayodeii 121/123, Funso Williams Avenue, Iponri, Lagos

Hanson Olumide 121/123, Funso Williams Avenue, Iponri, Lagos
Indebtedness

The Issuer has no indebtedness as at the date of this Shelf Prospectus other than that which the
Issuer has incurred or shall incur in relation to the transactions contemplated herein.
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Material Contracts

Apart from the Transaction Documents to which it is a party, the Issuer has not entered intfo any
material contracts other than in the ordinary course of its business.

No Material Adverse Change

Since the date of the Issuer's incorporation, there has been no material adverse change or any
development reasonably likely to involve any material adverse change in the condition
(financial or otherwise) of the Issuer.

Financial Information

Since the date of incorporation, the Issuer has not commenced operations and no financial
statements have been compiled or published as af the date of this Shelf Prospectus.

Claims and Litigation

The Issuer is not and has not been since its incorporation engaged in any litigation or arbitration
proceedings which may have or have had during such period a significant effect on its respective
financial position. And, as far as the Issuer is aware, no such litigation or arbitration proceedings
are pending or threatened.
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OVERVIEW

Nova Merchant Bank Limited (*Nova MB” or the “Bank”) is a recently licensed merchant bank in
Nigeria with a focus on wholesale and investment banking. It is privately owned by Nigerian and
foreign institutional investors who have distinguished themselves in areas such as financial services
and the real sector over several decades.

Nova MB offers several products and services including Corporate Banking, Investment Banking,
Advisory Services, Securities, Wealth & Asset Management. The Bank targets private and public
sector clients in addition to private individuals. Specifically, Nova MB focuses on the Oil & Gas
sector, Commodity & Agricultural business, Utility & Infrastructure, Fast Moving Consumer Goods,
Trade & Services and Financial Institutions.

The bank is staffed with a team of talented professionals to drive the next wave of banking
revolution in financial services. The goal is to re-establish merchant banking as a key economic
driver by providing long-term funds and advisory services.

Nova MB's customers are at the heart of everything the Bank makes, and its insight-data driven
approach offers new perspectives to enable them win in the marketplace. The Bank is focused
on building a legacy for future generations whilst continuously creating sustainable value for its
stakeholders.

Nova's vision is driven by its aspiration to transform the African financial services landscape with
fresh thinking and innovative solutions. The Bank believes in Africa’s promise and possesses a deep
conviction that this will only be achieved with an appropriate blend of international best practices
and deep knowledge of the peculiarities of the African operating environment. “To be Africa’s
preferred financial solutions provider” is the culmination of the Bank's belief as the Bank pride itself
in its ability to work with its customers to co-create products and offer tailored solutions modelled
on their needs

Nova MB's mission is to create superior value in the markets it serves. The Bank is an impact-driven
organisation committed to delivering tangible results to all stakeholders. Nova MB is guided in the
execution of its mission by ifs overarching philosophy of “New Thinking. New Opportunities”. Fresh
perspectives, insights and its collaborative approach enables the Bank’s customers to identify and
capitalise on new opportunities in order to win in the marketplace.

KEY BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Nova MB's key business activities as detailed below cuts across wholesale banking, Investment
banking, advisory services, asset management, wealth management and securities and trading

Wholesale Banking

The Wholesale Banking business segment caters to Nova Merchant Bank’s relationship with other
commercial, merchant, mortgage banks and otfher financial institutions. This segment is backed
by the banking pedigree and credentials of Nova MB's world class tfeam with experience
garnered from working in some of the world’s largest financial institutions. The segment offers a
broad spectrum of services including:

¢ Financing: The Bank offers financing solutions to facilitate the smooth operation and growth of
its clients’ business covering corporate lending, project finance, asset finance, working capital
finance, supply chain finance amongst others. The Bank also assists other in determining the
best financing options suited for each corporate institution.
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o Trade Services: The Bank offers an innovative and efficient trade servicing network and
structuring advise to facilities trading activities of corporate clients whether they are sourcing
forinpufts intfo their supply chain or exporting products to their international partners/customers.

¢ Foreign Exchange Services: The Bank offers a wide range of innovative foreign exchange
products and services which assist clients better manage their foreign exchange risk exposure
and limit the impact on its operations.

e Cash management: This segment is instrumental in providing efficient and efficient solutions
for clients to manage liquidity and provide sufficient time for client to focus on driving business
growth.

Investment Banking

Nova Merchant Bank's services offering for investment banking cuts across capital raising and
equity finance, debt issuances and underwriting, restructuring, mergers and acquisitions,
structured finance and agricultural finance.

Advisory Services

Nova Merchant Bank understands the complex and volatile nature of financial markets and
aspires to provide its clients with trusted advice to enable them to successfully navigate these
challenges. The Bank offers services covering divestments, capital restructuring, takeovers, hedge
product advisory in addition to financial, valuation & credit advisory services which will enable ifs
clients thrive in the turbulent storms of modern business.

Asset Management

Nova Merchant Bank provides investment products covering Mutual Funds, Structured Products,
Portfolio Administration Services and Trustee Services which provide clients with unrivalled
investment performance across a wide range of asset classes through superior market insight,
technical expertise and strong execution capabilities.

Wealth Management

Nova Merchant Bank’s wealth management offerings are tailored to the investment goals and
risk appetite of our clients. We will work with you to build and manage your portfolio to facilitate
the achievement of your investment goals and aspirafions.

Securities and Trading

Nova Merchant Bank also provides frading securities, brokerage services, registrar liaison and
financial instrument placement services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nova Merchant Bank Limited holds good corporate governance as one of its core values and
confirms its commitment to the implementation of effective governance principles in its business
operations. The Directors endorse the principles of best practice corporate governance as stated
in the “Code of Corporate Governance for Banks in Nigeria Post Consolidation” issued by the
Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) and the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) “Code of
Corporate Governance”.

The Board of Directors of Nova MB has the overall responsibility for ensuring that the highest
standards of corporate governance are maintained and adhered by the Bank. In order to
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promote effective governance of Nova MB, the following structures have been put in place for
the execution of Nova MB’s corporate governance strategy:

1) Board of Directors

2) Board of Committees

3) Executive Management Committees.

The board comprises of a Non-Executive Chairman, five (5) Non-Executive Directors and two (2)
Executive Directors, all of whom bring a wide range of skills and experience to the Board. The
Board of Directors carries out its responsibilities through its standing committees. These are the
Board Risk Management and Audit Committee, the board finance and general-purpose
committee, the board nomination and governance committee and the board credit and
investment committee. Through the workings of these committees, the Board sets broad policy
guidelines and ensures the proper management and direction of the Bank. In addition to the
Board Committees there are other management committees which ensure effective and good
corporate governance at the managerial level.

A) The Board

The board presently consists of 8 members, 2 of whom, inclusive of the MD/CEO are Executive
Directors and é Non-Executive Directors. All the directors have the requisite integrity, skills and
experience to bring to bear on Board deliberations and discussions.

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated and clearly defined. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for the working of the Board whilst the Chief Executive officer is
responsible for the running of the business and implementation of Board Strategy and policy. The
Chief Executive Officer is assisted in managing the business of the Bank on a day to day basis by
the Executive Management Committee, which he chairs, and which comprises of all Executive
Directors, The Board's primary responsibility is to increase shareholder’'s wealth. The Board is
accountable to shareholders and is responsible for the management of the relationships with its
various stakeholders. The Executive management is accountable to the Board for the
development and implementation of strategy and policies. The Board regularly reviews the Bank's
performance, matters of strategic concern and any other matters it regards as material. The
Boards meets quarterly and additional meetings are concerned as the need arises. The Board is
responsible for the Bank's structure, area of operation, financial reporting, ensuring there is an
effective system of infernal control and risk management and appointments to the Board. The
Board has the authority to delegate matters to Directors, Board Committees and the Executive
Management Committee.

All directors are aware that they may take independent professional advise at the expense of the
Bank, in the furtherance of their duties. They all have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that all governance matters are
dealt with in accordance with policy and assists with professional development as required.

B) Accountability and Audit

The Directors of the board make themselves accountable to the shareholders through regular
publication of the Bank’s financial performance and Annual reports. The Board has ensured that
the Bank's reporting procedure is conveyed on the most recent infrastructure to ensure accuracy.
The Bank has consistently improved its internal control system to ensure effective management of
risks. The Directors review the effectives of the system of internal control through regular reports
and reviews at Board and Risk Management and Audit Committee meetings.
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C) Control Environment

The board has continued to place emphasis on risk management as an essential tool for achieving
the Bank’s objective. To this end, it has ensured that the Bank has in place robust risk management
policies and mechanisms to ensure identfification of risk and effective conftrol. The board approves
the annual budget for the Bank and ensures that a robust budgetary process is operated with
adequate authorisation levels put in place to regulate capital expenditure.

D) Shareholders Rights

The board of Nova has always placed considerable importance on effective communication with
its shareholders. It ensures that the rights of shareholders are always protected. Notices of meeting
and all other staftutory notices and information are communicated to the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to communicate their opinions and recommendations whenever
they see the need to do so, to the company secretary.

E) Board Committees

The board of Nova has the following committees, namely the Board Audit Committee, the Board
Finance and General-Purpose Committee, the Board Nomination and Governance Committee,
and the Board Credit and Investment Committee.
Board Audit Committee
Member of the Board Audit Committee are as follows;

1)  Mr. Emmanuel ljlewere — Chairman

2) Ms. Bolanle Onagoruwa

3) Mrs. Habiba Ammah Wakil

4) Mr Shams Butt

The Audit Committee was set up to further strengthen Internal confrols in the Bank. It assists the
board of directors in fulfilling its audit responsibilities by ensuring that effective systems of financial
and internal controls are in place within the Bank.

Board Credit and Risk Committee
The Board Credit and Risk Committee is made up of 3 Non-Executive Directors and is responsible
for approval of credit facilities in the Bank. It reviews all credits granted by the Bank and meetings
are held af least once a quarter. Members of the Board Credit and Investment Committee are as
follows;

1) Mr Shams Butt — Chairman

2) Mr Emmanuel liewere

3) Chief Malachy Nwaiwu

The board credit and risk committee was set up to assist the board of directors to discharge its
responsibility to exercise due care, diigence and skill to oversee, direct and review the
management of the credit portfolio of the Bank. Its terms of reference include determining and
setting the parameters for credit risk and asset concentration and reviewing compliance within
such limits, determining and setting the lending limits, reviewing and approving the Bank's credit
stfrategy and the credit risk tolerance. The Committee reviews the loan portfolio of the Bank.
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Nomination and Governance Committee

The nomination and governance committee is comprised of 3 Non-Executive directors namely;
1)  Mrs Habiba Ammah Wakil — Chairperson
2) Mr Shams Butt; and
3) Chief Malachy Nwaiwu

Meetings are held at least once a quarter and the responsibilities of the Committee include
reviewing, considering and determining the appropriate remuneration payable to the Bank’s
Executive Directors.

Finance and General-Purpose Commitiee
The purpose of the finance and general-purpose committee is to amongst other things, discharge
the board’s responsibilities with regards to strategic direction and budgeting and to provide
oversight on financial matters and the performance of the Bank.
The members of the finance and general committee are as follows;

1) Chief Malachy Nwaiwu - Chairman

2) Mr. Emmanuel liewere; and

3) Ms. Bolanle Onagoruwa

Executive Management Committees

These are Committees comprising of senior management of the Bank. The Committees are risk-
driven as they are basically set up to identify, analyse, synthesize and make recommendations on
risks arising from day to day activities of the Bank. They also ensure that risk limits as contained in
the board and regulatory policies are always complied with. They provide inputs for the respective
board committees and ensure that recommendations of the board committees are effectively
and efficiently implemented. They meet as frequently as risk issues occur to immediately take
actions and decisions within the confines of their powers. Some of these Executive Management
Committees include the Bank’s Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO), the Executive Credit and
Investment Committee (ECIC), the IT Steering Committee (ITSC), the Executive Risk Management
Committee (ERMC) and the Executive Management Committee (EMC).

Profile of Directors & Company Secretary

Mr. Phillips Oduoza (FCIB) - Chairman

Phillips Oduoza with about 30 years banking experience in major financial institutions, is the
founder and Chairman of the board of Nova Merchant Bank Limited. Mr. Oduoza is an
internationally recognized and accomplished banker with diverse knowledge and experience in
commercial and corporate banking.

Prior fo promoting Nova, he recently retfired as the global CEO of UBA Group where he firmly
established the Bank as a leading African Financial Institution with global brand recognition. Mr.
Oduoza was part of a small feam that pioneered and established Diamond Bank Plc as one of
the most successful and innovative banks in the early 90's. He supervised/led many breakthrough
financial products and initiatives of Diamond Bank. As a result, he rose rapidly to the position of
Executive Director in 1999. Phillips Oduoza started his banking career in 1989 with Citibank as the
first set of Executive Trainees where he frained in every aspect of banking after a brief stint with
International Merchant Bank (IMB).
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Mr. Oduoza has thorough knowledge of the Nigerian (indeed African/global) banking
environment and what it takes to pioneer and run a very successful/sustainable financial
institution. He has inifiated and led many key successful financial transactions in infrastructure,
agriculture, manufacturing, felecommunication, energy, technology projects, financial advisory,
oil & gas, corporate finance, capital market activities and debt restructuring in Nigeria and across
Africa. He has been involved in some of the key banking industry transformational initiatives,
having led the Bankers Committee sub-committee on Payment Systems and Infrastructure that
drove the BYN implementation and Electronic Payment System of Nigeria (Card, ATM, POS, Online
transfers, etc).

Phillips Oduoza has served on the board of some key names such as Diamond Bank Plc, Interswitch
Plc, Valuecard Plc (Unified Payment Services Plc) where he served as chairman, Nigeria Interbank
Settlement System (NIBSS), Nigeria Payment System, Nigeria Economic Summit Group (NESG),
Financial Markets and Dealers Quotations (FMDQ), UBA Capital, UBA Plc. He currently serves on
the boards of Veritas University Abuja, Lagos State Security Trust Fund, Development Bank of
Nigeria amongst others.

Mr. Oduoza is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers (FCIB). He has a BSc. Hons with First
Class in Civil Engineering(1983), an MBA (Finance)(1988), and is an alumnus (AMP) of Harvard
Business School [2004]. He has been honoured with numerous awards of achievement both locally
and internationally such as Africa CEO of the year New York (2013 and 2014). He meets and
interacts with numerous people and business leaders in the corporate sector, diplomatic corps,
enfrepreneurship and professional services sectors, amongst many other sectors.

Anyalechi Duroha - Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director

Anyalechi Duroha is the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director of
Nova Merchant Bank Limited. Preceding this appointment, he was the
Executive Director, Wholesale Bank responsible for development and
management of the Bank’s corporate banking relationships.

Prior to joining the Bank as a pioneer staff, he was the Head, Business

Banking at StanbiclBTC, where he was responsible for Commercial

Banking and SME businesses in Nigeria. In that role, he had the

responsibility for both relationship and portfolio management. In this
capacity, he designed and implemented interventions and strategies that ensured the rapid
growth and profitability of the business.

He started his banking career in banking operations in Citibank and has 25 years banking
experience spanning across many areas of banking. He was the Head Corporate Banking, United
Bank for Africa Plc; Head Corporate Banking, Diamond Bank Plc and Head of Business
Development (Designate), Diamond Bank, United Kingdom. In all these roles, he has managed
portfolios in various sectors including manufacturing, agriculture, construction, oil & gas,
infrastructure, aviation, power, maritime, telecommunications, FMCG and structured frade
finance. Anyalechi holds an M.Sc. in Banking & Finance from the University of Benin (1998) and a
B.Eng. in Civil Engineering from the University of Nigeria, Nsukka(1986). He is an alumnus of Wharton
Business School, University of Pennsylvania(2012) and Lagos Business School(2006).
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Shams Butt - Non-Executive Director

Shams Butt is a highly accomplished banker with over 25 years
experience working in senior positions at some of the largest financiall
institutions in the world and serves as a Non-Executive Director at Nova
Merchant Bank Limited.

Mr. Butt's banking experience covers a wide range of areas including

Investment Banking, Risk Management, Compliance, Treasury, Ratings

Advisory and Private Banking. He has a strong frack record and deep

expertise in executing projects in emerging markets and was a
Managing Director at Citigroup in London where he served as the Head Sub Saharan Coverage
for Citi's Investment Bank in addition to to being the Head of Europe Middle East & Africa (EMEA)
at the Citi Financial Strategy Group. He has also had stints working at Citibank’s offices in Tokyo,
Bahrain and Pakistan.

In addition, Mr Butt was a Director at Deutsche Bank in New York where he served as the Head
Risk and Compliance at Deutsche Bank Advisors LLC.

A British citizen and based in Dubai, Mr Butt is currently an Advisor at African Industries (a global
name in steel, manufacturing, aluminium products and building materials across three continents)
where he manages the group’s investment activities, oversees real estate development projects
and is responsible for all M&A, execution of fransactions and joint ventures.

Mr. Butt has a Masters of Business Administration (MBA)(1986)and Bachelors of Business
Administration both from George Washington University, Washington DC(1984).

Chief Malachy Nwaiwu - Independent Director

Chief Malachy Nwaiwu recently refired in the Executive Cadre of the Central Bank of Nigeria
(CBN) where he worked for 35 years and is an Independent Director of Nova Merchant Bank
Limited.

During his time at CBN, he pioneered many initiatives and worked in a wide range of areas
covering currency & branch operations, development finance, human resources and information
technology. He was a member and the Secretary of the Committee that handled the design,
printing and launching of the N1000 banknote denomination for the Bank. Chief Nwaiwu served
on several committees in CBN that developed various inifiatives in the transformation of the Bank
and was in charge of Service Delivery Improvement Initiatives for the branches of the Bank prior
to retirement.

Chief Nwaiwu possesses a Master of Business Administration (Management and Finance) from the
University of Lagos (1983), a B.Sc. Agricultural Economics from the University of Ibadan(1979) and
a Bachelor of Laws from the University of Abuja (2007). He is a member of the Nigerian Institute of
Management and the Association of Management and Administration (AMA) USA. He is currently
an Atftorney in the Law firm of Chukwuma-Machukwu Ume SAN (Firm of Lawyers & Arbifrators)
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Emmanuel ljewere (FCA, FloD) — Independent Director

Emmanuel liewere is one of Nigeria’'s most respected Accountants/Tax
Consultants and is an Independent Director of Nova Merchant Bank
Limited.

In recognition of his commitment to excellence and professionalism, he

has served as the President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Nigeria, the Accounting Bodies of West Africa and the President Institute

of Directors Nigeria during which he introduced major transformative

initiatves to the two bodies. He has also held the position of the National
President, Nigerian Red Cross Society as well as the Chairman, West African Sub-Region of the
International Federation of the Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies. While in these positions, he
infused a high level of fransparency and governance and instituted tracking mechanisms that
improved response fime to disasters and consequent reduction of casualty levels.

Mr. liewere has played a key role on many national transformational initiatives including the
Chairman of the Value Added Tax Committee which intfroduced VAT into the country and the
Chairman of the Agriculture and Food Security Commission of the Nigerian Economic Summit
Group. He is currently the National Coordinator of the Nigeria Agribusiness Group which is the
umbrella body for agriculture and agribusiness in Nigeria.

Mr. liewere was the founding partner of liewere & Co, one of the foremost firms of Chartered
Accountants, Management Consultants and Chartered Tax Advisers in Nigeria having started his
careerin 1965 with Coopers & Lybrand. He sits on the board of several companies and is currently
the Chairman of the Best Foods Group.

Emmanuel liewere possesses a B.SC in Accounting from Universityof South London (1970) and a
PhD in Accounting (Honoris Causa) from Iscom University , Benin Republic (2017).

Bolanle Onagoruwa - Independent Director

Bolanle Onagoruwa is an accomplished public and private sector professional and serves as an
Independent Director of Nova Merchant Bank Limited.

She was the Director General of the Bureau of Public Enterprises (BPE) where she transformed
through various initiatives the government entity responsible for privatisation of government
enterprises. Ms Onagoruwa executed one of the most transparent and successful privatization
exercises of large and complex public sector enterprises during her tenure as the DG of BPE. She
provided leadership for Nigeria's privatisation initiatives and was member of some high level
Federal Government Committees such as the Economic Management Team and the Presidential
Action Committee on Power. She also served on the board of many privatised companies
including the Transnational Hotels and Tourism Services Limited (Transcorp Hilton Hotel), Eleme
Petrochemicals Company Limited (one of the most successful privatized entities to date) and
Nigerdock Nigeria Plc. She was also the Director of several departments including Electric Power,
Industry & Manufacturing, Oil & Gas, National Facilities & Agricultural Resources and National Parks
& Stadia during her fime at the institution where her contributions were remarkable.
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Prior to her appointment as DG BPE, she served as the Secretary, Social Development and
Secretary, Education at the Federal Capital Territory, in addition to being a Special Assistant to the
President. She started her career as Associate and Partner at a commercial law practice, followed
by Company Secretary/Legal Adviser and pioneer Branch Senior Manager at a new generation
merchant bank, before she joined the public service as a Director in the Bureau of Public
Enterprises.

Upon retirement from BPE, Ms Onagoruwa became the Acting Managing Director/CEO of the
Ibadan Electricity Distribution Company and is currently the Managing Director/CEO
(Infrastructure and Business Development) of ENL Consortium Limited, a company which
specialises in infrastructural development like housing, road/bridge construction, power projects,
port operations, and solid minerals.

Ms. Onagoruwa possesses a Bachelor of Laws from the University of Lagos (1978), a Post Graduate
Diploma in Politics and International Relations from the University of Kent at Canterbury (1987), and
is an alumnus of the Harvard Business School [2003].

Habiba Ammah Wakil - Independent Director

Habiba Ammah Wakil is a distinguished lawyer, public sector
administrator, Oil and Gas Local Content Expert and an Independent
Director of Nova Merchant Bank Limited.
Mrs Wakil was a pioneer employee of the Petroleum Technology
Development Fund where she set up the Legal Department and put in
place all the legal contracts and documents used by the Fund. She rose
to the position of General Manager Nigerian Content Division, having
worked on a wide range of areas covering Legal, Planning & Research,
Operations and Training. Mrs. Wakil started her career in Borno State Ministry of Justice and rose to
the position of Honourable Aftorney General and Commissioner for Justice. She has over 30 years
Legal and Administrative experience and has held positions as Director Legal Services at the Borno
Radio Television Corporation and the Director Management & Legal Services at the Education
Tax Fund, Abuja. She is a member of International Bar Association and Nigerian Bar Association.
She is currently the President of the Shukrallah Association, a non-profit organisation that provides
funding for religious education, community development and infrastructure.
Mrs. Wakil has an LLM (Criminal Justice) from New York University (1982), BL from Nigerian Law
School (1979) and an LLB (Hons) from Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria (1978). She has attended top
level executive programmes at various prestigious institutions including London Business School,
Wits Business School, Columbia Business School and Thunderbird Business School. She is also a
member of the National Institute for Policy and Strategic Studies.



61

DESCRIPTION OF NOVA MERCHANT BANK LIMITED

Ayodeji Adigun (FCcA) - Executive Director

Ayodeiji Adigun is the Executive Director / Chief Operating Officer and
member of the board at Nova Merchant Bank Limited. He has over 30
years of banking and finance experience with strong background and
competenciesin financial control, performance management, project
management, operations, technology, human resources, audit,
strategic planning and business transformation. Prior to his current role,
he was the Chief of Staff to the GMD/CEO af the United Bank for Africa
Plc (UBA). He also served at various times as the Head, Strategy and
Business Transformation, the Chief Financial Officer (North Region),
Chief Operating Officer, UBA Properties and Head, Performance Management during his fime at
UBA. Mr. Adigun has served in several executive roles in the banking industry including the Chief
Finance Officer, Head Corporate Development Standard Trust Bank as well as Head, Financiall
Control Diamond Bank Plc, in addition to the Head Corporate Planning & Development and
Head, Financial Confrol at NAL Merchant Bank. In the course of his banking career, Mr. Adigun
has extensively played a key role in the conception and deployment of turnaround strategies for
business segments/units, initiated several cost optimization measures that resulted in appreciable
reduction in cost-to-income ratio, has been deeply involved in the articulation, review and co-
ordination of organizational polices in order to facilitate the decision making process, improve
operational efficiency and enhance productivity. Furthermore, he has spear-headed the design
and implementation of budgetary conftrol systems, performance management systems and
several new products. Prior to joining the banking industry, he worked at Ernst & Young as an Audit
Senior after a brief stint as an Assistant Lecturer at the University of Lagos. Mr. Adigun possesses a
B.Sc. Hons in Accounting (First Class) from the University of Lagos (1981). He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (1984), an Associate Member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants UK (1982) and an Associate Member of the Chartered
Institute of Taxation of Nigeria (1999). He is also an alumnus of the Senior Management Programme
at the Lagos Business School (2001).

Nnadozie Ohqji - Company Secretary

Nnadozie Ohaijiis the Company Secretary/ General Counsel of Nova
Merchant Bank Limited. He oversees the Company Secretariat, Legal,
Compliance and Credit Administration/Credit Monitoring/Remedial
Management of the Bank. He has over 13 years of experience in
Legal, Secretarial, Drafting, Regulatory and Corporate Governance.
Nnadozie holds an LL.B in Law from the Imo Stafe University,
Owerri(2003), a B.L from Nigerian Law School Lagos(2006) and an LL.M
from the University of Lagos Akoka(2015).
Prior to joining Nova Merchant Bank Limited, Nnadozie worked with
AB Microfinance Bank Limited in which he headed the Company Secretariat, legal and
compliance functions. In this role, he led the Bank to 100% implementation of the CBN Code of
Corporate Governance for Microfinance Banks 2018, within 6 months of its release, beating the
regulatory fimelines
Nnadozie is a Member of the Nigerian Bar Association and the Chartered Institute of Bankers of
Nigeria
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Management Team

Anyalechi Duroha - Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director

Anyalechi Duroha is the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director of
Nova Merchant Bank Limited. Preceding this appointment, he was the
Executive Director, Wholesale Bank responsible for development and
management of the Bank's corporate banking relationships. Prior to
joining the Bank as a pioneer staff, he was the Head, Business Banking
at Stanbic IBTC, where he was responsible for Commercial Banking and
SME businesses in Nigeria. In that role, he had the responsibility for both
relationship and portfolio management. In this capacity, he designed
and implemented interventions and strategies that ensured the rapid
growth and profitability of the business. He started his banking career in banking operations in
Citibank and has 25 years banking experience spanning across many areas of banking. He was
the Head Corporate Banking, United Bank for Africa Plc; Head Corporate Banking, Diamond Bank
Plc and Head of Business Development (Designate), Diamond Bank, United Kingdom. In all these
roles, he has managed portfolios in various sectors including manufacturing, agriculture,
construction, oil & gas, infrastructure, aviation, power, maritime, telecommunications, FMCG and
structured trade finance. Anyalechi holds an M.Sc. in Banking & Finance from the University of
Benin (1998) and a B.Eng. in Civil Engineering from the University of Nigeria, Nsukka (1986). He is an
alumnus of Wharton Business School, University of Pennsylvania (2012) and Lagos Business School
(2006).

Ayodeji Adigun (FCA) - Executive Director

Ayodeiji Adigun is the Executive Director / Chief Operating Officer and
member of the board at Nova Merchant Bank Limited. He has over 30
years of banking and finance experience with strong background and
competencies in financial control, performance management, project
management, operations, technology, human resources, audit,
strategic planning and business fransformation. Prior to his current role,
he was the Chief of Staff to the GMD/CEQO at the United Bank for Africa
Plc (UBA). He also served at various times as the Head, Strategy and
Business Transformation, the Chief Financial Officer (North Region),
Chief Operating Officer, UBA Properties and Head, Performance Management during his time at
UBA. Mr. Adigun has served in several executive roles in the banking industry including the Chief
Finance Officer, Head Corporate Development Standard Trust Bank as well as Head Financial
Control Diamond Bank Plc, in addition to the Head Corporate Planning & Development and Head
Financial Control at NAL Merchant Bank. In the course of his banking career, Mr. Adigun has
extensively played a key role in the conception and deployment of turnaround strategies for
business segments/units, initiated several cost optimization measures that resulted in appreciable
reduction in cost-to-income ratio, has been deeply involved in the articulation, review and co-
ordination of organizational polices in order to facilitate the decision making process, improve
operational efficiency and enhance productivity. Furthermore, he has spear-headed the design
and implementation of budgetary control systems, performance management systems and
several new products. Prior to joining the banking industry, he worked at Ernst & Young as an Audit
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Senior after a brief stint as an Assistant Lecturer at the University of Lagos. Mr. Adigun possesses a
B.Sc. Hons in Accounting (First Class) from the University of Lagos (1981). He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (1984), an Associate Member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants UK (1982) and an Associate Member of the Chartered
Institute of Taxation of Nigeria (1999). He is also an alumnus of the Senior Management Programme
at the Lagos Business School (2001).

Emeka Uzomba - Head, Specialised Industrial Group

Emeka Uzomba is the Head, Specialised Industries Group with
responsibilities for the Bank’s structured and specialised businesses
including Oil & Gas, Maritime, Telecoms, Agribusiness, Infrastructure and
Public Sector Group etc. He has 24 years banking experience covering
treasury, trade finance, debt capital markets, assets & liabilities
management, correspondent banking/international financial
institutions, commercial banking and banking operations. Prior to joining
NOVA MB, he was the Group Treasurer and Head of Financial Institutions
at Diamond Bank Plc, a position he held for several years having joined
Treasury early in his career as a frainee Dealer and rose through the ranks before his appointment
as the Treasurer. He also has experience leading on strategy, special initiatives, advisory work,
market development, capacity building and risk management. He holds an MBA in Banking &
Finance from the University of Nigeria (Enugu Campus) and Bachelor of Science degree in
Geography & Meteorology from the Anambra State University of Technology, Enugu. He is an
alumnus of the Senior Management Program at the Lagos Business School and London Business
School where he studied Corporate Finance.

Chinedu Ekeocha - Deputy Chief Operating Officer

Chinedu Ekeocha is the Deputy Chief Operating Officer of Nova
Merchant Bank Limited. He has over 27 years' experience in financial
services covering business development, product development, retail
banking, banking operations, payment cards and alternative delivery
channels, strategy and support. Prior to this role, he was the Managing
Director/CEO of Diamond Pension Fund Custodian Limited where he
oversaw Assets Under Custody of over N320bn. In this role, his
responsibilities included but were not limited to leading, managing and
directing the affairs of this subsidiary of Diamond Bank Plc in order to
provide custodial services for Pension and Money Market Financial Assets. He was also responsible
for improving the company'’s risk management rating from Medium to Low Risk. Mr. Ekeocha has
held several senior roles during his career including Group Head, Cards and Channels Services
Group and Head, Branch Operations Services (Lagos, West and South) at Diamond Bank. He is
noted fo have a firm interest in leadership, strategy development and execution. Mr. Ekeocha
possesses a B.Sc. (Hons) in Banking/Finance from the Imo State University, Uturu (1989) and an MBA
(Financial Management) from Lagos State University (1998). He has attended several professional
course/seminars covering operations, risk management, performance management and
corporate governance.
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Eberechukwu Agbogun - Head, Capital Markets

Eberechukwu Agbogun is the Head Capital Markets at Nova Merchant
Bank Limited. Her wealth of experience in financial services spans
seventeen years covering both banking and capital markets. Prior to
this role, she was the Head of Business Development, ARM Investment
Managers where she was responsible for managing Assets Under
Management (AUM) of N120bn in equities and fixed income covering
multiple currencies (NGN, USD and GBP). She started her career as a
loan officer and played focal roles in the start-up of three bank
branches as well as managed marketing and operations teams in
Metropolitan and First City Monument Banks. She later joined ARM where her major roles were
within the Business Development segment of the firm, taking on Private, Retail and Institutional
Asset Management responsibilities at different times. She also played strategic roles working on
different project feams within the ARM group including collective investments issues, specialised
real estate products launch, marketing and sale, core system migrations, client retention/loyalty
reward programmes, and employee engagement initiatives. Ebere possesses a B.Sc. in
Psychology from University of Ibadan (2000) where she was awarded best graduating student of
the department. She has a master’'s degree in Business Administration from The Business School,
Netherlands (2005). She holds a diploma in Personal Financial Planning from the Florida State
University and two certifications in Chartered Wealth Management from The American
Association of Financial Management (AAFM) (2009) and The International Academy of Business
& Financial Management (IABFM), USA (2016) respectively. She has also attended several
professional and sfrategic programmes over the years. Ebere is currently a doctoral student in
business administration at the Walden University, United States.

Ifeatu Onwuasoanya - Chief Audit Executive

Ifeatu Onwuasoanya is the Chief Audit Executive of Nova Merchant
Bank Limited. He has over 22 years-experience in financial services
covering such diverse areas as audit, compliance, finance, retail
banking and investor relations. Prior to this role, he was the Head,
Investor Relations at Diamond Bank Plc where his responsibilities
included developing and implementing Diamond Bank's investor
engagement strategy. He has held other senior roles including Special
Assistant to Diamond Bank’s Group Managing Director/CEO, Group
Head of Business Banking, and Group Head of Branch Audit. Ifeatu
Onwuasoanya possesses an MBA from MIT Sloan School of Management, Cambridge,
Massachusetts (2010) and a B.Sc. in Accounting from the Abia State University (1991). He is a Fellow
and member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), United Kingdom (2000),
and Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) (1995). He has attended several trainings
in leading universities such as the Harvard Business School (2014), University of Edinburgh Business
School (2012) and Lagos Business School (2009).
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Akinwale Olawoye - Chief Compliance Officer

Akinwale Olawoye is the Chief Compliance Officer at Nova Merchant
Bank Limited. Prior to this role, he was the Technical Assistant to two
successive CEOs at the United Bank for Africa Plc and also worked in its
Strategy and Business Transformation unit where he conceptualised and
executed high impact strategic initiatives across all areas of the Bank
and its African subsidiaries. He started his career at Accenture where he
worked as a strategy consultant leading teams on engagements in
leading blue-chip companies covering banking, capital markets,
insurance, electronic payments and fast-moving consumer goods. Mr.
Olawoye served as the founding secretary of both the Bankers’ Committee Subcommittee on
Payment Systems & Infrastructure, responsible for several transformational initiatives in the banking
industry such as oversight of the implementation of the Bank Verification Number (BVN) initiative,
and the Subcommittee on Power which developed the Power Sector Action Plan to address
bottlenecks in securing financing to the Power Sector. He also led a team which in conjunction
with the CBN developed its financial inclusion pilot plan. Mr. Olawoye possesses a B.Sc. in
Computing and Information Systems with Industrial Experience from the University of Manchester
(2003) which included a 1-year industrial placement at IBM UK Ltd. He has attended a wide range
of international trainings covering diverse areas such as strategy, project management,
innovation amongst others.

Obiaajum Chimbo - Chief Risk Officer

Obiaajum Chimbo is the Chief Risk Officer at Nova Merchant Bank
Limited. Prior to this role, he was the Head, Market Risk in Nova MB where
he was responsible for monitoring the Bank's market and liquidity risk. He
has 18 years’ experience in the banking industry covering risk
management, branch operations, internal control and customer
experience management. Prior to joining the Bank, he was the Head,
Market & Liquidity Risk at Access Bank where his responsibilities included
ensuring compliance with Access Bank's market and liquidity risk policies
and procedures in Nigeria and subsidiaries in Ghana, Rwanda, Congo
DRC, Sierra Leone, Gambia and Zambia. He also drove the market and liquidity risk management
stfrategy across Access Bank and periodically provided updates to the Bank’s Assets and Liability
Committee (ALCO) and the Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC). Mr. Chimbo possesses
a B.Sc. in Mathematics from the University of Ibadan (1999) and an M.Sc. in Economics also from
University of llbadan (2002). He is a Certified Risk Specialist and a member of the ACI Financial
Markets Association (2011). He has also attended the Wharton Middle Management Program
(2016).
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Chidinma Ibeawuchi - Head, Human Capital Management

Chidinma Ibeawuchi is the Head, Human Capital Management of Nova
Merchant Bank Limited. She champions the Human Resource Strategy
and People Agenda of the Bank and its subsidiaries. A seasoned
professional with over 16 years’ experience in Strategic Human Resource
Management and Customer Service, majorly within the Financial
Services industry with a stint in the media sector. Prior to joining Nova MB,
Chidinma held various HR positions in First Bank of Nigeria Ltd including
both Generalist and Specialist HR functions covering Talent
Resourcing/Assessment Centre Development, Performance
Management, Workforce Planning, Talent Management, where she made significant
contributions in organizational development, performance & change management and business
strategy. In her last position as Talent Resourcing Coordinator, she had the responsibility of
executing all recruitment activities for the Bank and support to the subsidiaries.
Chidinma Ibeawuchi holds a B.A. in English from Abia State University (2000) and an M.Sc. in
Human Resource Management from Robert Gordon University, Aberdeen, Scotland (2014). She is
an Associate member of both the Chartered Institute of Personnel Management (CIPM), Nigeria
(2014) and Chartered Institute of Personnel Development (CIPD), UK (2014).
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHSIVE INCOME

8 ronth prried
For tho poviond/ oy sndad 27 Dooomber anvied Deconbay
in thousands of Wgerian Nara Notes 2mM8 2017
InErEst ncoma 5 1,876,514 1,224,314
MOSSE expanss ] (373347 [60,878)
Mad Interest incoma 1,504,172 1,162,826
rpasment charges on for aedit kssss T 11,148)
Fea avd cammissian coma 8 23,088 -
Net gais on financsl instruments hald for treding 9 545475
Net forelgn enchange nald 1¢ 302,419 -
Other Income 1,987 .
S e 11 (1,420,382) (743 366)
Iax 080,501 220,280
Mcoms tax oradlt 12 140,394 B0,328

Other conprehemive Inowsc

term that may be subseguentty rectassied to inceme statzreert

Nt changss in fae® value of foenciol assets FYOC| (50,1309

Other camprehansive [oss, mat f rafated tax effects 160,130) =
Totdl COMprenansiv INComa For the: pesrpariod 1 100,958 310874
Basic mxd dlluted sam'n’sw shara (Nalra) 13 7.19 3.19

The acmpamying notes form an integral part of the finances| staternants.
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HOVA MERCHANT BANK LIWITED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A3 8t 31 Dacamier

i thousands uf&am' MNaia Notas 28 2017
Amels

Balances with hanic L 1,185,754 .
Flnancial assets hald far trading 15 3.828.371% -
Loans to hanics and ccher finandal Ingtiutions: 16 3,883,788 )
Loans and advances to aurstomars 17 2427818 23,163
veskrment securities 16 9,222,403 "
Dertvative fmancial asaets 19 20,753 .
Prged asts 20 1182312 .
Proparty and equipment 23 1.213.250 313,884
NTANGRNS atsats 22 727.568 3.066
Ocher asosta 21 B78,583 17,357,341
Daferyad taN Assans 12 294.497 94.497
TREHEE 24,068,159 15,301,750
Liabiias
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Equity

Shars capital 26 16.000,000 16,000,000
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Retalned sammngs 1,115,885 357,408
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Regulatory risk raserve 47,423 .
Totalsquty AR 1631057
Total Febiities wd wquity 24,868,130 17,991,750

The accompany ing notes farm an Integral part of the finandtal stetaments.
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NOVA MERCHANT BANK LINMITED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the peviod:/yadr aiviad 31 Oncambar

in thowsaa ofw Nedra Notes 2018 2011
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MOVA MERTHANT BANK LIM TED
FUNMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Corporets informmtion

Nove Merchant Bark, Limited (“the Bank™] was incorparated on 17 May 2017 n Nigena and B mtended
10 carry on in Nigeria the business of Merchant Barking &s may ba prascribad by the Cantral Bark of

Nigeria (CBN). The address of the regestered office |s 23 Kofo-Abayom| Strect. Victorks tskend, Lagos.

The Bark oltained s merchant banking licence an 13 Decesmber 2017 with a focus on wholesale and
Irwesomant banking.

2. Jummsary of signiicant polcias
The accounting policks adopted in the preparation of the financlal statemant of Nove Merthant Bark
("the Bark™), ars sat oLY below:

2.1 Rasis of preparation

Statament a1 campiiance with Inlensational Financial Reportieg Stasderds
Treﬁmidmmﬁﬂnmmbemmed In accordance with Imm‘lml
Reparting Statards (IFRS) a8 lesued e Intemakionsl Accounting Slandands Board (IASB), tha
provisions of the Companies and Alled A, CAP €20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004
and the Anancial Repoiting Councl Act No 6. 2011.

The Mnancial stalamevks & preseiied i naira and all vahees ane rourdad to the nesrest thousand
000, except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements have been prepared an a historical
coslhmhemptfaﬂwfdlm

0 Darhative francial Instrumants are mess A sd at falr value.
D Non-derivarilve financial instruments at fair value through profit or koss Bre measured at fair vakue,
0 Hold to collect and sell financial asseds ane mesbured at fair valbe,

The preparation of Lhe financlal staternents in cordonmily with IFRS requires the uae of certaln critical
acoounting estimates and judgemants. |t also requires management W execie Hs judgement in the

applying IFRS accouniing policies.
standards, interpretations and smendments eflextive durfng the reporting period

Amenaments 1o the folikwing standzrt(s) became effective in the annual period startdng from 1 January
20a

FRS 9 Finerclal sinereals

IFRS 9 replaces WS 39 for annu periods heginning on or after 1 Jonuary 2018, As pesmmitted, the Bank
has applled the rues of the new standard fram Iha year begimming 1 Januery 2018 and will not restate
the prior periad comparatve nenckal statements.  There was no change In accourking policles as the:

Bank only cammenced banking operatians in January 2018

WFRS 13 Rovase frasn Condracts wiih Cushnnesrs

The 1ASB has lsaued a new standamd for the recogrition of reverwe THIS will replace: (AS 18 which
COvENS conlradls for goods and services and (AS 11 which Gvers conanuetion conraces. The new
standaml & hased on the principie what revenue s recognised when cortrol of @ gooo or service
transfens i a customer — 50 the noGon of control nplaces e eXsting notan of risks and rawands.

The standard parmits a modifled retnospectlve approach for the adoption. undar Lhis approach entites
w%mmlaﬂm&hmkndmmmﬂam whl Fpplication (m
Jaruary 2019), |.& without restat campanaliva pariod. I W apply tha new
wmm:ﬁmaenawwggdmdmmdmmmmmwmmwdle
IFpact on tha BK'S iNANncial Starermaits.
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standends, Intsrpretations and smendments sTleciive during the reporting period

WRS 1€ Learms

This standard was introducad by IASE I repiace IAS 17 - Laases in January 2016, IFRS 16 requires
lmmamm? Thpf“ an mmammmmmewawwww{mm
uniat LAS 1 slandad two tian Besees - sats (& I
computers) and shortterm leases (le.. Imm:mammnuhznmorésjm
commancemant dabe of a leass, a eses will racognisa a i > MAKA IDIER DAUNSNKS (L6., ths leate
[kbIMty) and an asset representing the rigt to use the underiying asset duning the kease term (l.e., the
right-of-wss asast).

Licsaas Wil be raquirad to sapirately recoonise tha (ntArest expsiss o e Irasa (labillyy and tha

depreclatbnapawemmerw-ofmm Lsmﬁllbemiedwmmemlmem

upot tha occunrences of COEAIN SVNRS (LG, 4 Changs in the laase term, a changa In fubure leasa

payments resulting from a change In an xarmwedmdaumtfmemm). The lessee

ﬂﬁmllg;nglmhtmﬁdﬂnmmldhbﬁ&ﬂﬂlynmmmmh
gl .

mmmmunmwwmmﬁpmhmn

Iy. 8 Wssar continms to ol its ksaoas a8 Bases of TINance Wases. and Lo
mn ﬂmemt)pesofleasasd . 0n contract. It clorifles that a servicing
Catract sl nciladas & Tee Can const/iie continuing Fwohement in & MNnanclal assel. An entity must
agsess the nature of the fee and armrangament memmmmmmhwu
mmmwdm:mm The standard is effectve for fnancial years
commencing on or efter Jamery 1, 2019, The Is still zssessing the impact of the standand,

Ewrty ndoption of Starierds

A number of new standands and ametdmenis to Aandands are effective for annwal
after 1 Jarwary 2018 and sarliar application k& permilted. Hm.ﬂuﬂaklnsmtaﬂq:l
such standards in preparing these fikancial staterments.

2.2 Foreign curvency transhation

2.2.1 Ramctionat and ANTECY
Ikerms induded In the financlal stalements ars measured using the ¢ of ihe primary econamic
ervirorment In which the Bank operates (the functonal asmency”). The saements of the

Banh are presanted in Niger ian nairs, whidh & the functiaral cumancy of the Bank.

2.2.2 Traraactinns amd balanons
Transactions [n foreign curencles are inttialy recorded at the funciiona) cmency SpoL rates at the date
tha Iransact ion firsk quaifies for recognition.

Nonelary assets and Rabililies denominated in forelgn oaTendes are rarsisted al the lunctiaral
CLATeNCY SpKR rave of exhange at the reporang date. arking on settiement or ansiation of
monatary ems ara racoghisad i e INCoima STalBmant.

Faraign eschanga gains and lnsses resulting rom the sertemant of foraign transactions and
from the yeor end amiation of monetary assets and lenadermtmedm CUTencles are

mmgisadlnﬂnlmmmamptﬂmdafumﬂh ity as or lassas froin Quakmying
cashfiow heogng Instrumernts or qualifying net Iresirment hed o m

leaelgnew:mgegataaﬁbmwmgmbﬂﬁlmmmmaemmhm
Iheome smremat within tha comesponding tam. Foraign exchange gains and losses on othar

canpehermtm tems are presented In other comprehensive Income within the comespondng
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2.3 mterest income and sxpense

Iheerest income and apansa for all isrest-eaming and imtans-baaring financial Mstnamanes are
recognised In the Incame stetement within “iterest INcome™ end “Interest expense” uging the effective
Intaresr mathod.

The sffattiva Iniarast rate is te rata that exactly dscounis ta estinatd future cish paymaits and
receqiy the expected Kfe of the financial asset or (kbIRy tor, where appropriate. the next re-
pricing data) t0 T carmying ANount of Lhe financial assat or [labiky. WHen calouisting the affective
Interest rate. the Bank estanates future cosh ficwa considering all contractual teyms of the fnancea)
Instrumant s buk not fubre crad it losses

Muwammmmmmmm:uum.m
€0osts, and discounts or premiums that are an itegral part of the effective rate,

Transaction costs are Incremental costs that are directly attribatabie to the acquisibon, issue or
disposal of a finavial asset ar [BDIRY.

Intaract IRooe ad i e 000e stataniant Bciaie:

D mmﬂu#m%l%mmﬁaawﬂs&dme&da@mmeﬁm
intaresi rats basis.

D Wterest on financlal assets measured at far value through profit or loss cakwated on on effective
itaresi rats basis.

D m?ﬁmmmmhrmmwwmmmeﬂmm

2.4 Flnancial assets and Babikties

2.4.1 Inifial reCOQITtON ANd NabEs e

Finenclal assets and firancial llabilitles are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the
cantractual provisiors of tha instrument. Regulir wiy punchases and Bales of Mnarcial SSetE ara
recognised on trade-date. the datean which the Bark commits to purthase or sell the asset,

AL inklal recognition. the Bank measures a financial asset or finenclal Kabiity at its far value plus or
minus, i the case of a MNnenclal assat or Thancial not at Tair vakse through prof or boss,
transaction costs thet are ncremental and directly attr 1o the acquiskion or ksue of the
Thancial aseét or Nhancial Babiity, such &S feas shd CHTIMBSIONS. Trarnssction costs of Tind i &sels
and fnancial kabiities camied at fair volwe throwgh profit or koss arg expensed In profit or loss,
IrrmenSately arter iial v Itiwe an credit J0ss (ECL) Allowance I8 ¥ sad Tor Tl
agsets arg measwred at <ost and invastments [n debt instruments at FYOCl

When the falr valuz of finenclal assets and |bilities differs from the transaction prica on Inltial
recoghition. the antlty recognises the differenca as follows:

| whan the fai vale B evidenced by a quoted price in an active markat for an idantlcal assel of
lbiiky (. 2 level 1 Input) or based on a tedhnique that uses only data from obsarvable
markets, the difference IS recognised &s a gaan of loss,

IL in all othey cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of the recagnition of deferred day one
profk ar less is determined individually. it i sither amortised over the ife of the instrument, d

untll the: Insirument’s falr value can be determined using market obisarvable ingputs, o realised through
settlament
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2.4.2.7 Clasaiication and suviequant messrement

Toummmnmwmmmmm , IFRS B requires all Finacial assats, soapt
equty istruments and dematives. to be assessed on 2 combination of the entty’s husmess
madal for manaqing the assats and e Nttrunants’ contractual Cash Mow char ACtarstics.

Financial assets are chastified iala 1he Fallowings:

0 Amortised cosl

D Fair Value through Other Comprehenshve Income (FVOCH
0 Falr Vahe through Profit or Loss (FYTFL)

Firanclal assets are chissified based on e business moced and thelr cordractual terms.

a) Fisancial a3sets measured ot amortived wost

Assets that are held far collaction of contrachual cashflors where thase cashflows represant slely
payment of principal and inkerest (SPPL. and that are nol designaled at FYPL are imeasuted al
amarticerd cost. Tha amounts of thess ascels is adjusted by any expected aredit Inss alloaance
recognised IMerest income mmmmmasmmammn
tha siatamend of comprehensive incoma.

b) Fisancial axsat s meesred ot FVYOCH

Financial assets that are hedd for collection of contracual cash flows and for seling the assets. whem
tha assets each fows represant mmampﬂmmnﬁ.mﬂmmmmwat
FVAL, alenmmdafhkva ather comprehenshe Income (FVOCT), Mowvements in the
Camying amount are takan thwough OCI, axcepl for the recogniion of impairmalt gains or losses,
Immmﬂxﬁgnmmegabsmbmmmemmbwmm

recogiisad in profit of 1ss. When the Minancial asset i isod, the cumulaiive galh o loss
mkmﬂwﬂlnmbmwmmwﬂ_ or ks and recognised 35 “Net

¢} Fimancial ssvets mwasured &t FYTPL

Astars that do hot Meet 1he critsria for amortised cost of FYOCT Ara maasuad at fal valua
profk or b33, A gan or K059 an dett wvestment that s subsequentty measswed et foir Yalue through
proltar [oss and s ot of a .} n or bss anvt n the
Drofik o loss Sateert i et s on el SIS ok for a0k 1 0 per d Iwhich
IF arises, Lnisss K arisas from deit Inslrumerms ihat ware desigiated al fair vakss OF which are nat haid
for tradmg. In which case they are presented separately a5 ‘Net vestment Income”.

d) Exqity insrmment s
EQuItY MRSty Limenis ane sty wnents that nmet the dafiniion of equity Iram tha Basrs e Kt
5. instruments that do not camain a contractual abligetion to pay and that evidence a | interast
I e issuar's nel assets,

E@nylmmaemmawm.. mhssanehabnlsmmdeﬁmﬂmﬁmnﬁm
masafwaquty measwed at FYTPL in fak value are recognizad as R

i the statement of ihcome. The can efect to cassily nonrading equity
ImirmrtsatFVOCl.ﬂ\seieubnwnlhewadfwwtah vestments for strategic or
texin [vestment pur poses. The FYOCI election is made upon | recognition. on an Instrune:
instrumant besis and pnee mada s irevacahla.
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9) Inpeirment
Ths Bank assassas an A forward looking basis the axpacted credi loscas associated with ks dabt

Instruments carried at amortised cost and FYOC], The impairment methodology applied depends on
whathar there his Daan & rease in credi rek. This apyHies to all amoviized Cost T cial
agsets, deht securities ol as FVOQ1, ofF-balance sheet koan commitments and financial guaramtee
cantracts, Equity Instrumerks and MNranclal #8361 measured al FYTPL ana iol subDctad o impaiinient
ungdar FRS 9,

1) Modifcatlon

when the contractual terms of a Tinancial 356t are medified, the Bank evalates whethey the cash flows
af 1he mdified assst ae substantially diffarent. If the cash fows are subsian different, then tha
cantractual rights to cash fiows from the arigiral financial asset are deetned to have expired. b this
casa, the original finandal asset kmww:mmumlsrmomdxhkmm
Any difference betrreen the amartized cost and the present value of the estimated & cash fiows of
the mmdifled essst ar considaration received on derscognition s recarded 8s a separeie line ktem i
profk or oss a3 “gels and losses artsing friom the derecognition of tnanclal a3ses measured 8t
amartized ast’.

IF iha cash flows of the modilied asast camiad e amormized Cost are noe subshreialy diffaran, tan tha
madification does not result In derecognition of the fnerclal asset. I this case. the Bank recalculates
tha grass cantying amount. of 1he Tinantial asset and retognlzas tha amourt arising fram adjusting the
qmswqtomutasammmm«lmhm@ or jo3s &3 pert of Mmpalrent charge Tor
tha year.

Iy detentnining whati a modification to 1enms of a financlal aseel is substantial of Ot o the axisting
tenms. the Bark will conmder the followng non-exbiaustive critena,

CuariRative criteria

A modification would lead o ion of 8x financial asset and recogrition of a natw financial
asset, e, substanteal modication, f the desc present value of the cash flows under the rew
tarme, inchuding any faes racaived nat of any lees paid and discouried uting the ariginal affectiva
Interest rate. ks at keast 10 per cent different the discounted present volue of the remaining cash
Tws of the anigingl TMinancial assel. h addiion o e above, 1ha bark shall B0 cansider qualitative
factors as detalied below.

Qualltatlve critorie

$comrivs where modficatisss will foad to derecognition of exdsting loan and recognition of a ew
mumm
The exchange of a lban for another financlal assst with substantially different contraciual terms
and conditions such & the restruchering of a loan te @ boind: carversion of a loan W0 an equity
instrument of the barower
0 Rodlupof nkerest nto a single bullet paymer of Inerest arxt principal at the end of the loan term
0 Camersian of @ laan from ane asTancy b another asrency
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CGther factors t» be considered:

Extenaion of meturity dates I the terms of a fsvancial Bsset are renegotiated ar modifed o an existing
Thancial aseel B raplacad wilh 3 new ae due 10 Tnancial AiTicukias of the DOTowsr, then an
agsessmert is made of whether the financial assat should be derecognized (see above) end ECL are
meatunad at [oB0ws:

If the rastrociur ing will not vesult n o of the existing asset. than Lhe
¢zsh ﬂmwaﬁgfmntl:l?ndlfbd el m%kmd In calculaling the cash shartfalls from
the: existing asset.

If the expected restructuriong will resull in cerecognition of the existing asset. then the expected Tair
value of the new asset |s reated as the final cash flow from the existing financlal asset at the time of its

derzcogridon.

'?mmmwsamlm only when the contrachual rights 1o the cash flovws fram the
asset expires or R ransfers the inancial asset and substarriolty all the risks and resartds of

of e assal 10 anothar entiry. If the Bark neithar Dransfars nor retains aubsmntially ol 1ha risis and
rewarss of ownership and continues to contro| the transferred asset, the Bark recognises [ts retained
Intarest in 1ha asser and an essaciated Eability for amounts it may have 10 pay. If tha Bank retains
ubstantielly 8l the rtsks eno rewands of ownership of' a transferred inenclal set, the Bark condinues

WNMUBMNOMNWQMHMIMMMWW

On derecognition of a financkal asset the arfference Detween the carryng amount of the asset (or the
CATYING AMOount aBocaled 10 tha portion of the assat transfarred), and the sum of (i) tha cansideration

Onchading any new asset obtaned (ess any new |labiiy assumed) and () amy cumutative gam
Or 10st that had bean recognizad i ofher Comprehensive INCOME |$ racognized in profit or 10ss.

Colistaral fumishad by tha Bank uder standard repurchass agrssmaents and sacurities isiding and
transactions ere not derecognised because the Bank retains substantially all the risks and

mmwammmmwpm.wmammwmn
not

Z.4.3. Firancial Babiliies

Firenciol Rablliiios ore clussifiod into sse of 1the Tollowing meassromen] cetogorios:
0 Amovtised cost

0 Falr Value through Arofit or Loss (FYTPL)

mmmnwmw‘:ﬁww

Financial [labiitles accounted far at falr vale thraugh profit or Ioss fall ko two categories which are
financial liebilitles held for ireding and finandal |lahilitles designated et fair value profit ar bbss
on Inceptan, Financial (labliides at falr vale through pmft or (055 are finoncial [tsbiies held for
trading. A financial Rabilily is classified as held far Irading ¥ & i inosed principally far the purpose of
repunchasing It in the near term or IF It s part: of a partfalio of kdentified mstruments that are
manafed mgathar and for which thara 15 avidence of A resent aciul paren of sharr-lenm profit-taking.
Der vaktves are also categorized 83 held for trading Uniess they are designated end effiective a3 hedging
Instrumants.

Gains and 105555 arising rom changes in Tair walua of financial liabliies classified as held for trading are
inciunded in the Income steternent and are reported a8 Net gara/(lngses) on fmancial Instruments
classifiad as haid for rading'. INterest axpanses on financial Eabikias hald far rading are Inchxdad in
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b) Financial kekilities ot smortised cost

Financial llabites that ars not ciassifiad ar fa vahse Hwough profic o joss fall inko this catagory and
are meemwed at amortesed cost using the effective Interest rate method. Financial [labllitles messured
AT ANOCTISAd CORT Ane BRPASKS i DANKS OF CLISLOMSeS, OThar borrowed finvis, debt seouriies In ssua
for whach the falr value option I3 nat appied, corvertible bonds and subordinated delits,

o of tinanciet Kabllites
Financial Babiitles are mgwmmmowm {La whiti tha abligation spacifiad In the

carmtract i discharged, oF expires)

The exchange hetween the Bank and its original lenders of debt Instruments wath substantially different
tarims as well a8 subsiariial modifications of ths tanns of the existing Tinancial liabilkies, ars accountsd
for as an extinguishrment of the terms of the ariginal (labdity and the recognition of a new llablity. The
tariTs are substantially diffanst if tha discounbed prasant valus of tha cash fiows unded tha naw tenns,
Inciuding arry fees pald net of ary fees recetved and discounted using the origina) effective interest rate.
lsnm1mammmmmuprmmuu»mmhmammmwml
finencial [kbIKy. In addibon, other qualitative factors such a5 curency that the Instrument 5

dencininzated in, changas ths type off inbenest rate, Nkw corersion faatunes attachad to ths nsrumait
and chonge m covenants are also takan Inta conslderation. If an exchange of debt instruments or

madification of trma ks accountad far a8 an » S CORIS o Teds incUNTad ars recognised
xmdﬁemumdmm ﬂempewmtamnbnmmedfaas
costs or Feas incurad adjust tha cavying amount of the Babilty and are

mﬂsedmmeremattgrelmdmenmm Ity.

2.4.4 Foanclal gueremive contrects and lean commitmenty

Firancial guarantse CONacis aa ciracts that require the Bausr to make specified 10
reimburse the holder for a koss it Incurs becausa a spedified debtar falls to make payments dug, n
socordance with te [enns of a celX instrLment. Such Mnancial quar anteas are 0 Datke, il
institutions and others on bebalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafls and berking Fac|iies.

Finenclal guarantes comracts are initially measured at far valug add subsequentty mesaurad at the
highes of:

0 Theamount of e ioss allowance
0 The premism recered on nkial recognition less Income recognised in accordence wikh the

prircples of IFRS 15

l_omoommamﬁm by the Bank are matswu ed & the anount of the loss allwanca, The Bank
commitment to provide [oems &t a below-market imterest rate or thet can be
mmhm%wmam@mm | Instrurnent.

For foan camimitrents and financhl guarantee conbiacis. the loss allowance ks recognised &s a
provisibn. However, far contracts that mchude both a koan and an undrewn commitmant. and the Bark
cmmybmﬂmmawmuﬁdibmmmwmmﬁmﬂmﬂmmm
Inan campanent, the sxpacted credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised together with
the loas allowance for the loan. To the extent that the cormbined expected credit losses exceed the gross

carying amount of the Inan, the expectad credit lnsses are recognisad as a provision.
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2.4.5. Cash and cash

Camh and cach equivAIMTS € raferrad to it tha stalament of cash flows comprise, daposit haid at call
‘with banks, other ghort term bighly Nquid investment, berk ovesdrafit, cagh portion of imvestments m
foreign securitias, bark balancas With forekn banks, amdry cunancies balancas and Uims deposits
which are readity convertitle Inte cash vrth 3 maturity of three months or less,

z.i.nopwtym

wnmmnmmuw latiah and accunulated impainment
meuﬁmm%%m?mmﬁ mwmmmu?u Lunf
repleced at Imenvats. the Bark recognises such parts as ndvoval assets with specific nes and

dapreciates them accardnggy.
All Othar repair and mMalntanance costs ans recognisad I income salement A incurred,

Subsaquett coats are inciuded i tha ssel's CATYING SMOUNL O recogNisad &8 A separate 45361, ¥S
. only when & is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
thr Bank and e COEE OF L itam can be Misasured rallably, The canrying amaunt of the replaced part &

derscognised,

Depreciation is caloudeted using the sbraight-Iine method to write down the cost of property and
to thedr nesbdual vales ovier thelr estimated usehd Ives. The Bank CONENeNces Gapvacilion
whenthe asset is evalkabla for use. Land is not depreclated,

v office W?SS“U

QU = Jours
ﬂmw\uﬂdm

and -5
mmm@:& s
Leasehold [rrprovement - 10 years

The resldual vakees. usefd lves and methods of depredation of property and equgnent are reviewed
at sach finencial year end and adusiad prospectively, IF appropriale.

2.8 miwrgibla sovatx

Intangible: assers acquired separately are measured on infidal recognition & cost. Following Inltial
tan, imangible esets are cariad ot arst s any sccamulated amorisation and scasmulated

Impa tosses. I amy. Inermaity gencrated intangies. extluding capitalised developmer costs, are

nat caphislisad and the related expendilure ks reflected in Income statement in the pariod In which the

ewpenditure Js Incurred,

The useful ives of itangbb assels are as3es3ed as finkte,
Intangibie: asses with finke (Wes are amortked over the expected useful Iife and assessed for

Irpainmant whenever tharea is an indicalion Mhal the innngibie acser may ba impadrad. Tha armortiextion
period and the amordsation method for an imtancghie asset with a finite usefid (e B reviewed ot keost at

tha and of each reparting pariod Cha ih the axpecind 1sahd e or tha aspacred pairemn of
mwmmamemnhwﬁumawhmmmmmmnm
amortsatian pariod o method, as , and are treated 35 ChanNges In ACCOUNNG astimates. The

amortisation experse on nkang eassetswhhﬁﬂelmbrwogisedhlmmsmtwnn
amordsatian of intangibie ssets.

Gains or bssas arising from de-rac limm'animmglmmereMasmalm

hetween the net disposal pmoesds and the carmyng emaurt ¢ the agset and are recagnisad In income
statamam whith tha asset is deracognised.
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2.7. pairment of nor-financiat assets

The Bank sssascas at aach raporiing date, whathar thare i an indication that an assat may ba
Impaired, If army incacation exists. or when armual smpainment testing for an asaet Is requed, the Bark
SIMALSS tha ASTATS NECOVITADIE AMOLNT. AN t5et'S recowarable Anount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-genaratng unit's (CGU) fabr vake k2ss costs of dispasal and s value Inuse, Recoverabie amowrt i
dstarminad for an Indvidual a5eet, Lhisss 14 stk doss mtgmnumnmmm largsty
ingependett of those from other assets or band of assets. When the carmying amount of an asset or CGU
SxcANS S recouarabie ATOUNE, the ASIel i Cantidarsd impaired and it writtan dowt to RS recovaraie
MR,

In assessing value inuse, the estimated fullire cash flows are discounted Yo thelr present value using a
prtax dsCount rata thik reflects current markel assassmants of e Uime value of Moy and tha rigks
gpecific to the assat. (n determining fair value less costs of disposal. recent markat ransactions are
taken into sccount. I 1o such ransections cin be icentined, mwmmmmm
These catculations are camoborated by vakmtion mukiples. quoted prices for publicly breded
campanies of olhar avallable falr vakue indicators.

The Bank basas ke linpairment calculation on detaiad budgets and fovecast caloufations, which ara
prepared saparatety for each of the Bank's CGUs to which the individual assals are allocatad, These

and forecast calcugadions genevally cover a pevind of Tive years, Formwpaitm.akng{mn
growthrale s calkoulated and applied o projed future cash flows afiar the fifth year.

Far ascets exchdding , an esesgmant & made at each reporting date o delarming whether
there is an indicakion tmmlyremgmmm'nthmwmmm«mmmt
such indication exksts, the Bark estimales the assel’s ar OGU's recovarable amourt. A ly
recogniszd Impaimmeant [09s £ reversed onty Iif there has been a change In the assumptians used 10
determine the asset's recvarable amount since 1he st impainment less was recognised. The revarsal
13 Imited 3o that the canrying amount of the asset does not excesd IS recoveraie amourt, nor exceed

tha camying amount that would have been detarmined, net of de on, had no Impaiment loss
hesn recognised for the asset In prior years. Such reversal ks Inthe Incorme: statement.
2.8, Provisions

Provisions are recognisad whan tha Bank has a presam obiligetion (legal or cONSTCTVE) & A rasulr of
past events, and & 18 probeble that an outfiew of resources embodying economi: benefits wil be
requined b serda e ohligarion, and a reliabla estinam ca ba made of the amount of tha ohligaton.
when the effect of the time: velae of maoney B material, the Bank detrermines the: leveld of provision by

discouning tha expeciad cash NOWS At a pra-tax rata reflecting the curnant ratas spacific to tha lability.

The expense raldtig to any provisian is presantad i tha Incoine Statemant net of any raimbursement i
other operating expenses

2.0 Taxes

Z.0.7, Curent tax

CUNPATt tax assats and Iabilies for tha cUTAm and priar years ae maasiiad at e amount expactad
to be recovered from, or pald to, the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax [aws used to

the Aol ans thosa thal ane enaciad, oF substariively anactad, by tha rparting date in the countries
where the Bank operates and generates taxabie inwome,

gfurankmg:m redating to mmmomggw:mawmnﬁmmw
profit or Managamant pariodcally ovaluatas taan ratums respect
sttuations In which applicable tax regutations are subject to Interpretation and estabishes provisions
whare appropriate. Detaled distiosures ara providaed i te notss.
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2.9.Z. Deteired 1ax

Deferrad tax is providad on 1amMParary dffarencas af tha reporting data batwesn th tax basas of sesats

and (ebllthes and thedr carmying amounts for financial reporting pLrposes.

D where the deferred tax llabdity artses from the initiel recognation of goodwill or of an
lliabllity In a trasaction that Is nat a Business combinalion and, at the tme of tha tra
affects nelther the accounting profit nor taxabie profit or loss

D Inrespect of taxabie temporary differences assocated with investments [n ubsidianies. where the
tining of the reversal of te temporary diTarences can ba cantrolied and it is prababie that the
temporery differences will not reverse Inthe foreseeable future,

The camying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

i

extent baEL R is 1o | MHMMMWIHNMWOLONM!GM[U
the deferred tax assat to be wtifsad. Unrecognised tax assets are reassessed at each i
d8ke and are to the extent thil R Decornes proDabie that fuiure taxabie profit will eBow tha

deferred tax asset to he recovared.

Deferred tax assets and Eabilithes arg measured at the tax rates that ere expected 1o apply In the year
wihath 1he #3361 S realised or the [labliity s satlie, Dersed on tax rates (and tax faws) that have Deen
enacted or substantively enactad at the reporting date-

Currant and deferred taxes are as mcome tax benefits or expensas in the Income staiement
for tax vefated to the fair remeasureinent of avallable-for-saka assets, foreig exchanga
differencas and e rel moverment on ¢ash Now which are charged or credited to OC1, These

encepions are ammzredmrmmwm incotne statement Logether with the respective
In. The

deferTed Ioss ar alsn recognises the tax cansequences of payments and ssuing asts,
redaled mﬁwgatmmﬂmmmm &5 equily, directly iequity.

The Bank only off-sets s deferred tad assets against 1Dl Ries when there s both a legal right to offsex
ard il is the Bank’s intention to seitle an 8 net besis.

2.5.%. Enployas bersaliia

Doflend coriribulise plan

The Bark operates a defined contribution pension plan i acoordance with the Pension keform Act,
Linder tha , the contrbutes 6% of basic salary, and allowances and tha
BammpmhM1;gn mM.menngngmmPFMmmld
tha Bani's staff on a monthly besis The Bank has no furthar payment obligallons ance tha
comributions have been paxd. Comtriukion payable i recorded a3 an spense under “personnzd
exparss. Unpaid contribudions ars recarded es a Kability.

Short-iarm amployoa hanatits

Short-tesTn employee benefit obligations ane messured on en unoiscounted hash amd are expensed 89
tha relatad servica s provided. A liahlliry ts racognisad fior ha amour expecren 16 ba pald undar shart-
tenm empioyee benefits if the Bank has a present legal o comtructive obllgation ¥ pay this amout 83
a resuk of patt senvice prosided by te aimplayas and the obigalion can be estimatad rellably.



84

EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

NOVA WERTHAMNT DANK LIMTED
SUMNARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL ICIES - Corrtinesd
3.0 Critical sccounting sstirmates and

Thaee diecibsures the commaniary oh financial rigk managainent. Estmas where
management hos | udgermnents ore;
(b Amowences for creot kosses

() Asssssms of recauarability of dafarred tay assars

Estinaas and ae continially avahusted. Thay ara basad an histarical axperiance and othar
factors, noluding expectations of future events that may hove a financkal impact on the entty and that
Ara Déllevad 10 Dé raasonabis Ldar' tha circLimstances.

The praparation of fnavial statamants regquires the usa of accounting estimates which, by dafinion,
will seioom equal the actual results, Management also needs to exercise judgement In epphying the
BANK's BCCOUING policins.

msmpramanummorunmumma degres of Judgainent or compisdtiy,
and major sources of estwation uncestainty that heve a kcant risk of resuiting In @ matena)
within the naxt financial ysar. Dataliad mmmmmmammnm
15 included In the refated notes together with Informetion about the basls of calouation for
a8ch Affectad |ing Ran [N the financial statements,

Neaturensnl off the sxpected cradi 10ss ABOMINCH

The measurement of the expected credit [oss allowance for financlal assets measured at amortised cost
and FYOCH ks an area that the Lse of complax madals and significant azsiemptions about fubra
ecanomic. conditions and It behavioar fe.g. the likelhood of customens defauking and the resuiting
14551 8

A humber of cant e aBo v n Ing tha Ireineiis or
ECL?;as J0genels eqired in applying the accourting rigu
mmmmmor NCant iy eass incradit risk
ll Choosing appropriste s end assurmptions for the measurement of ECL o
0 Establishing the numbar and retalive of Tarward- scererios for each
ke ond the cssocied ECLard T S -
D Estabiilshing groupis ov sinikar Tinncial sraseds for the pUrpases of measuing ECL

Kay sources of estimation uncertainty

. Allswances for cradit lessas
Loans and advances to kanis and customars ere accoumed for at emortised cosl and are evaluated for
Irrpainment on & besks deseribed in acoouming poicy (3ce note 2. 4)

nemmmamwmmmmsewmmaumal of Minancial assets
m particular, the estimation of the amount amd iming of fubure cash flows and

when cetey Iivpasr ment. losses and the assessiment of a significant increase in
credit risk. Thess estimates are drven by a number of factars, changes in which can resull in different
leves of allowarces.

The Bark's ECL cakudalions are outputs of complen modeds with a number of underlying
regariing the cholca of wariable inpuls and thelr nterdependancles. Elemenis of the ECL modets that

are consacered acoounting juogements and estimates mdude:

+ The Bark's Intemal credit grading moded. which assigrs PDs to the Individual prades

~ The Bark’s aiteria for assessing f thare has been a significant Increase in gt risk ad =
aliowances for financial assets should be measwed on @ Ketime ECL bask and the qualtative
assesanert
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Koy sourcey of estimation uncerteinty

#. Awwances for credit ivsaes
- Thasagméntation of Minancial assats whin thair ECL IS 255a55ad on & ColisCiive hasis
+ Develgpment of ECL modess, INchadmng the various formukks and the: choice of inputs
-~ Datarminalion of associations Detveahs MACTCOCONGINIC SCRNAMCS and, econaimic Inputs, suth As
smuwawmsppw bsan?u'm e wtoaormm
- MACTOMONDMIC SCANAT
Wire okhg macro probability weighlings,

it has been the Bank's palicy to regularly review its models in the cartext of actual loss experience and
ST Whet) Necessary.

of defeiTed fax assals
The deferred tax assats include an amourt of 284 milllon (201 7: N4 milcn) which rekates to mainly
caried forward Lax losses of the Bank These knses arica due o natwre of the Bark's
Income from sonrities. The Bank has concluded that the deforred assats wlll be
recovar abie the estimsted fubae Laxabde income based on the approved buenees plans and

budﬁs for the Bank. The Bark is expected to generate taxable Income from 2020 ormwards, The bosses
can be caied forvand indefinitely and Fave no expiry date.

3.1 Valuation of financial instrunsents

The tahle below analysss firanclal and nanfinancial instruments meaasred at Fair value at the end of
the firancial year. by the leved in the falr value hierarchy o which the fal value measuremend i
categorisad:

Recuming fair waiow messorsments

Jo thousands of Sigeria Mlai 2 Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Tekal

Assels

Financial inst rumont hold fer tracing

« Treasury bills 3828375 . 3,028,315

- Derhvat ive financial asses 20.753 - 20.763

Pledyed azsets

- Teeagury bills 1,182.312 . 1192312

eostment securitios ot FYO0D

« Treagury bills B222.403 . 9,222,403

14,2831843 - 14203343

Lixtiitics

Derhative financial lkebilties - 87.31% 87.315
- B7 314 27,319

There were ro brartfiers betwaan levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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3.7.2 The camying vake of financlal asses and llabimties that are not measured at far vake
Approximate thair fair vaives,

3.1.3 Recagnised fair vakis essurensnts

Financial instusants in level 1
The fair vakue of finenclal instruments fraded in ective merkets i based on quoted merket prices at the
bakince shast dide. A market 1S regardad i active I quoted prices ane readily and reguisrly sval bl

fmnmeummdeaiw broker. industry group. pricing service, or regulatory agency. and those

actual and reguisrty COCLIMNg Market Warsacions on an amn's mma
mek&mfﬁmeassetswd the group 5 the cument u
Ihstruments are includad i Lavel 1. instrumants in Level 1 corprise primarlly cla as
trading securities or available for sale Investments.

Firnencisl imsirusant x in level 2

The far vale of firancial stnaments that ane not traded in an active market ane dexermined by Using
valualion s These vakation maxim!ss the u=e of dbservable markst data wheme i

13 avalible and redy as litide as possible on entity specifc estirmetes. If all significant inpuis required Lo
fair valua an instrumenl are disarvable, the instrnament ks included Inlevel 2.

IF one or mare of iflcant s s nol basad an ohsarvahls markst dete, the istrument &
Inchuded n Leved 3, wgmmmmmmmtmlmm

(§ Qunted markst prices ar dealer quartes far similar nstruments;

(W) The fair value of forward foreign exchangs conracts B determined vsing Torward exchange rates &
e balanda sheat s, with the resulting e discounind back Lo prasant valen;

(W) Other techniques. such a3 discounted cash T analysks. are used 10 determine Tair value for the
remaiing Mhanclal nstruments.

Financial iInthnusonts in lovel 3
There were no keved 3 financial Instruments with recurming fair value measurements as at yesr end.

4.2 Finowchul brmmerits
Tha Bark's finawcial Inshronas wra categor ded &4 ststed bl ow:

Dataaber 2014 il assok s Anewciul
A Sir-valg
At tolr volww | tirough otier & ol vahen

ProtR | comprahensive mmrrn' AL smwrtised
i Chovsamce of Wiperien Nabs of e DA et COM.

Firwwciel svrely

Bnlarces uwih barks - - 1,196,794

Frowwio) sssets teid for trading - - 3.820.278

Dartyatize inanci<l e8NS 20763 = -

Lgonss to baries ovd ot her Mmoot kit - - 3,880,788

Loans ki sXIVESE A8 {3 CUBDIDESS - - 2,421 877

NHRSTRENT SOCiriniees & F/T O - 922 403 - - .
Pedged aeets - 1.19R312 - - -
Quhwer asses - - 1.1€8 604 -

Fiamoles Satiiictes

Deerlvatve: firmnokat Kot s - - - €n318 .

Dwo W other Nnarcidl NTEwions - - - - 4Z7.787

Dwe W customers - - - - 6.066.636

Other IabkEs - - - - 838,760
20,780 IDA14)W_ L5 0K K76 A Jmon
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2.5 The Cibile hafoet Mta#08 the CHNEtion of each chicst oF Saancanl sasel & Sed KabiEed. et Hir Sy vallite.

Por wioe ]
CMUGEMNON Acrdsitsen P0G Lishiesac  Fecsl caryieg

i Mremccals wf Migertecriiak s ol e Farvem
BRHNCRS W s . LT . - 1196794 1196704
Fmaniel Ikumeershekl F ratkiy 2628373 . . . AMND 3420318
Dt finarcisg basam 0.m3 . - - 2183 20783
Loars to berks ard other finon: Ll institu - 3,883,766 - - 9585 708 3. 883 785
LOSTG 450 KVDNEES o CORDMGHY . 2427.818 . . 47818 2A27.009
Phuciecd ot < . -
-Tremary Gis - - 129,041 - 125041 123,041
-Brds . SR . 10WET1 1008271
Wiae it szcuriies s FAOCT . . n2c2A08 . A222008  B222400

AN EDLED_10AN.THe - ZIANTE_ AT
Dot Inarcist Ao . : . .30 RTINS ¥ T
D b0 isarcial eNRution® . FreRry) . . ATRY  4eTTeY
Lo o aetomess - 5088 806 - - 4,086 098 5,054 585
Dutee Sotimig . 24 0he . 20061 s

. w . l?_hlll Eﬂ l’&“

4
mﬁ*ﬁmm managing capital, which i a broader concept than the ‘equity” on the face
af the statement of finandal paslion, are-

) Ta with the capital requirements sel bry the Cantral Bark of Nigari:
Il To safeguand the Bank's 1o continue 35 8 Qolng conoesm <0 that k can corbwe: to provide
redunts for shareholders and benafits far ather stalalnldars; amd

W) i reairiain a Strong capltal base 10 suppart the: dexelopmern of ks business,

The capital adequacy ratio b the quotient of the capital base of the Bark and the Bark's riek welghted
assef base. In abcondanes with Cantral Bank of Ngeria r 2 minimum ralio of 10X i lnba

maktained for merchant barks, The Standardised has been adoged In computing the risk
weightad scsers lor Cradit, Opanalion.

The Ital sricely obsarvad whan . The Bark's
captea) manmm“mwmw ; e S

- Tier 7 capitak This Includes orcinary sherc cepltal, share pramium, retoined esmings and odher
mmmmgb;a latory resares. imangible assers, deferred tax Jesets and Ivasimant in
bsiolaries were B from Tler | capial Tor cepital adequacy purposes: and

- Thar 2 copilak This inchudes fad Wale reserves, bransiation resenves with

Pl opl - foreigh currancy adquestmants
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I Cncvonds of Wigerien Nabe 33-Ouc-38  B4-Onc-17
Toor ¥ cupital
Orclnery shars capitsl 18,000,000  W,000,000
Fot wiowd wemings 1115608 157203
CANBr roarves. AE5,785 153,173
Shorahoidors fwxd VL4 NG
sy
FEl vel D3 MBOaN v B0, 130 .
Tt Oe 1 1L000 801 16290578
Lets:
Deef'ory oo o wscts 204497 84,297
RagUESINY sk reSNYS 47,428 .
Intongitl o o ts 727,888 3046
1,063,484 97,563
Apd Tier 1 162067 412013
Jwr2 .
Tokat raguaniory caphal 16402067 W 412013
Rtk wakgurert sty 1210842 8SE73
Toral requisiery capital enprastssd £1.3 parcaniens of botal kel ghaad assads 230.90% 2450 £OK

Toeal tiar 1 oapital 3aprasssd 66 B PerTwrtngs oF i sk-wel e £5ets.

230.90% 2450,90%
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INCarest Moo
hmﬁoﬂﬂg&m Nolra Noes Pl 207
dtwract irmosm st FUOCH
Bands 13.884
Toserury Gills 1,538,020
1,614,704
inkewrwet irmosm st aonortiasel 2ost
Flaotmwirts 181.745
Lcana and advances to customers 100,070
NCOma finosm depesic with CoN - 1.224.514
281,815 1,224 514
LEISS10 Ladey
Iotereel axparse
Interest expenss an deposits 355,924 -
Mrtevesk on shareholder boan (S0 nots ) below) 7.423 &0,678
ST3,343 2037

the amount repreaents U teest charged on Uhe oot receed Trom the chandides in 2017, The

Toan wars sarded in May 2013

Impairmont chorges on fer aredit lowmes
I thoussinds of Migenian Nelve Nokes 246 2017
Loarns and advaices te custoneys 17 980
LOdNS and APANAS 00 hetks 16 2
OfF batanoe shost engaowrins 25 166 :
1,148 -
Fae and oosersl asicn frmosm
Credit related lees 4312 -
Fees, cammissions and charges 24,755
29.088 -
Ned gaine on Binancial elrumonts ieid fer trading
Nigerwn Trasasuey Bllls 812,040
D00 vakivg 565 .
545,475 .
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10 Natforeign sokengs Qe

I thousainds of ioenian Naivs Nokes 26 2017
Forelgn cumency revaluaton gan 88,920
Forelgn currency neoms 21349
302,419
11 Operating expoases

Stoff cost i 453,318 108,016
Depracistion charge an propearty and equipmand 23 136,979 10.932
Amortisation of Intangible assets a2z 8.3714 186
Prepald rentexpense 30.0C0 10.000
Professional fees and [ogal cxpense 11.758 137.400
Business traval axpenses 12,803 521
Audltors remuneyation 5,000 3.000
Admansirstive Expense 54,334 £.077
Directors’ emoluments and expanses 1 355,373 B2.e28
Cansultancy expensag 17,880 55,250
Statlanesias, postage, primting and consumables 1.082 6.107
Mcorpoyation foes . 148,764
Starp duty . 150,001
CEN IKen9e and applicstion Nes . 5.600¢
Rapalrs and melmanance 3z .
AVeTTESAMMNE AXDANIA 38.609 -
Subscy lption espense 101,151 .
Othar licanss faes 74315 -

M AP me&g )

1AToRez 745398
| Seoff cowt

208 ratated cosls, axohuling wecutive direciors. dving the Yeer/paciod susowmbed bix

Viones, s2ltvies. other hbenedits aid $121F Coxts 428,190 106.941
Parelon onsts - Defined conribaxion plan 25125 2075

¢
Tha nenbar of parseos amsployad by the Baslc diaring the yeur/pariod wes as followa:

2018 2017
Nursber Numbar
EXsourive 3 3
Marsgament 21 -
NCN-maagermont 18 2

A
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STt oowt

The NUMDAT o AMPICYAss oF tha Bak. other than Diractons, who mceived smolurnents in the Folowing

ranges (axduding pantion contributions and certain baneafits) wera

N200,001 - N1,000,000 2 7
N1.0D0.001 - N3.000.000 E 3
NS,000.001 - NS, DOD,00C 7 8
Akove NE, 000,000 5 z
30 18
Diractors' asncherseads sl sxparmes
i thousamnss of hiigerian Naira Hiotes 2018 217
Ramunaration pald to the dinectors (saciuding
cartamn allocwances) |s shown below
Fean and Stting 2l owances $7.4C0 -
Exeoutive compensation 227,369 ar.2e1
Panson ovst - defThad conorbumicn schames 17,383 3,
OKher JWeetons wpenses 43,213 2,833
855,375 82,896

The number of diractoes wha recetved fees and cthal emaduments. (excluding pension contribubens and

certain banefits) In the following rangeawaa

208 Zn7
Nurber Number

N8.CDO,CO01 - N11,000.000 - .
Above N15,000,D000 3 3

3 3
Income tax
B housands of w Nalvs Hokes 2018 2017
IRCONS T3 Pt TOr 1he YOar /Dol DOMPIiaes:
OB LIX SVDE
NITDA levy {3,806} [4.161)
Toral Qwran tax charge (9,606} {4,181)
Ovlarred i

Caferced tax malgmuond tanporary diference 200,000 p4.497
200,000 94,497

Tocome Lax credit
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IROON tax

Reoonoiiation of sffective tak rate

I thoussunds of fkaerian Nolra thotes 2008 207
Profit befora Teome (ax B30,591 420,280
EFNactive T 3¢ PO 2000LDL:

MCOMe tax UINg the COMPSNNG INore tak rate ot 30% 288177 126,072
Nen-deductible sapeTses 42,020 151,313
Tax €xampt Incoms (897.582) (368.602)
Tax Icentives 337,305 1,217
ETTRct OF NITDA vy 9.608 4141
Tax loss unutilised {200,000} (B4 467)
TOUA ICOMe K Credit in INCma Satanmant {190.394) (90.336)
Effectiva ncome tax credit (X (020 {0 21)

Basad on NIGEroN tan [aw, Companisy INcoms Tax AT provides T AeTent tak iy datantined 3s oW
higher of amount computed bersed on 30% (201 7: 30M) of taxnble profit. minemum tax and 308 (2017:
30M) of dividend dec|ared. There were na danges in corparate and educaticn tax ratas during the year.
The: conponata Ncomg tax chards or tha yaar was basad on MamUIm 10 provisions, however the Bank
is axampt from minEmum tax as it s still within the first four yesrs of |ts ncorporstion

T SIMPT INCOMe INCHadd I00me SUCH 39 1NCOMe O Faderl Govgrmment OF Nigeria Botrds and
Nigertan Trassury Blils wihich ara exempt from iecome tax and other applicable taves as gazetted by the
Federsi Goverosnet of Nigeria,

Curremt Inoowns tax Kabiiy

in thausands of hiigerian Keva Notes $1-Des-18 31-Deo-17
Opaning balanca 4,161

Tax pald 4167 -
Income tax charge 9,806 4161
Tosing Laknce: 9.608 4,161
Defurrad tax saet

Openling balanca 4,497 -
Osferned tar crodit 200,000 B4.497
Goting belance 294,497 B4 487
Defarrad T3 225001 808 MHTOUKILIS 10 the TOROWIRG K

Tax lesses camied forward 290,198 80.198
Capital allowences camiad forvand 4299 4208

290497 S4d87
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13 Eensingl piv thare
Nokes 26 2017
B9 SRTINGs Per $han 15 CHI0UEE D by ividng
the prafit stiributable to equity haiders of the
company by the vralghied &verage
Profit for the period from continuing operations a
(i thawsands of Naira) 1,150,935 510.5%6
Weaightad average namber of ordinary shewasin h
153ue (In thouaands of unitsy 16,000,000 16,000,000
TR SRR DR WS Tou AR RRANg
gparations (in kobo) i 719 319
14  Balan0es with banks
B thouswads of geniad Nalve Nobea 31-Des-18 31.Dwo-17
Canbal Dand; 124,508 -
Banks in Nigerin 7.435 -
Eanks oot | dE Nigeis 1 -
1,195,794 -
Qumret 1195794 -

weluded In balances with barks outside of Nigerts ks an amounk of NG48.4m (31 Dec 2017: M)
FaEresanting the NaVa vol(S of TOrKgy TNty HD on DENRIT OF CULONINS $0 Covr 6CTars of credit
TarCToNS, The conasponding iability & reported 3 cuscomers’ deposit for kvaagn D308 LnGar othar
limbilitias (s9a nots 25).

15 Fimancial esasty hebd for treding

i thousamsfs of hiigerian Nt fNotes 3-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

Nigerian Traasury Bits 3.628.313 )
2.828.373 -

Current 3,828,375 -

16 Loans to Danke 2td othiw Findnokal instinions

Plaotymerts with barks 3,883,788
ECL Impasment charge 7 {2) .
3,853,788 -

Current 3,833,735 -
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EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

17

18

1%

HOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = Contiveed

Loans tvd advanoes Lo CMIYOMNS
i thoussnds of Migertan Ratre Notes, N-Oio-18 391-D0e-17
Loars and advances to customers 2,238,575 .
Loares to staff 190,223 23.163
Alliowancs for impsinment 7 {584 .
2427818 23,163
Mori-curcont 2,427,808 23,163
Mt SecLTiUe s
Debt sacurities (Wigerion Treasie'y BHIS) massnad
m FFOC! 9,222,403
9.222 403
Curent 2222:400
Dovtuative Sobneial INStomnents
R thousants of Wigerian Nairs Novas J1-Dec-18
Divative Snaicin sssats
Hotional arscurt Fair value
Fareign exchang: forwand contracts 680 6A2 20,753
S contract 1,524 993 .
2,224,876 20,753
Ducirative financial Nabiities
Fareign exchangs forwmand contracts 844,165 131.86%4
Sermp comtract. 1,738,493 (55.4508
2302620 orieal B

Al dertvative contracts are curant [n netre. Dectvstive financal instruments consist of forweand
contracts. Thesa are had for dey to dey cash management rather then for trading purpeses and ara
held at fay walue. The conlracts have intended sottlernent detes of Detvween 30 days and o yeowr, Al
Garivakive CONDACE re Zonsidered 1o b valued with referencs to data odtaned from the Fincncied
Markex Daalar Quokation (FVOQ),
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EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

HOVA MERCHANT BANK 1 MITED

HOTES T THE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS « Catvtinuad

20 Pldged 2aents

in thousands of hligerian Keira Notes 31-Des-18 31:-Deo-17

Classiiied as fak xalne through other corprahanaive inoome

Nigertan Traazury Blils 123,041

Federal Gmmrlnmtofwnam {FEN} bonds 1,089 271
1,192,312

Curent 123,041 .

Nen-curent 1.069.277 -
1,132,312

)

The Rark pledgad the FGH Bonds to the Nigerka Intarhank Sextiament Scheme (NIBSS) as a requirement

o enabie the Bank use the MIB3S mstant Pawrert (MIP) gateway. The: reacury bills were pledged to
FMDQ 23 & requirement to 211abI6 the Bank UsE the FVDQ QEX systam,

Other assels
in thousands of Higerion Kot Notos __3iPesik __ 21Deo17
Fioancin! assets
Contriution to AGSMEIS i 25528 -
Forelgn exchange settiermant it 343,080 -
Others bl 318,648 -
Cadh advanca 219 2,50
Capost with Central Bank of Nigiris - 17.224 814
707,473 17,277 085
Nom-fnamotal sesaty
Frapayments 212,110 200,000
20srce payront N : 40,326
232,110 330,325
97%5&3 17 667 241
QT 707 .473 17.541.897
Nencuent 272,110 15,443
979.583 17,557 341

This rapresancs contribution © Agd-Brsngst/Small ad Madien Invasonent Schamae amed 3¢
supporting the Federal Govarmmment's sffort st promoting agricultural businesses &5 well 25 Small and
Medien Entarpriees, K13 an intiative of the Barkars' Committae 9 which banks ars requirad to as
oside 3% of ther Profit After Tex for imvestment In qualified players. Tha fund is damilled with the

Cantral Bank of Nlqaria.

Thase amounts are recefvabies from the Centrsl Bank of Negana for the parchase of forelgn currency
fromtha Retad Spacial Secondary Market Intarvention Sales (SMES) window,

This ralakes to peyment mede by the Rark o & comsultant for the process. of sedting up subsidiaries.

This bs advarce peymenk for fumitture in 2017,



EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

HOVA MERCHANT BANK 1L MITED

ROTES T THE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS - Carvtinuas

22  Iangiie 20eets
Computer
i thoussinds of igerian Nolro Jofvare Workdn.progress Joco
Ooat
Balanca at 17 May - -
Aadlions 3,251 - 3,261
Balance at 31 Decambar 2017 3251 . 3261
Addilons 80,845 B41,971 732,818
ACOMNUtaE 2000rTisation
Baknca ar 17 May . . .
Pmortizetion for the pariod 186 - 188
Bahnca 3t 31 Dt er 2017 186 . 185
Amortization for the: 314 . 2319
Balanca at 31 ﬁzma B 408 - 8488
Nat book valwe
31 December 2017 3,088 . 3008

31 December 2013 85667 841,971 227588
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EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT
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EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

24

25

NOVA MERCHANT BANK LWNTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Comtimued

Owe: to custoners

mmamm ).-0se-13 31-Dad-17

Diemiand doposiis 1,461,449 -

Term deposits 4,685,237 -

085,600 ~

Current 5088, 508 -

ther Bsbiities

Firniwcint Rebilies

Barrowing froen sharehoiders - 1.408.614

Quatomer's depoaits for foreign trade | 648.409 -

Amount held for custamer foreign exchange M)

fransschons 41,018 .

Sundry Credtors 80,820 29,147

Othar payobles 6,300 -

ECL Impeirmant changs o off batancs shask

w ? 166 -
7686.613 1.438.781

T FIencisl Nediiies

Statutory payalies 16.697 41.252
76X.210 9,477,013

Qurvent 783,310 1,477,003

This repremnts the Naira value OF Forgsgn curenCing twild On behall of CUTomers to Cover [ettars oF Crodit
W NI CORMS,

This rapressnts coliactions Ko the purchoas of foraigh curnancy from the Cantral Bark of Nigaria on Banalf
of JusTNmars,

Share capitnl

i thowsands of Nigevian Maia 3-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
Authorised shares oL N1 each 20000000 20000000
Baavt aned paid wp aharea 5t B aactc

QOpening balance . .
Kgued dung the year 18,000,000 16,000,000
Closlm bl anca 18,000 D00 16,000,000

The hoiders of ardinary shares are entitled o recelve dividends ns decfared from bime o time snd e
entitied tovcte nt maetings of the Bank,
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EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

27

28

NOVA MERCHANT BANK LWNTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Corwimued
Rotained catwings and olrer restrves

Statwtory resarwes

igenan Banking reguiaticns require the Bank ta make an Imewal appropriabon ta A stahitnry reserve. As
stipaseted by 5 16(1) of the Banks and Other Financial instiution Acr of Nigeria, an sppropristion of 30K of
erofit aftar Love 3 rd 1F the slatutony resenve 1o 16ss thon pald-up share capital md 15% oF profit efte tax
[P e StauR0ry re4eryR i3 graoter tha the paid-up share capital,

Rataindd sacwingt
Retaned samings ore tha carried forward recognisad incoma nat of espanses phrs cument yaar/period
profit atiribuiable to sharshaiders.

Fuir valee reserves

The: revaetion nasarsss show the affects fam tha fair value messurament of fnencial instrumants of tha
fax value through cthar comprehensiva Income category. Any gals or losses on this dass of fimencial
Instrumants are Nt recogrisad in the Incama statemant until the assst has bean sold or Impaired.

Raguistory risk resarvan
This represants a Non-b DRADN Yesarves Mo thvie 00833 DEvwew the IIMPRiment ceserved on iong and

Advahcas datenninad (sing Prudencial Guidelines [aaud by the CanTal Bank of Migaria ovar the mpanmeant
reserves caloatad undar IFRS.

Movwswat & rogdstory risk rssenves
in thoeraands of Migenuan hsia 31-0e0-13 31-Dec-17
Openng balance .
Trarsfer from retalned samings 47,429 .
Cloaiiy) balanca 47,420 -
Prudeniiy afiestoents
Prudent sl guidelines provisson:
- General provisions 48.876 -

48.676 -
IFRS Impainmant provisions:
- ECL chergs on Ainancis) assets 1.148

1,148

Daterence in 1FRS irpainment ovar
Pruneatial Quadekws eccounted for n
COGUIHONY (I8 Csa s 47,423 -
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EXTRACT FROM THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS REPORT

NOVA MERCHANT BANK LIWNTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Corwimued
Pradewtisl afustomnts

In e with the requiatory requiraments of the Ceniral Bark of Nigera, provisiams for 1parms recognised in
the statement of comprehansive income detenmined based 0 tha mpairment provisian requirament undar

FRS shauld be compared with the provisions determinad undar prudential guidelinas and the dffanance
should be treabed 2a follows;

L i Imparmant undar Prudential Guidelives axcead the IFRS provisions; the resulting eecess proyisian
should be transfiamed from the gencml resenve sccount to anon<dstributable " regulstory risk recarve'’

Il. I the provisons under the Prudential Guidelinas s imes than the 1FRS provisions; IFRS dsbamined
provislan |8 charged to the statement of comprahenalve income. The cumulstive badance in the neguiatory
risk rasenve i3 thereafter revarsad to the ganers! reaanve account

As ot 31 Decemben 2018, the CBN Prudentil provision wes higher then the 1FRS Imgakmnent provisan. The
SN OF M47 .4 milllon was ractassified from razaked SARRS 00 tha CAgU BTy sk ravarss,

Coulingumt Esbiitive and 50MN KNbAtE

Credh relsted corersftreasts

In the normal carse of business, the Bank s party to finanaal Instrumants with off-balance sheet k. The
instruments are usad to meet aedit and other finandsal requirements of customers. The contracies!
aanounts: of the off-Eakance sheek Tindnckal Instrumeonts erec

0 Dhousands of Nigerian Helvs 1-Dac-13 $1-De-17
Letters of crait 3,115,216

Bants sod Guerantess 118,210 .
Loan commibnsins £0.000 -
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n

NOVA MERCHANT BANK LIWTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Comtimued

Roloted party transactions

A humdar of ransactions am entarad o with refated parties  1ho novmal course of busingss, Thess
Inchude wapes and salaries pald and payabls to relatad pertias. Employer Persion contribution and lcers.
and advances o relsted parties. In [ns with IAS 24, tha Bank categorised its shancholdars, directoes,
membars of s key menagament parsormed and thelr related entities or persons of Influence with wihich the
Bonk had 1ransactions for diochosurs purp eses.

Koy WENA0INANNE Darschel

mmuwm 31-Dec-14 31-Deac-17

Compensaiion $6 Sreciors

Fees and sitting allowances 87.400 .

Wages and 3alanes 227,369 87,292

Paniaon Conbe oution 17.383 3.701

CQther directors expenses 43,213 26833
355278 20

Loans and Rivences to drastors 139559 22,000

Lowrs

outstaing
Lodns bo direciors 83 Jistiosed DT repredaitt persondl LTt [03ns which ars payable within 4 - 10 yeas,
The lodh % given st Below markat raos of INtarast Ther' e wene nd Seciie [0an (055 proweaon raiated 1 tha
ancunks cutstanding. No loeh was granted o sy key mansgament staff or amgioyse cutside their
amployment scheme of service.

LONES FPOM NEENOIETS

in thousands of Nigeriae haia 31Dec-18 31-Dec-17
Borrowing fram shareholders (Principal amourt) - 1.345.736
Inkarest an borrowing from shareholdars 7,473 80,878 _

Money was bomowed Mam tha sharehoidars duving tha period to fmd il tha raceTing and capital
axpendtures of tha Bank. Intarast rata on the bor rowing wars 185 par anmam,

iInterest i wmconsolidaled subsidiavies

This amounit represants capindl pad o & consulam k' saming up of the Bark's subsidianies. As ar 31
Decamber 2018, Kava Merdent Bank Limitad had interest. in the following companies shiovm ih tha table
below:

Preportionof
Prineips activty Paceof  OWwership
Mame of Salraidiary o opecation Mcvexs
NowahMBL Assel Limited Fund & Portfclio BO%
oaMBL Sancres Tt S e — =
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K]

32

35

ROVA MERCHANT BANK L BNTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Cotimued
Interest in unoousoiidaled subsidiavies

Thesa companies have no assel o Hakiktes and have not been consolidated in the books of Nova kevchant
Bk Liited 48 Uy have NCt Dt Rdly inCOrporatad, NOva Merchimnt Bank Limibed i3 i the process of

NESUring it maats Ltha legal and renuiasory requiramenks of satiing up tea companias.
lécva Mesthant Bank Limited mtends to campiete the registration process m tha fareseaabls future.

Evests slior stsfarnest of fimandal poskisn data
Thirs ware 00 WWanks Hlsequant Lo th Tinancial Podbon ate WhKh require djustmants Lo, OF disCiosw e
Th hasa Fiancia| S00aManes

Compliawe aéh kenking requistins
During the yesr, the Bank did kit pay any pansity i comravention of BOFW ar relevant catulars of the
CRH.

Mon-AudR Services

During tha yesr, Fricewaterhouselcopers was engagad ta perform a reviaw of the Bank's IFRS € model. The
agresd fee for the engagement was 34 milian.

Insider velatad chedins
In compisanca with Cendral Bank of Negana circular BSDY1/2004 on inseder relatad credis, the Bank had oo
inalder relatad credits during the partod.
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TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The foregoing summary does not purport to be comprehensive and does not constitute advice
on tax to any actual or prospective investor in Bonds issued under the Programme. In particular, it
does not constitute a representation by the Issuer or its advisers on the tax consequences
attaching to a subscription or purchase of Bonds issued under the Programme. Tax considerations
that may be relevant to a decision to acquire, hold or dispose of Bonds issued under the
Programme and the tax consequences applicable to each actual or prospective purchaser of
the Bonds may vary. Any actual or prospective purchaser of the Bonds who intends to ascertain
his/her tax position should seek professional advice from his/her preferred professional advisers as
fo the tax consequences arising from subscribing to or purchasing the Bonds, bearing in mind
his/her peculiarities. Neither the Issuer nor its advisers shall be liable to any subscriber or purchaser
of the Notes in any manner for placing reliance upon the contents of this section.

Under current legislation in Nigeria, the tax consequences of an investment in the Bonds to be
issued under the Programme are quite broad and extensive. These include exemption from
Companies Income Tax, Value Added Tax and Personal Income Tax respectively, by virtue of the
Companies Income Tax (Exemption of Bonds and Short Term Government Securities) Order 2011,
the Value-Added Tax (Exemption of Proceeds of the Disposal of Government and Corporate
Securities) Order 2011 and the Personal Income Tax (Amendment) Act 2011.

In addition, the Bonds may qualify for a waiver from Capital Gains Tax! the tax waiver approved
by the Federal Government in March 2010.

1 Necessary legal backing for this is subject to completion of the administrative and legislative processes



CONFIRMATION OF GOING CONCERN LETTER BY THE SPONSOR
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CONFIRMATION OF GOING CONCERN STATUS FROM THE AUDITOR

105



106

RISK FACTOR

An investment in the Debt Securities involves certain risks, most of which may or may not occur
and neither the Issuer nor any of the Issuing Houses is in a position to express a view on the likelihood
of any such contingency occurring. Accordingly, prospective investors should carefully consider,
amongst other things, the following risk factors together with all the other information included in
this Shelf Prospectus and any applicable Pricing Supplement before purchasing the Debt
Secuirities.

RELATING TO THE NIGERIAN ECONOMY

Nigeria’s Mono-Economy System

The oil sector plays a central role in Nigeria's economy, as it accounts for a substantial portion of
export earnings. The sector contributed 8.35% and 8.68% to real GDP in 2016 and 2017 respectively
and over 90% of export earnings in 2017. The oil sector grew 14.7% year-on-year in the first quarter
of 2018, accelerating from a 11.2% expansion in the prior period which account for 9.6% of the
GDP compared to 8.5% in 2017.

Government’s revenues are substantially dependent on revenue from oil sector, which includes
the sale of crude oil and gas, royalfies and taxes and fees. In 2016, the Nigerian economy was
significantly affected by the global slide in oil prices as evidenced by the substantial drop in
foreign currency reserves, significant weakening of its currency, withdrawal of foreign portfolio
capital and a corresponding decline in stock market performance and government revenues.
While the Federal Government advances in its efforts to diversify the economy from its
dependence on oil revenue, the Nigerian economy is very sensitive to volatility of global oil prices.

Emerging Market Related Risks

The Bank's operations are based in Nigeria and as such it faces the risks typical of an emerging
market. These risks include political risks, changes to the economic environment and under-
investment in infrastructure. Entities operating in emerging markets are also susceptible to higher
instances of corruption, fraud, bribery and criminal activity. Failure to implement control to prevent
any of the aforementioned risks may result in criminal penalties and reputational damage that
may materially affect the Bank's financial condition or operations. Although the Bank has a sound
corporate governance structure, it may not detect or prevent all instances of fraud, criminal
activity, bribery or corruption.

Political Environment

Political risks are associated with the nation’s political climate. Nigeria's diverse political, religious
and ethnic landscape has led to struggles for power between rival groups, and this has
consistently influenced the quality of governance in the country. The confinued criminal activity,
regional unrest, political and religious conflicts in the country may lead to lower oil production,
deter investments in the country and lead to increased political instability that could have a
material adverse effect on Nigeria’s economy. Changes in government policies that directly or
indirectly affect the banking landscape could impact on the Bank’s business.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE SPONSOR
The ultimate obligor for the indebtedness arising from the issuance of these bonds is Nova

Merchant Bank Limited. The Bank is exposed to commercial and market risks in the ordinary course
of its business, the most significant of which are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk
and regulatory and legal risk. Whilst the Bank has implemented appropriate policies, systems and
processes to control and mitigate these risks, investors should note that any failure to control these
risks adequately could have an adverse effect on the financial condition and reputation of the
Bank. Below are brief descriptions of the risk factors that are material in respect of the financial
situation of the Bank under the Programme.
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RISK FACTORS

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to recover funds and suffer losses because a
customer or counterparty is unable or unwilling to meet confractual obligations to the Bank when
due.

Market Risk

Market risk is the possibility of the bank experiencing losses due to factors that affect the overall
performance of the financial markets in which it is involved. The Bank undertakes trading and
investment activities in fixed income securities such as bonds, treasury bills, interbank takings and
placements, as well as foreign exchange trading, all of which give rise to market risk exposure.
Market risks can arise from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices,
commodity prices and other relevant factors such as market volatility

e Foreign Exchange Risk
These are risks that arise from the change in price of one currency against another. The
bank undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Unfavourable
movement in exchange rates may affect the bank’s foreign currency transactions, the
value of the Bank's foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities and may have a
negative impact on its financial condition

¢ Interest Rate Risk
The principal risk to which the Bank’s non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss
arising from fluctuations in the future cash flow of fair values of financial instruments and
risk assefs because of a change in the market interest rate.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk to the Bank's earnings and capital arising from its inability to fund increases
in assets or to meet its payment obligations to its customers as they fall due or to replace funds
when they are withdrawn. The ability of an instfitution to transact business effectively can be
hampered by liquidity challenges. Liquidity risk has the tendency to compound other risks such as
market and credit; and as such needs to be properly managed.

Operational Risk

This is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from inadequate and/or failed internal processes,
people and systems or external events. They include: fraud, fines or expenses incurred as a result
of settlement delays and regulatory infractions; litigation processes including out of court
seftlements; damage to the physical assets; system downtime, malfunction or disruption and the
losses arising thereof.

Regulatory and Legal Risk

This is the risk of non-compliance with applicable financial service regulations, thereby exposing
the Bank to penalties and reputational damage. It may include the risk that a change in low and
regulation orincreased complexity in local and international regulatory environment will materially
impact the Bank.
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RISK FACTORS

RISKS RELATING TO THE ISSUER

Credit Risk

The Issuer is a special purpose vehicle ("SPV") with no operations or significant assets other than
issuing the Bonds and purchasing corresponding Notes issued by the Bank. The Issuer has an
obligation under the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds and the Programme Trust Deed to pay
such amounts of principal and interest, and additional amounts (if any) as are due in respect of
the Bonds. However, the Issuer's obligation fo pay is equal to the amount of principal, interest and
additional amounts (if any) received and retained (net of tax) by or for the account of the Issuer
from the Sponsor pursuant to the corresponding notes.

The issuer is primarily exposed to the risk of default by its counterparty- the Sponsor. The source of
repayment to the Bondholders is primarily payment received by the issuer with regards to notes
issued by the sponsor. Consequently, if the Bank fails to meet its payment obligations on the notes
in full, it will result in the Bondholders receiving less than the scheduled amount of principal and/or
interest and/or other amounts (if any) payable on the bonds. Investors are relying solely on the
creditworthiness of the Sponsor. Therefore, investment in the bonds also involves the risk that
subsequent changes in the actual or perceived creditworthiness of the Sponsor may adversely
affect the market value of such bonds.

Change in Law

The Terms and Conditions of the Programme are based on Nigerian law in effect as at the date
of this Shelf Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial
decision or change in Nigerian law or the official application or interpretation of the Nigerian law
after the date of this Shelf Prospectus.

Repayment Risk

The Issuer used the proceeds of the Bonds to purchase Notes from the Bank. As such, a default by
the Bank in its obligations to the Issuer on a payment date will translate into a default by the Issuer
in its obligations leading to the non-payment of the Coupon and Principal Amount on the Bond
on a payment date.

RISK RELATING TO THE BOND

Liquidity Risk

Bonds are traded after their initial issuance and may frade at a discount to their initial offering
price, depending on the market for similar securities, general economic conditions and the
financial condition and prospectus of the Bank. Although applications will be made for Bonds
issued under the Programme to be admitted and fraded on the FMDQ platform and/or the NSE,
there is no assurance as fo the development or liquidity of any trading market for any parficular
issue of the bonds.

Credit rating may not reflect the potential impact of the Bond’s risks

The Bonds will be assigned a rating by SEC-registered rating agencies and any other independent
rating agency. The ratings may not reflect all the risks related to the structure, market, additional
factors discussed above, and any other factors that may affect the value of the Bonds. A credit
rafing is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by
the Rating Agency at any time.



RISK FACTORS

Early Redemption

The Bonds may be subject to early redemption therefore Bondholders may face the risks that the
Bonds will be redeemed before maturity in a falling interest rate environment, forcing the
Bondholders to reinvest the proceeds at a lower rate of return.

109
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STATUTORY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Exiract of the Issuer’'s Board Resolution Authorizing the Programme

At the meetings held on 239 December 2019, the Board of Directors of Novambl Investments SPV
PLC passed a resolution approving the establishment of a 850 billion Bond Issuance Programme.
Ownership Structure of the Issuer

As at 31 December 2019 the shareholding structure of the issuer is as follows:

Shareholders Number of Shares Held Shareholding %
Leadway Capital and Trust Limited 999 999 99.99%
Philips Oduoza 1 0.0001%

Incorporation and Share Capital History of the Issuer

Novambl Investments SPV PLC was incorporated in Nigeria on 18t day of December 2019.The
Issuer has no subsidiaries and has been established as a special purpose vehicle for the purpose
of passing through funds to and receiving funds from Nova Merchant Bank Limited.

Currently NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC has an authorised and issued share capital of
N1,000,000 divided into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of &#1.00 each.

Extract of the Sponsor’'s Board Resolution Authorization of the Programme

At the meetings held on 30" May 2019, the Board of Directors of Nova Merchant Bank Limited
passed a resolution approving the establishment of a 850 billion Bond Issuance Programme.
Ownership Structure of the Sponsor

According fo the register of shareholders as at 31 December 2018, the following shareholders held
5% and above of the issued share capital of the Bank:

Shareholders ‘ Number of Shares Held Shareholding %
Afriglobal Investment Holding 1,980,250 12,4%
Five Star Associate Limited 1,980,250 12.4%
Carbon Commodities DMCC 3,960,500 24.7%
Philips Oduoza 6,962,160 50.5%

Incorporation and Share Capital History of the Sponsor

Nova Merchant Bank Limited was incorporated on 17 May 2017 in Nigeria and is infended to carry
on the business of Merchant Banking in Nigeria as may be prescribed by the Central Bank of
Nigeria (CBN).

Currently Nova MB has an authorised share capital of N20,000,000,000 comprising of
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each, and its issued and fully paid up is N16,000,000,000
comprising of 16,000,000,000 ordinary shares of M1 each.
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STATUTORY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Directors Beneficial Interests of the Sponsor

The Interest of Directors in the issued share capital of the Bank as recorded in the register of
Directors' shareholding and/or as notified by the Directors for the purpose of Sections 275 and 276
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act

Direct Holding Indirect Holding

Philips Oduoza 6,962,160 1,116,840

The details of indirect holding of directors in the issued share capital of the Bank are as follows;

Company Indirect Holding
BOP In’regrq’rgd Investment 158,420
y Limited
Philips Oduoza Benix Nigeria Limited 158,420
PUE Financial Services 800,000

Statement of Indebtedness

Details of all indebtedness of the Bank at the time of issuance of any bonds under the
Programme will be disclosed in the Supplementary Prospectus relating to the series of bonds
to be issued

Extract of the Trust Deed
The Programme Trust Deed contains inter alia, the following provisions:

2
2.1

2.2

2.3

Appointment of Trustee and declaration of trust

Appointment of Trustee: The Issuer hereby appoints the Trustee to act as the representative
of the Bondholders, and o hold the benefits of the covenants, rights and other obligatfions
on the part of the Obligors herein contained for the benefit of the itself and the Bondholders
(according to their respective interests) in accordance with the terms of this Programme
Trust Deed.

The Trustee: The Trustee hereby accepfts the appointment with effect from the date of this
Programme Trust Deed, declares itself as trustee for the Bondholders and agrees to hold the
benefit of the covenants and other obligations on the part of the Obligors herein contained
on frust for itself and the Bondholders subject to the terms of this Programme Trust Deed.

Duration of Trust: For the avoidance of doubt, the parties to this Programme Trust Deed
agree that the common law rule against perpetuities will apply to the frusts constituted
under this Programme Trust Deed and that the Deed shall not endure beyond 21 years from
the date of its creation. The trusts created by this Programme Trust Deed shall remain in full
force and effect until the dafe on which, following the redemption of all Bonds issued
pursuant to the Programme, the Trustee unconditionally confirm in writing to the Issuer that
there is no longer any outstanding Indebtedness owing by the Issuer under the Programme;
or the date on which the Trustee receive unconditional confirmation in writing from the
Registrar that the Bondholders have been paid all outstanding obligations.
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3
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.2

Amount and Issue of the Bonds

Amount of the Bonds: The Bonds will be issued in Series in an aggregate nominal amount
from fime to time outstanding not exceeding the Programme Limit and for the purpose of
determining such aggregate nominal amount, the provisions of the Final Terms shall apply.
Any Bonds issued under the Programme shall be constituted by this Programme Trust Deed
without further formality. A Series Trust Deed will be issued in respect of each Series.

Prior to each Issue Date: By not later than 3.00 p.m. on the fifth Business Day preceding each
proposed Issue Date, the Issuer shall:

(a) deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee a draft of the relevant Pricing
Supplement or Supplementary Shelf Prospectus and, if applicable, noftify the
Trustee of any proposed changes to the draft Final Terms delivered to the Trustee;

(b) deliver or caused fo be delivered to the Trustee, legal opinions (in form and
substance satisfactory to the Trustee) or supporting authorizations or approvals of
the issuance of that Series of Bonds, as may be required by the Trustee; and

(c) notify the Trustee in writing without delay of the Issue Date and the nominal amount
of the Bonds of the relevant Tranche.

The Trustee shall not be required in any case to approve such Final Terms.
Issue of Bonds: The Bonds shall be issued by way of an offer for subscription or private
placement either through a pre-pricing process, book building process and or any other
such methods as shall be set out in more detail in the relevant Supplementary Shelf
Prospectus or Pricing Supplement.

Senior and subordinated Bonds: Any Series of the Bonds may be Senior Bonds or
Subordinated Bonds under terms to be provided in the applicable Final Terms.

Utilisation of Proceeds: The Issuer shall use the net proceeds from the issue of each Series of
Bonds (after deduction of the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance
of such Series of Bonds) in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Final Terms.

Separate Trusts

Any Series of Bonds issued under the Programme shall be supplemented by a separate
frust deed applicable to each Series of Bonds. The Issuer shall execute and deliver such
Series Trust Deed to the Trustee containing such provision (whether or not corresponding
to any of the provisions contained in this Programme Trust Deed) as the Trustee may
require. Each Series Trust Deed shall set out the form of the Series of Bonds o be so issued
thereby and shall be accompanied by legal opinions (in form and substance satisfactory
to the Trustee) or supporting authorizations or approvals as may be required by the Trustee.

The Bonds of each Series shall form a separate Series and cover a separate class of Bonds
and accordingly, all the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed shall apply mutatis
mutandis separately and independently to the Bonds of each Series and in such Clauses
and Schedule the expressions "Bonds", and "Bondholders" shall be construed accordingly.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Each Series Trust Deed shall apply separately and independently to the Bonds of each
respective Series.

The Trustee shall hold the benefit of the payment obligation of the Obligors on trust for the
Bondholders of the applicable Series of Bonds in accordance with the terms and
conditions of each Series Trust Deed.

The name of each series will commence with the word “Series” and will be followed by a
number in consecutive order of issuance of the Series (for example the first Series will be
known as the “Series 1 Bonds”)

If there is any conflict between the provisions of a Series Trust Deed relating to a particular
Series and the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed, the provisions of the Series Trust
Deed shall, notwithstanding any other provision to the conftrary, prevail over the provisions
of this Programme Trust Deed in respect of the relevant Series.

Covenant to pay

Covenant to pay: The Issuer covenants with the Trustee that it shall, in accordance with the
relevant Final Terms of any Series, uncondifionally pay or procure to be paid to or to the
order of the Trustee in immediately available freely tfransferable funds in Nigerian Naira (or
such other currency specified in the relevant Final Terms), the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Bonds of such Series or any of them becoming due for payment on
that due date and shall (subject to the Conditions and except in the case of Zero Coupon
Bonds) until all such payments (after as well as before any judgment or other order of any
court of competent jurisdiction) are duly made, unconditionally pay or procure to be paid
to or to the order of the Trustee as aforesaid on the dates provided for in the Conditions
interest on the Principal Amount Outstanding (or such other amount as may be specified
in the relevant Final Terms) of the Bonds or any of them of such Series from fime to time as
set out in the Conditions (subject to Clause 5.3 (Interest on Floating Rate Bonds following
Event of Default)) provided however that:

(a) every payment of principal or interest in respect of such Bonds or any of them
made to any Bondholder in the manner provided in the applicable Final Terms shall
satfisfy, to the extent of such payment, the relevant covenant by the Issuer
contained in this Clause except to the extent that there is default in the subsequent
payment thereof to the relevant Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions;

(b) if any payment of principal or interest in respect of such Bonds or any of them is
made after the due date, payment shall be deemed not to have been made until
either the full amount is paid to the relevant Bondholders or, if earlier, the fifth day
after nofice has been given to the relevant Bondholders in accordance with
Condition 18 (Noftices) of [e] that the whole of such principal, together with interest
which has accrued and is to accrue pursuant to this proviso has been received by
the Trustee except; and

(c) in any case where payment of the whole or any part of the principal amount due
in respect of any Bond is improperly withheld or refused on the Redemption Date
(other than in circumstances contemplated by proviso (b) above) interest shall
continue to accrue on the whole or such part of such principal amount (exceptin
the case of Zero Coupon Bonds, to which the provisions of Condition 6 shall apply),
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from the date of such withholding or refusal until the date either on which such
principal amount is paid to the relevant Bondholders or, if earlier, the fifth day after
which notice is given to the relevant Bondholders in accordance with Condition 18
(Notices) of [e], that the full amount payable in respect of the said principal
amount (including the Coupon, if unpaid together with interest which has accrued
and is to accrue pursuant to this proviso) is available for collection by the relevant
Bondholders, such payment is in fact made.

The Trustee will hold the benefit of this covenant and the covenants in Clause 7
(Covenant to comply with the Programme Trust Deed) in trust for itself and the
Bondholders in accordance with their respective interests.

Events of Default:

(a) Each of the events or circumstances set out in Condition 13 of the Terms and
Conditions of this Programme Trust Deed is an Event of Default.

(b) If any Events of Default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee may at its discretion
and shall, upon the request in writing of the registered holders of at least one-fifth
of the nominal amount of the Bonds for the time being outstanding or upon being
so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution by notice in writing to the Issuer declare
the Bonds to have become immediately repayable, subject to Condition 13.

(c) At any time after any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default shall have
occurred, the Trustee may by nofice in writing to the Issuer and the Registrar, require
the Registrar:

(i) to act thereafter as agent of the Trustee under the provisions of this
Programme Trust Deed (with consequential amendments as necessary and
save that the Trustee's liability under any provisions thereof for the
indemnification, remuneration and payment of out-of-pocket expenses of
the Registrar shall be limited to a sum equal fo the amounts for the time
being held by the Trustee on the trusts of this Programme Trust Deed in
relation to the Bonds on the terms of this Programme Trust Deed and
available to the Trustee for such purpose) and thereafter to hold all Bonds
and all sums, documents and records held by it in respect of Bonds on
behalf of the Trustee; and/or

(i) to deliver up all Bonds and all sums, documents and records held by it in
respect of Bonds to the Trustee or as the Trustee shall direct in such notice
provided that such nofice shall be deemed noft to apply to any document
or record which the Regisfrar is obliged not to release by any law or
regulation.

Interest on Floating Rate Bonds following Event of Default: If Floating Rate Bonds become
immediately due and repayable under Condition 13 (Events of Default), the rate and/or
amount of interest payable in respect of them will be calculated at the same intervals as
if such Bonds had not become due and repayable, the first of which will commence on
the expiry of the Interest Period (as defined in the Condifions) during which the Bonds
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6.2

7.2

9.1

become so due and repayable in accordance with Condition 13 (Events of Default) (with
consequential amendments as necessary).

Currency of payments: All payments in respect of, under and in connection with this
Programme Trust Deed and the Bonds fo the relevant Bondholders shall be made in
Nigerian Naira (or such other currency specified in the relevant Final Terms) as required by
the Conditions.

The Bonds

Form of Bonds: The Bonds shall be in registered form, made eligible for admission to listing
on a Recognised Stock Exchange and issued in accordance with applicable legal and
stock exchange listing authority and/or quotation system requirements and unless
otherwise specified in any Final Terms, the Bonds shall be issued in uncertificated
(dematerialised or book entry) form, which shall be registered with a separate securities
identification code with the CSD and evidenced by credit info the Bondholder's Securifies
Account.

Ranking of Bonds: The ranking of the Bonds as and when issued shall be as specified in the
relevant Series Trust Deed and/or Final Terms.

Covenant to comply with the Programme Trust Deed

Covenant to comply with the Programme Trust Deed: The Obligors and the Trustee hereby
covenant with each other that they shall comply with all those provisions of this Programme
Trust Deed and the Conditions which are expressed to be binding on them and to perform
and observe the same. The Bonds are subject to the provisions contained in this
Programme Trust Deed, and the Bonds of each Series are subject to the provisions of the
Series Trust Deed, all of which shall be binding upon the Issuer, the Trustee and all persons
claiming through or under them respectively.

Trustee may enforce Conditions: The Trustee shall be entitled to enforce the obligations of
the Issuer under the Bonds and the Conditions, and the obligations of the Obligors under
this Programme Trust Deed, as if the same were set out and contained in this Programme
Trust Deed which shall be read and construed as one document with the Bonds.

Irevocable Undertaking To Pay

The Sponsor irevocably undertakes to pay all amounts due under the bonds, in
accordance with this Programme Trust Deed and the Deed of Covenant.

Representations and Warranties of the Obligors

Each Obligor represents and warrants to the Trustee on the date of this Programme Trust
Deed as follows:
Status

(a) Itis alimited liability company, duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws
of its jurisdiction of incorporation.
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9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

(o) It has the power and authority to own, lease and operate its assets and carry on ifs
business as it is being conducted.

(c) It shall preserve and keep in full force and effect its corporate existence and at all
times comply in all material respects with all laws and regulations, non-compliance
with which could (in the reasonable opinion of the Trustee) be materially prejudicial
to the interest of the Bondholders.

(d) Inregard to the Sponsor, it is duly licenced by the Central Bank of Nigeria to carry on
Banking Business in Nigeria.

Powers and authority

(a) It has the power to enter info and perform and has taken all necessary action o
authorise the entry into and performance of, the Issue Documents to which it is a
party and the transactions contemplated by such Issue Documents to the extent
applicable to it.

(b)  No limit on its powers will be exceeded as a result of the borrowing, grant of security
or giving of guarantees or indemnities contemplated by the Issue Documents to
which it is a party.

No adverse change: Save as disclosed in the Shelf Prospectus, since the date of its last
audited financial statements delivered to the Trustee, no event which is likely to have a
Material Adverse Effect has occurred.

Non-conflict: The entry into and performance by it of, and the transactions contemplated
by, the relevant Issue Documents to which it is a party do not, and will not conflict with:

(a) any law or regulation applicable to if;

(b) its constitutional documents;

(c) any document which is binding upon it or any of its assets;

(d) or constitutes a default under any contractual obligation, judgment, injunction,

order or decree binding upon it or its assets; or
(e) any licence that is required for the carrying on of its business.
Valid and binding obligations

(a)  The obligations expressed to be assumed by it under the Issue Documents o which
it is a party are legal and valid obligations, binding on it and enforceable against it
in accordance with their respective terms.

Validity and admissibility in evidence

(a) Other than the payment of applicable stamp duties and the stamping of the Issue
Documents, all Authorisations and any other acts, conditions or things required or
desirable:
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(i) to enable it lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and comply with its
obligations in the Issue Documents to which it is a party; and

(ii) to make the Issue Documents to which it is a party admissible in evidence
in its jurisdiction of incorporation,

have been obtained, effected, done, fulfilled or performed and are in full force and
effect.

No filing or stamp taxes: It is not necessary that the Issue Documents be filed, recorded or
enrolled with any court or other authority in that jurisdiction or that any stamp, registration,
notarial or similar Taxes or fees be paid on or in relation to the Issue Documents or the
fransactions contemplated by the Issue Documents except any filing, recording or
enrolling or any tax or fee payable in relation to each of the Issue Documents which is
referred to in any legal opinion issued and delivered to the Trustee in relation to the Issue
Documents and which will be made or paid by the Obligors promptly after the date of the
relevant Issue Document and in any event within any period required under Applicable
Law.
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9.9

9.10

92.11

9.12

Indebtedness and Solvency:

(a)  Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, it has no debentures, mortgages, loans, material
contingent liabilities or other similar indebtedness, other than those arising in the
ordinary course of business;

(b) Itis neither unable nor has it admitted its inability to pay its debts as they fall due nor
has it suspended the making of payments on any of its debfts or, by reason of actual
or anticipated financial difficulties, commenced negotiations with one or more of its
creditors with a view to rescheduling any of its Indebtedness;

(c) Save as otherwise disclosed in the Prospectus, no moratorium has been declared in
respect of any of its Indebtedness;

(d)  The value of its assets is not less than its liabilities (both actual and contingent).
Authorisations: All consents, licences, authorisations and approvals:

(a) required to be obtained by it to enable the consummation of the transactions
constituted by the Issue Documents to which it is a party; and

(o) necessary or desirable under any Applicable Law to enable the Obligors carry on
their business substantially as conducted at the date hereof

have been obtained (and are in full force and effect) or will be obtained (and remain in
full force and effect) prior to the Issue Date, their terms and conditions have been
complied with in all material respects and they have not been and, so far as such
Obligor is aware, will not be revoked or otherwise terminated as a result of entry into the
Issue Documents to which it is a party, and the consummation of the fransactions
constituted thereby, and in each case if not obtained or complied with, or if revoked or
terminated, would not be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
Litigation: Other than as disclosed in the Prospectus or applicable Supplementary
Prospectus or Pricing Supplement, no litigation, arbitration, administrative proceedings or
other proceedings are current or, to the knowledge of the Directors of the Obligors (having
made all due enquiries), pending or threatened in writing, against the Obligors or against
any of its Directors orits assets before any court, arbitral body or agency which, if adversely
determined, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

No deduction or withholding: It will not be required to make any deduction or withholding
from any payment it may make under the Bonds except where such deduction or
withholding is mandatorily required by law.

Compliance with Laws

(a) To the best knowledge of its Directors (having made all due enquiries), no practice,
procedure or policy employed by the Obligor in the conduct of its business violates
any judgment, law, regulation, order or decree applicable to it and which violation,
if enforced, would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(b)  Allreturns and resolutions and other documents required to be filed with or delivered
by the Obligors to the Corporate Affairs Commission, the CBN and the SEC
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9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

pursuant to and Applicable Law have been or will be duly filed or delivered, except
where failure to do so would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

General duty of disclosure

(a)

(c)

(d)

The Prospectus contains and will contain (as applicable) all such information as is
necessary to enable investors to make an informed assessment of the assets and
liabilities, financial position, profits and losses and prospects of the Obligors and of
the rights attaching to the Bonds.

All statements of fact contained in the Prospectus are true and accurate in all
respects and there are no material facts known to it that are not disclosed therein
and the omission of which could make statements therein false or misleading and
there are no other circumstances adversely affecting it or the Issuer which have not
been disclosed in the Prospectus and which if disclosed would be calculated to
affect materially the decision of a subscriber o the Bonds.

Except as already mentioned in the Prospectus, no circumstances have arisen
whereby any person is entitled to require payment or seek redress in respect of any
obligation or by reason of any of its default.

Since it commenced operations, its business has been carried out in the ordinary and
usual manner.

Approval of Shelf Prospectus

(a)

(o)

Applicafions have been made for the Bonds to be registered by the SEC. The Shelf
Prospectus is issued in compliance with the SEC Rules and Regulations.

No Event of Default will result from the execution, or the performance, of any
fransaction contemplated by any Issue Document; and

no other event or circumstance is outstanding which constitutes (or, with the expiry
of a grace period, the giving of notice, the making of any determination or any
combination of any of the foregoing, would constitute) a default or termination
event (however described) under any other agreement or instrument which is
binding on it or fo which its assets are subject which has or is reasonably likely to have
a Material Adverse Effect.

Governing law and enforcement

(a)  The choice of law stated to be the governing law of each Issue Document will be
recognised and enforced in its jurisdiction of incorporation.

(o)  Any judgment obtained in relation to as Issue Document in the jurisdiction of the
stated governing law of that Issue Document will be recognised and enforced in its
jurisdiction of incorporation.

No default

(a) No Event of Default or Potential Event of Default is continuing or might reasonably

be expected to result from the issue of the Bonds or the enfry into of, or the
performance of any fransaction contemplated by, the Issue Documents.
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9.18

92.19

9.20

9.21
9.22

9.23

(b) No other event or circumstance is outstanding which constitutes or with the giving
of notice will constitute a default under any other agreement or instrument which
is binding on it or any of its assets are subject which might have a Material Adverse
Effect.

No Immunity: Neither it nor any of its assefs has any right of immunity on the ground of
sovereignty or otherwise, from jurisdiction, attachment (before or after judgment) or
execution in respect of any action or proceeding relating in any way to the Issue
Documents that may be brought in the courts of the Federal Republic of Nigeria or any
relevant jurisdiction.

Pari passu ranking: Its payment obligations under the Issue Documents rank at least pari
passu with the claims of all its other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors, except for
obligations mandatorily preferred by law applying to companies generally.

Ranking and financial indebtedness:

(a)  No Security or Quasi Security exists over all or any of its present or future assets other
than as Disclosed in the Shelf Prospectus or in the ordinary course of its business;

(b) Ithasnolndebtedness outstanding other than Indebtedness on the ordinary course
of its business.

Good title to assets: It has good, valid and marketable title to, or valid leases or licences
of, or is otherwise entitled to use, all assets necessary for the conduct of the business as it is
presently being conducted, where failure to do so would be reasonably expected to have
a Material Adverse Effect.

Insurance: It is fully in compliance with the undertakings in clause 10.13 (Insurance).

Anti-corruption law: To the best of its knowledge and belief, it has conducted its businesses
in compliance with appflicable anti-corruption laws and has instituted and maintains as at
the date of this Programme Trust Deed policies and procedures designed to promote and
achieve compliance with such laws.

Times for making representations and warranties

(a)  The representations and warranties set out in this Clause 9 (Representations and
Warranties of the Obligors) are made by each Obligor on the date of this Programme
Trust Deed and the Issue Date and are deemed to be repeated by each Obligor on
each Issue Date for each Series of the Bond. The representations and warranties set
out in Clauses 9.1, 9.3, 9.8, 9.10, 9.12, and 9.17 are deemed to be repeated by the
Obligors on each Payment Date.

(b)  When a representation and warranty is repeated, it is applied to the facts and
circumstances existing at the time of repetition, provided always that in respect of
any Issue Date, the representations contained in Clauses 9.4, 9.5, .13, and 9.14 shall
be limited and refer only to the Tranche or Tranches of Bonds forming a single series
of Bonds to be issued on such Issue Date and, to the extent that the representations
contained in Clauses 9.3, 9.13 and 9.14 relate to the Prospectus, such representations
shall be limited to the Prospectus prepared in respect of such Tranche or Tranches of
Bonds.
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Covenants by the Obligors

Each Obligor hereby covenants with the Trustee that, so long as any Bond remains outstanding:

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Terms and Conditions: it shall comply with and perform all of its obligations under this
Programme Trust Deed and the Deed of Covenant (as applicable).

Books of account: it shall at all fimes keep such books of account as may be necessary to
comply with all Applicable Laws and so as to enable its financial statements to be
prepared and allow the Trustee and any person appointed by them free access to the
same at all reasonable times during normal business hours and to discuss the same with
responsible officers of the Obligor, provided further that the Trustee shall only use
information so obtained in connection with the performance of its duties vested in it under
this Programme Trust Deed or by operation of law and shall be subject to any limitations
on disclosure and duties of confidentiality imposed by law or any Authority;

Event of Default: it shall give notice in writing to the Trustee immediately upon becoming
aware of any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default and without waiting for the
Trustee to take any further action;

Certificate of Authorised Signatories: it shall provide to the Trustee within fourteen (14) days
of any written request by the Trustee (or such longer period as the Trustee may determine),
a certificate signed by two of its Authorised Signatories, certifying that having made all
reasonable enquiries, to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Obligor
up fo a specified date not earlier than seven (7) days prior to the date of such certificate
(the "Certified Date"):

(a) it has complied with its obligations under this Programme Trust Deed or the Deed of
Covenant (as applicable) (or, if such is not the case, giving details of the
circumstances of such non-compliance);

(o)  that as af such date there did not exist nor had there existed at any time prior thereto
since the Certified Date in respect of the previous, such certificate (or, in the case of
the first such certificate, since the date of this Programme Trust Deed) any Event of
Default or Potential Event of Default of which such Authorised Signatories are or
should have been aware, or (if such is not the case) specifying the same,

and the Trustee may, without enquiry, rely on such certificate without any liability for so
doing.

No Guarantees or indemnities: it shall not incur or allow to remain outstanding any
guarantee in respect of any obligation of any person, other than guarantees in the
ordinary course of its business.

No Indebtedness: it shall not incur or allow to remain outstanding any Indebtedness, other
than the Indebtedness incurred in the ordinary course of its business.

No deduction or withholding: it shall make all payments under this Programme Trust Deed
without withholding or deduction of, orin respect of, any Tax unless required by law. If any
such withholding or deduction is required, the Obligor shall, when making the payment to
which the withholding or deduction relates, pay to the Trustee, on behalf of the
Bondholders, such additional amount as will ensure that each Bondholder receives the
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10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

same total amount that it would have received if no such withholding or deduction had
been required;

Pari Passu ranking: it shall procure that its payment obligations under the Programme Trust
Deed rank and will rank pari passu at the very least, with the claims of all its other senior
and unsubordinated creditors from time to time outstanding except for obligations
mandatorily preferred by law applying fo companies generally;

Accounts in relation to subsidiaries: it shall deliver to the Trustee at the fime of issue of any
Series of Bonds, its audited consolidated balance sheet and at any other time upon the
request of the Trustee;

Certificate relating to subsidiaries: it shall give to the Trustee, as soon as reasonably
practicable, after the acquisition or disposal of any company which thereby becomes or
ceases to be a subsidiary or after any transfer is made to any company which thereby
becomes a subsidiary, a certificate signed by two of its Authorised Signatories to such
effect;

Financial statements: it shall send to the Trustee, the Rating Agency and the Registrar
copies of:

(a) as soon as the same becomes available, but in any event within 90 days after the
end of each Financial Year, its audited financial statements for that Financial Year;

(b) as soon as the same becomes available, but in any event within 45 days after the
end of each financial quarter, its unaudited financial statements for that financial
quarter; and

(c) (if the same are produced) as soon as practicable after their date of publication
copies of every report or other notice, statement or circular, issued fo its
shareholders and creditors or to holders of securities other than shareholders as
soon as practicable after the issue or publication thereof,

and procure that the same are made available for inspection by Bondholders at the
Specified Offices of the Registrar as soon as practicable thereafter.
Information:

It shall:

(a)  within ten (10) Business Days upon becoming aware of them, make available to the
Trustee details of any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings or
proceedings before, or action by, any Authority, which are current, threatened or
pending and which might, if adversely determined, have a Material Adverse Effect;

(o)  within ten (10) Business Days of filing, make available to the Trustee copies of all
documents filed with the SEC in respect of the Issue;

(c) within ten (10) Business Days of its receipt, make available to the Trustee copies of all
material documents, other material communications and information or any event
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

which relates to or might have a Material Adverse Effect, given orreceived by it from
any person;

(d) send to the Trustee two copies of every balance sheet, profit and loss account,
report or other notice, statement or circular sent to the shareholders of the Issuer as
soon as practicable after the issue or publication of such documents; and

(e) so far as permitted by Applicable Law, at all times give to the Trustee such
information as the Trustee may reasonably request in writing in connection with the
performance of its functions under this Programme Trust Deed.

Insurance

In relation to the Sponsor:

(a) it shall maintain insurance on and in relation to ifs business and assets against those
risks and to the extent as is usual for companies carrying on the same or substantially
similar business;

(b) (and to the extent so required, the Issuer), it shall take all new Insurances after the
Initial Issue Date with reputable independent insurance companies or underwriters
reasonably acceptable to the Trustee; and

(c) andif requested by the Trustee, each Obligor shall, within ten (10) Business Days of
receipt of such request, supply to the Trustee proof of cover in respect of each
insurance policy required to be faken out and maintained pursuant to clause
10.13(a) and 10.13(b).

Anti-corruption law: It shall:

(a) conduct its businesses in compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws; and

(b) maintain policies and procedures designed to promote and achieve compliance
with such laws.

Assets: in relafion to the Sponsor, it shall ensure that its assets are maintained, repaired
and/or operated in accordance with the standards of a reasonable and prudent operator
carrying on similar business in the banking industry.

Compliance with laws: it shall, comply in all respects with the regulations, prudential
requirements and financial ratfios of the CBN to which it may be subject.

Further Acts: it shall, so far as permitted by Applicable Law, do such further things as may
be necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to give effect to this Programme Trust Deed, the
applicable Series Trust Deed and the Deed of Covenant;

Bonds held by an Obligor: it shall deliver to the Trustee within fourteen (14) days of being
so requested in writing by the Trustee a certificate of that Obligor (signed on its behalf by
two Authorised Signatories) setting out the total aggregate principal amount of Bonds of
each Series which at the date of such certificate are held by or for its benefit, or any of its
Subsidiaries and the Trustee may rely upon such certificate without any liability for so doing;
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10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

Execution of further Documents: it shall so far as permitted by Applicable Law, at all fimes
execute all such further documents and do all such further acts and things as may be
necessary at any time or times in the opinion of the Trustee to give effect to the provisions
of this Programme Trust Deed;

Notices to Bondholders: in relation to the Issuer, it shall send or procure to be sent to the
Trustee not less than three (3) Business Days prior to the date of publication, for the Trustee's
approval, one copy of each noftice to be given to the Bondholders in accordance with
the Conditions and, upon publication, send to the Trustee two copies of such notfice;

Noltification of late payment:. in relafion to the lIssuer, it shall, in the event of the
unconditional payment to the Trustee of any sum due in respect of the Bonds or any of
them being made after the due date for payment thereof, forthwith give notice to the
Bondholders that such payment has been made (unless the Trustee deems the giving of
such notice to be unnecessary);

Notification of redemption or payment: it shall, not less than the number of days specified
in the relevant Condition prior to the redemption or payment date in respect of any Bond,
give to the Trustee notice in writing of the amount of such redemption or payment pursuant
fo the Conditions and duly proceed to redeem or pay such Bonds accordingly;

Obligations of Registrar: in relation to the Issuer, it shall observe and comply with its
obligations, and use all reasonable endeavours, to procure that the Registrar observes and
complies with all its obligations and procure that the Registrar maintains a Register and
notify the Trustee immediately it becomes aware of any material breach or failure by the
Registrar in relation to the Bonds;

Change in Registrar: in relation to the Issuer, give at least fourteen (14) days’ prior notice
to the Trustee of any change or any future appointment, resignation or removal of the
Registrar and not make any such appointment or removal without the written approval of
the Trustee;

Change of taxing jurisdiction: in relation to the Issuer, it shall, if before the Relevant Date
for any Bond it shall become subject generally to the taxing jurisdiction of any ferritory or
any political sub-division thereof or any authority therein or thereof having power to tax
other than or in addition to the Federal Republic of Nigeria ("Nigeria") immediately upon
becoming aware thereof it shall notify the Trustee of such event and (unless the Trustee
otherwise agrees) enter (as soon as practicable thereafter) into a trust deed supplemental
hereto, giving fo the Trustee an undertaking or covenant in form and manner satisfactory
to the Trustee in terms corresponding to the terms of Condition 11 (Taxation) with the
substitution for the references therein to Nigeria or of references to that other or additional
territory to whose taxing jurisdiction, or that of a political subdivision thereof or an authority
therein or thereof, the Issuer shall have become subject as aforesaid, such frust deed also
to modify Condition 11 (Taxation) so that such Condition shall make reference to that other
or additional territory;

Listing: in relation to the Issuer, it shall at all fimes use its reasonable endeavours to maintain
the admission to listing, trading and/or quotation of the Bonds of each Series by the
relevant competent authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system (if any) on which
they are admitted tfo listing, trading and/or quotation on issue as indicated in the
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10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

applicable Final Terms or, if it is unable o do so having used its reasonable endeavours or
if the maintenance of such admission to listing, frading and/or quotation is agreed by the
Trustee to be unduly burdensome or impractical, use all reasonable endeavours to obtain
and maintain admission to listing, frading and/or quotation of the Bonds on such other
competent authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system as the Issuer may (with the
approval of the Trustee) decide and give notice of the identity of such other competent
authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system to the Bondholders;

Authorised Signatories: it shall, upon the execution hereof and thereafter forthwith upon
any change of the same, deliver to the Trustee (with a copy to the Registrar) a list of its
Authorised Signatories, together with certified specimen signatures of the same;

Approvals, consents, etc.: it shall maintain, obtain and promptly renew from time to time
when necessary all such authorisations, approvals, consents and licences and satisfy such
(if any) other requirements as may be necessary or desirable under any Applicable Law,
fo enable it fo carry on its business and for it to perform its obligations under the Bonds and
this Programme Trust Deed or for the continuing validity and enforceability of the Bonds,
this Programme Trust Deed, any Series Trust Deed and the Deed of Covenant and shall
comply with all the terms of the same;

Corporate Existence: it shall preserve and keep in full force and effect its corporate
existence and at all times comply in all material respects with all laws and regulations,
non-compliance with which could (in the opinion of the Trustee) be materially prejudicial
to the interest of Bondholders;

Merger: it shall not enter infto any amalgamation, demerger, merger, corporate
reconstruction or business combination without the consent of the Trustee;

Negative Pledge: it shall not, so long as any Bonds remain outstanding, secure any other
Indebtedness represented by bonds, notes or any other publicly issued debt securities
which are, or are capable of being, fraded or listed on any stock exchange or over-the-
counter or similar securities market without securing the Bonds equally and rateably with
such Indebtedness, other than any security which is a Permitted Security, unless otherwise
stated in a Final Terms applicable to a Series; and

Additional restrictions on the Issuer: in respect of the Issuer, it shall:

(a) not enter intfo or undertake any fransaction, arrangement or other obligation other
than as contemplated under the Issue Documents;

(o)  not make any change tfo its constitutional documents; and

(c) procure that its board of directors shall at all fimes be independent of the Sponsor
and its Affiliates and Subsidiaries.
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Financial covenants

Financial Definitions

In this Clause 0O:

Capital Adequacy Ratio: means the capital adequacy ratio of the Sponsor, as
calculated in accordancd with the CBN Pridential Guidelines (as amended from time to
time), expressed as a percentage.

Loan Loss Provisions Ratio: means the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of loan loss
provisions to non-performing loans.

Deposits Ratio: menas the ratio expressed as a percentage) of loan to deposits.

Non-Performing Loans Ratio: means the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of non-
performing loans to total loans and advances.
Financial Covenants:

The Sponsor shall ensure that it is at all times in compliance with the following finnacila
covenants
Capital Adequcy Ratio: at a minimum of 15% or such other minimum percentage as the

CBN may require from fime to time;

Loan Loss Provisions Ratio: not less than 50% or such other minimum percentage as the CBN
may require from time to time; and

Non-Performing Loans Ratio: not to exceed 14% or such other maximum percentage as
the CBN may require from time to time.

Financial Testing
The Financial civenants set out in clasue 11.2 shall be tested by reference to each of the

financial statements delivered by the Sponsor pursuant to clause 10.11.

Representations and Warranties of the Trustee
The Trustee hereby represents and warrants to the Obligors as follows:

Status:
(a) itis a company within the meaning of the CAMA;

(b) itis duly registered and authorised by the SEC to provide corporate frust services in
Nigeria;

(c) it has full power and authority to enter into the Issue Documents to which it is a party
and to exercise its rights and perform its obligations thereunder and has obtained all
authorisations and consents necessary for it to enter, exercise rights and perform its
obligations under the Issue Documents to which it is a party and such authorisations
and consent are in full force and effect.

Compliance with obligations

(a) ithastheresources, capacity and expertise to act on behalf of the Bondholders with
regard to every issuance of Bonds (as applicable) under the Issue Documents to
which itis a party and it shall comply with the provisions of the ISA, SEC Rules and the
Issue Documents to which it is a party in the performance of its obligations;
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12.3

13
13.1

13.2

(b) it shall provide any information that the SEC or the Issuer may require in connection
with its obligation to act on behalf of the Bondholders;

No conflicts

(a) it shall not allow any conflicts to occur between its obligations in connection with
and under the Programme and its commercial interests;

(b) it does not have any subsisting fiduciary relationship with any Obligor or its Related
Parties; and

(c) it shall, at all times, adhere to the terms and conditions specified in the Issue
Documents to which it is a party.

Amendments

Waiver: The Trustee may, without any consent or sanction of the Bondholders and without
prejudice to their rights in respect of any subsequent breach, condition, event or act, from
time to fime and at any time, but only if and in so far as in its opinion the interests of the
Bondholders shall not be materially prejudiced thereby, authorise or waive, on such terms
and condifions (if any) as shall seem expedient to it, any proposed breach or breach of
any of the covenants or provisions contained in this Programme Trust Deed or the Bonds
or determine that any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default shall not be treated as
such for the purposes of this Programme Trust Deed; any such authorisation, waiver or
determination shall be binding on the Bondholders and, if, but only if, the Trustee shall so
require, the Issuer shall cause such authorisation, waiver or determination to be nofified to
the SEC and the Bondholders within ten (10) Business Days thereafter in accordance with
the Conditions; provided that the Trustee shall not exercise any powers conferred upon it
by this Clause in contravention of any express direction by an Extraordinary Resolution or
of a request in writing made by the holders of not less than twenty-five (25) per cent in
aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of the Bonds.

Modifications: The Trustee may from time to time and at any time without any consent or
sanction of the Bondholders concur with an Obligor in making:

(a) any modification to an Issue Documents to which it is a party or the Bonds which in
the opinion of the relevant Trustee it may be proper to make provided the Trustee is
of the opinion that such modification will not be materially prejudicial to the interests
of the Bondholders; or

(o) any modification to an Issue Documents to which it is a party, if in the opinion of the
Trustee such modification is of a formal, minor or technical nature or made to correct
a manifest error; or

(c) any modification fo an Issue Documents to which it is a party which is required or
necessary to bring that Issue Document in compliance with Applicable Law.

Provided that:
(i) the Issuer has nofified the Rating Agency and the Rating Agency has
confirmed that such modification will not affect the current ratings of the
Bonds; and
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(i) prior approval of the SEC has been given.

Any such modification shall be binding on the Bondholders and, unless the Trustee
otherwise agrees, the Issuer shall cause such modification to be notified to the
Bondholders as soon as practicable thereafter in accordance with the Conditions.

Enforcement

Legal proceedings: At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee
may, at its absolute discretion and without further notice, institute such proceedings
against any Obligor(s) as it may think fit to enforce repayment of the Bonds together with
accrued inferest and to enforce the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed.

Bondholder Direction: The Trustee shall not be bound to take any such proceedings
pursuant to clause 14.1 unless it shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution
or so requested in writing by the holders of at least three-quarter (75%) in Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Bonds and it shall have been indemnified and/or secured to its
satisfaction against all liabilities, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may
thereby become liable and all fees, costs, charges and expenses which may be incurred
by it in connection therewith. Only the Trustee may enforce the provisions of the Bonds or
this Programme Trust Deed and no Bondholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against
the Obligors unless the Trustee, having become bound so to proceed, fails to do so within
a reasonable time and such failure is continuing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
Bondholder who feels dissatisfied may personally initiate legal action to enforce its rights
under this Programme Trust Deed irrespective of the legal duty of the Trustee o take such
legal action. The Trustee shall not be deemed responsible for the consequences having
acted upon any such instruction as set out in this clause 14.2.

Evidence of default: If the Trustee (or any Bondholder where entitled under this Programme
Trust Deed so to do) makes any claim, institutes any legal proceeding or lodges any proof
in a winding up or insolvency of the Obligors under this Programme Trust Deed or under
the Bonds, proof therein that as regards any specified Bond the Obligors have defaulted
in paying any principal and/or interest due in respect of such Bond shall (unless the
contrary be proved) be sufficient evidence that the Obligors have defaulted in the same
manner as regards all other Bonds in respect of which a corresponding payment is then
due; and for the purposes of this clause 14.3 a payment shall be a "corresponding”
payment notwithstanding that it is due in respect of a Bond of a different denomination
from that in respect of the above specified Bond.

Applicafion of Moneys

Application of moneys: All moneys received by the Trustee in respect of the Bonds or
amounts payable under this Programme Trust Deed will, despite any appropriation of all or
part of them by the Obligors (including any moneys which represent principal or interest in
respect of Bonds which have become void under the Conditions) be held by the Trustee
on trust to apply them (subject to Clause 16 (Investment of moneys) in the following order:

(a) in or towards payment or satisfaction of the fees of the Trustee and such
reasonable costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred by the Trustee
(including remuneration of the Trustee);
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(b) in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of any amounts due but unpaid in
respect of the Bonds of that Series;

(c) in or towards payment pari passu and rateably of any amounts due but unpaid in
respect of the Bonds of other Series under the Programme; and

(d) to pay the balance (if any) to the Issuer, without prejudice to, or liablility in respect
of, any question as to how such payment to the Issuer shall be dealt with as
between the Issuer and such other person entitled to them.

Apportionment of expenses: The Trustee shall apportion the fees, costs, charges, expenses
and liabilities incurred by it in the execution of the frust of this Programme Trust Deed
(including remuneration of the Trustee) between the several Series of Bonds in such
manner and in such amounts as shall, in its absolute discretion, consider appropriate.

Investment by the Trustee

Power to invest: If the amount of the moneys (including without limitation, funds standing
to the credit of the Debt Service Reserve Account) at any time available for the payment
of principal, premium (if any) and inferest (if any) on the Bonds is less than ten per cent,
(10%) of the amount due and payable on the Bonds, the Trustee may, at its discretion and
pending payment to the Bondholders, invest such moneys in any Authorised Investments
as it may think fit in its absolute discretion and in such manner as a diligent, careful and
ordinarily skilful trustee would reasonably act in the circumstances. Save in respect of
fraud, negligence or misconduct, the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss
occasioned by reason of any such investments or such deposit whether by depreciation
in value, fluctuation in exchange rates or otherwise. If the bank or institution in which the
investment is made is a subsidiary, holding or associated company of any of the Trustee, it
need only account for an amount of interest at a rate comparable fo that which is
reasonable in the market on an investment of that nature on the date of the determination
having regard to the amount and likely duration of the deposit by an independent
customer.

Variation and accumulation: The Trustee may, at its discretion, vary any investments and
may accumulate such investments and any resulting income until the accumulations,
together with any other sums held by the Trustee for payments in respect of the Bonds
under clause 15, amount to atf least ten (10) per cent of the nominal amount of the Bonds
then outstanding. Such accumulations and other sums shall then be applied as set out in
clause 15.

Payment to Bondholders:

(a)  The Trustee shall make any payment to be made by the Obligors in respect of the
Bonds of any Series in the manner provided in the Conditions and the Series Trust
Deed. Any payment so made shall be a good discharge to the extent of such
payment of the Obligors or the Trustee (as the case may be).

(b)  Upon any payment under paragraph (a) above of principal or interest, the Trustee
shall (i) in the case of part payment, require the Registrar to make a notation in the
Register of the amount and date of payment or (ii) in the case of payment in full,
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17

17.1

cause the relevant Bond to be cancelled and shall certify or procure the certification
of such cancellation.

Terms of Appointment of the Trustee

By way of supplement to the Relevant Laws, it is expressly declared as follows:
Reliance on Information

(a)

Advice: The Trustee may in relation to each Issue Document to which it is a party
act on the opinion or advice of or a certificate or any information fobtained from
any lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, accountant or other
expert (whether obtained by or addressed to the Trustee, the Issuer, the Sponsor or
any ofher person) and shall not be responsible for any loss occasioned by so acting
or, if applicable, by choosing not to so act. Any such opinion, advice, certificate
or information may be sent or obtained by letter, telegram, telex, cablegram or
facsimile transmission and the Trustee shall not be liable for acting on any opinion,
advice, certificate orinformation purporting to be so conveyed although the same
shall contain some error (other than a manifest error) or shall not be authentic. The
Trustee may rely, without liability to Bondholders, on any certificate or report
prepared by any of the above experts, including specifically the Auditors, or any
auditor, pursuant to the Conditions or this Programme Trust Deed, whether or not
the expert or auditor’s liability in respect thereof is limited by a monetary cap or
otherwise.

PROVIDED THAT this clause 17.1(a) shall only apply to limit the liability of the
Trustee to the Bondholders to the extent that the advice relied upon was issued
by the relevant lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, accountant,
audifor or other purpose with the intention that it should be used and relied upon
by the Trustee in the manner and for the purpose for which it was so used and
relied upon.

Certificate of Authorised Signatories: The Trustee may call for and shall be at liberty
to accept a certificate signed by two Authorised Signatories or other person duly
authorised on their behalf as to any factor matter prima facie within the knowledge
of the Issuer as sufficient evidence thereof and a like certificate to the effect that
any particular dealing, transaction or step or thing is, in the opinion of the person
so certifying, expedient as sufficient evidence that it is expedient and the Trustee
shall not be bound in any such case to call for further evidence or be responsible
for any loss that may be occasioned by its failing so fo do.

Resolution of Bondholders: The Trustee shall not be responsible for acting upon any
resolution purporting to be a Written Resolution or to have been passed at any
meeting of the Bondholders in respect whereof minutes have been made and
signed even though it may subsequently be found that there was some defect in
the constitution of the meeting or the passing of the resolution or that for any reason
the resolution was not valid or binding upon the Bondholders.

Reliance on certification of clearing system: The Trustee may call for and shall be
at liberty to accept and place full reliance on, as sufficient evidence thereof, and
shall not be liable to the Issuer, or any Bondholder by reason only of either having
accepted as valid or not having rejected an original certificate or lefter of
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(e)

(h)

(i)

confirmation purporting to be signed on behalf of the CSD or any other relevant
clearing system to the effect that at any particular time or throughout any
particular period any particular person is, was or will be shown in its records as
having a particular nominal amount of Bonds of a particular Series credited to his
Securities Account.

Bondholders as a class: Whenever in this Programme Trust Deed the Trustee is
required in connection with any exercise of its powers, frusts, authorities or
discretions to have regard to the interests of the Bondholders, shall have regard to
the interests of the Bondholders as a class and in partficular, but without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing, shall not be obliged to have regard to the
consequences of such exercise for any individual Bondholder resulting from his or
its being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or
subject to the jurisdiction of, any particular territory.

Trustee not responsible for investigations: The Trustee shall not be responsible for
investigating any matter which is the subject of, any recital, statement,
representation, warranty or covenant of any person contained in an Issue
Document, the Bonds or any other agreement or document relating to the
fransactions herein or therein contemplated or for the execution, legality,
effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness, validity, enforceability or admissibility in
evidence thereof.

No obligation to monitor: The Trustee shall be under no obligation to monitor or
supervise the functions of any other person under the Bonds or any other
agreement or document relating to the transactions herein or therein
contemplated and shall be entitled, in the absence of actual knowledge of a
breach of obligation, fo assume that each such person is properly performing and
complying with its obligations; provided that nothing contained in this clause shall
exempt the Trustee from or indemnify them against any liability for breach of trust
where the Trustee fail to show the degree of care and diligence required of them,
having regard to the provisions hereof conferring on them any powers, authorities
or discretions.

Bonds held by the Issuer: In the absence of knowledge or express nofice to the
contrary, the Trustee may assume without enquiry (other than requesting a
certificate of the Issuer under clause 10.18 (Bonds held by Issuer), that no Bonds are
for the tfime being held by or for the benefit of the Issuer.

Entry on the Register: The Trustee shall not be liable to the Issuer or any Bondholder
by reason of having accepted as valid or not having rejected any entry on the
Register later found to be forged or not authentic and can assume for all purposes
in relation hereto that any entry on the Register is correct save for manifest error.

Events of Default: Where the Issuer has not complied with the provisions of clause
18.1(e) the Trustee shall not be bound to give notfice to any person of the execution
of this Programme Trust Deed or to take any steps to ascertain whether any Event
of Default or Potential Event of Default has happened and shall not be obliged to
take any action to certify material prejudice under Condition 13 (Events of Default)
unless it is indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction by the Bondholders against
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(k)

(1)

(m)

(o)

all liabilities, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may thereby become
liable and all fees, costs, charges and expenses which may be incurred by it in
connection therewith and, until it shall have actual knowledge or express nofice to
the contrary, the Trustee shall be entitled to assume that no such Event of Default
or Potential Event of Default has happened and that the Issuer is observing and
performing all the obligations on their part contained in the Bonds and under this
Programme Trust Deed and no event has happened as a consequence of which
any of the Bonds may become repayable.

Legal Opinions: The Trustee shall not be responsible to any person for failing to
request, require or receive any legal opinion relating to any Bonds or for checking
or commenting upon the content of any such legal opinion.

Programme Limit: The Trustee shall not be concerned, and need not enquire, as to
whether or not any Bonds are issued in breach of the Programme Limit.

Trustee not Responsible: The Trustee shall not be responsible for the execution,
delivery, legality, effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness, validity, enforceability or
admissibility in evidence of this Programme Trust Deed or any other document
relating thereto and shall not be liable for any failure to obtain any rating of Bonds
(where required), any licence, consent or other authority for the execution,
delivery, legality, effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness, validity, performance,
enforceability or admissibility in evidence of this Programme Trust Deed or any other
document relating thereto. In addition the Trustee shall not be responsible for the
effect of the exercise of any of its powers, duties and discretions hereunder;
provided that nothing contained in this clause shall exempt the Trustee from or
indemnify them against any liability for breach of trust where the Trustee fails to
show the degree of care and diligence required of them, having regard to the
provisions hereof conferring on them any powers, authorities or discretions.

Freedom to Refrain: Notwithstanding anything else herein contained, the Trustee
may refrain from doing anything which would or might in its opinion be contrary to
any law of any jurisdiction or any directive or regulation of any agency or any state
of which would or might otherwise render them liable to any person and may do
anything which is, in its opinion, necessary to comply with any such law, directive
or regulafion.

Right to Deduct or Withhold: Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Programme Trust Deed, to the extent required by any Applicable Law, if the Trustee
is or will be required to make any deduction or withholding from any distribution or
payment made by them hereunder or if the Trustee is or will be otherwise charged
to, or is or may become liable fo, fax as a consequence of performing its duties
hereunder whether as principal, agent or otherwise, and whether by reason of any
assessment, prospective assessment or other imposition of liability to taxation of
whatsoever nature and whensoever made upon the Trustee, and whether in
connection with or arising from any sums received or distributed by them or fo
which may be entitled under this Programme Trust Deed (other than in connection
with ifs remuneration as provided for herein) or any investments or deposits from
time to fime representing the same, including any income or gains arising
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therefrom or any action of the Trustee in connectfion with the trusts of this
Programme Trust Deed (other than the remuneration herein specified) or otherwise,
then the Trustee shall be entitled to make such deduction or withholding or, as the
case may be, to retain out of sums received by them an amount sufficient o
discharge any liability to tax which relates to sums so received or distributed or to
discharge any such other liability of the Trustee to tax from the funds held by the
Trustee upon the frusts of this Programme Trust Deed.

Information and Other Reporits: Delivery of reports, information and documents to
the Trustee under Clause 10.11 (Financial statement) is for informational purposes
only and shall not impose any obligation on the Trustee to take any action in
respect of them and the Trustee’s receipt of the foregoing shall not constitute
actual or constructive notice of any information contained therein or determinable
from information contained therein, including the Issuer’'s, compliance with any of
their covenants hereunder (as to which the Trustee is entitled to rely on certificates
signed by two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer).

17.2  Trustee's powers and duties:

(a)

133

Trustee's determination: The Trustee may determine whether or not an Event of
Default or Potential Event of Default under the provisions of this Programme Trust
Deed or contained in the Bonds is capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial
to the inferests of the Bondholders and if the Trustee shall certify that any such
default is, in its opinion, not capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to the
interests of the Bondholders such certificate shall be conclusive and binding upon
the Obligors and the Bondholders.

Determination of questions: The Trustee, the Bondholders and the Obligors shall
have full power to determine all questions and doubts arising in relation to any of
the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed (as applicable) and every such
determination, whether made upon a question actually raised or implied in the
acts or proceedings of the Trustee, shall be conclusive and shall bind the Trustee
and the Bondholders;

Trustee's discretion: The Trustee shall (save as expressly otherwise provided herein)
as regards all the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in them by this
Programme Trust Deed or by operation of law have absolute discretion as to the
exercise or non-exercise thereof and, provided that the Trustee have acted
honestly and reasonably, the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss, fees,
costs, damages, expenses or inconveniences that may result from the exercise or
non-exercise thereof but, whenever the Trustee is under the provisions of this
Programme Trust Deed bound to act af the request or direction of the Bondholders,
the Trustee shall nevertheless not be so bound unless first indemnified against alll
actions, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may render itself liable and
all fees, costs, charges, damages, expenses and liabilities which it may incur by so
doing.

Trustee's consent. Any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of this
Programme Trust Deed may be given on such terms and subject to such conditions
(if any) as the Trustee may require.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Conversion of currency: Where it is necessary or desirable for any purpose in
connection with this Programme Trust Deed to convert any sum from one currency
to another it shall (unless otherwise provided by this Programme Trust Deed, the
Final Terms or required by law) be converted at such rate(s) of exchange, in
accordance with such method and as at such date for the determination of such
rate(s) of exchange as may be specified by the Trustee (in consultation with the
Issuer), but having regard to current rates of exchange, if available, and any rate
of exchange, method and date so specified shall be binding on the Issuer and the
Bondholders.

Application of proceeds: The Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or
application by the Issuer of the proceeds of the issue of the Bonds.

Error of judgment: The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in
good faith by any officer or employee of the Trustee assigned by the Trustee to
administer its corporate trust matters.

Delegation: The Trustee may, in the execution and exercise of all or any of the trusts,
powers, authorities and discretions vested in them by this Programme Trust Deed,
act by responsible officers or a responsible officer for the time being of the Trustee
and the Trustee may also whenever it thinks fit, whether by power of attorney or
otherwise, delegate to any person or persons (whether being a joint trustee of this
Programme Trust Deed or notf) all or any of the frusts, powers, authorities and
discretions vested in them by this Programme Trust Deed and any such delegation
may be made upon such terms and conditions and subject to such regulations as
the Trustee may think fit in the interests of such delegate; and where the Trustee
have delegated its frust powers and functions to agenft(s), the Trustee shall be liable
for the acts and omission of such agent(s) fo the same extent it would have been
if the acts and omissions were its own.

Custodians and nominees: The Trustee may appoint and pay any person to act as
a custodian or nominee on any terms in relation to such assets of the trust as the
Trustee may determine, including for the purpose of depositing with a custodian
this Programme Trust Deed or any document relating to the trust created
hereunder and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss, liability, expense,
demand, cost, claim or proceedings incurred by reason of any misconduct,
omission or default on the part of any person appointed by them hereunder or be
bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of any such person provided that the
Trustee exercised due care and diligence in the selection of such custodian and
nominees. The Trustee is not obliged to appoint a custodian if the Trustee invest in
securities payable to bearer.

Confidential information: The Trustee shall not (unless required by law or ordered so
to do by a court of competent jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any
Bondholder confidential information or other information made available to the
Trustee by the lIssuer in connection with this Programme Trust Deed and no
Bondholder shall be entitled to take any action to obtain from the Trustee any such
information.
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(k)

Actions of Trustee: The permissive rights of the Trustee to take actions permitted by
this Programme Trust Deed shall not be construed as an obligation or duty to do so.

Trustee as fiduciary of Bondholders: The Trustee shall comply with its fiduciary duties
owed to the Bondholders in accordance with this Programme Trust Deed and the
Relevant Laws, including:

(i) to manage the trust property in a responsible and productive manner;

(i) to act for the benefit of the Bondholders in the management of the trust
property and not to let its duties and that owed to the Bondholders conflict;

(i)  fo ensure that the trust property is vested according to the terms of the trust
herein established;

(iv) to act honestly, prudently and in good faith in the performance of its duties
and to exercise all due care, skill, diligence and vigilance in carrying out its
functions and duties as a frustee and in safeguarding the rights and interests
of the Bondholders;

(v) to clearly identify the trust property which are held on frust for the
Bondholders;

(vi)  not to commingle its funds with those of the trust;

(vii) tosegregate its assets from the trust property and any other trust administered
by the Trustee;

(viii) not to delegate its duties, except as permitted by this Programme Trust Deed;
(ix) to actimpartially and solely in the best interest of all Bondholders;

(x) nottocharge, pledge or deal with the trust property except as authorized by
this Programme Trust Deed and the Relevant Laws; and

(xi) to manage the trust property in a prudent and business-like manner.

17.3  Financial matters:

(a)

Professional charges: The Trustee shall be entitled to charge and be paid all usual
professional and other charges for business tfransacted and acts done by it or its
directors or officers on matters arising in connectfion with the trusts of this
Programme Trust Deed and also its charges in addition to disbursements for all other
work and business done and all time spent by them or its directors or officers on
matters arising in connection with this Programme Trust Deed.

Expenditure by the Trustee: Nothing contained in this Programme Trust Deed shall
require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial
liability in the performance of its duties or the exercise of any right, power, authority
or discretion hereunder if it has grounds for believing the repayment of such funds
or adequate indemnity against, or security for, such risk or liability is not reasonably
assured to it.

Trustee may enter into financial transactions with the Issuer: The Trustee shall not,
and no director or officer of the Trustee shall, by reason of the fiduciary position of
the Trustee be in any way precluded from making any contracts or entering into
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17.4

18
18.1

any transactions in the ordinary course of business with an Obligor or any of their
subsidiaries (and, in the case of any subscription for, purchase, holding or sale of
Bonds, subject to compliance with any applicable selling restrictions), or any
person or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with an Obligor or any
of their subsidiaries, or from accepting the trusteeship of any other debenture stock,
debentures or securities of an Obligor or any of their subsidiaries or any person or
body corporate directly or indirectly associated with an Obligor or any of their
subsidiaries, and neither the Trustee nor any such director or officer shall be
accountable to the Bondholders, any Obligor or their subsidiaries, or any person or
body corporate directly or indirectly associated with an Obligor or any of their
subsidiaries, for any profit, fees, commissions, interest, discounts or share of
brokerage earned, arising or resulting from any such contracts or transactions and
the Trustee and any such director or officer shall also be at liberty to retain the same
for its or his own benefit.

Trustee’s Liability: Subject to the provisions of the Relevant Laws, and Section 188 of the
CAMA and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Programme Trust Deed, the
Series Trust Deeds or the Bonds, the Trustee shall not be liable to any person for any matter
or thing done or omitted in any way in connection with or in relation to this Programme
Trust Deed, the Series Trust Deeds or the Bonds save in relation to its own negligence, wilful
default or fraud, provided that in no circumstances will the Trustee be liable to an Obligor,
or any other person for any punitive or consequential damage or loss (including loss of
business, goodwill, opportunity or profit of any kind). The Trustee will also be liable for the
breach of its duties where it fails to carry out its responsibilities under this Programme Trust
Deed or to report a breach of the terms of this Programme Trust Deed to the SEC.

Costs and Expenses

Remuneration

(a) Normal remuneration: The Sponsor shall, be responsible for the payment to the
Trustee of remuneration for its services as trustee as from the date of this Programme
Trust Deed. The remuneration shall comprise of a one off Trustee Take on Fee to be
paid after the completion date of the Issue and an Annual Trustee Fee to be paid
annually from the first anniversary of the Issue till the trust hereof shall be finally
wound up such remuneration to be at such rate as may be agreed between the
Issuer and the Trustee in the Fee Letter. The Annual Trustee Fee shall accrue from
day to day and be payable up to and including the date when, all the Bonds
having become due for redemption, the redemption moneys and interest thereon
to the date of redemption have been paid to the Trustee, provided that if upon
due presentation (if required pursuant to the Conditions) of any Bond or any
cheque, payment of the moneys due in respect thereof is improperly withheld or
refused, remuneration will commence again to accrue.

(b) Extra remuneration:

(i) In the event of the occurrence of an Event of Default or a Potential Event of
Default or the Trustee considering it expedient or necessary or being
requested by the Issuer to undertake duties which the Trustee and the Issuer
agree to be of an exceptional nature or otherwise outside the scope of the
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(d)

(e)

normal duties of the Trustee under this Programme Trust Deed, the Issuer shall
pay to the Trustee such additional remuneration as shall be agreed between
them in a separate fee letter.

(i) In the event of the Trustee and the Issuer failing to agree upon the amount of
the remuneration as contemplated paragraph (b)(i), or upon whether such
duties shall be of an exceptional nature or otherwise outside the scope of the
normal duties of the Trustee under this Programme Trust Deed, such matters
shall be determined by an investment bank or person (acting as an expert
and not as an arbitrator) selected by the Trustee and approved by the Issuer
or, failing such approval, nominated (on the application of the Trustee and
Issuer) by the Director General for the time being of the SEC (the expenses
involved in such nomination and the fees of such person being payable by
the Issuer) and the determination of any such person shall be final and
binding upon the Trustee and the Issuer.

Value added tax: The Issuer shall in addition pay to the Trustee an amount equal
to the amount of any value added tax or similar tax chargeable in respect of ifs
remuneratfion under this Programme Trust Deed provided that it is understood that
the Issuer shall deduct applicable withholding tax from all remuneration referred to
in this Clause 18.

Expenses: The Issuer shall also pay or discharge all fees, costs, charges and
expenses incurred by the Trustee in relation to the preparation and execution of,
the exercise of its powers and the performance of its duties under, and in any other
manner in relation to, this Programme Trust Deed, including but not limited to
reasonable legal and fravelling expenses and any stamp, issue, registratfion,
documentary and other taxes or duties paid or payable by the Trustee in
connection with any action taken or contemplated by or on behalf of the Trustee
for enforcing, or resolving any doubt concerning, or for any other purpose in
relatfion fo, this Programme Trust Deed; Provided that the Trustee shall seek and
obtain the prior written consent of the Issuer to incur any such liabilities in excess of
an aggregate sum of N500,000.00 (Five Hundred Thousand Naira) in any one
calendar year; unless such expense is incurred for the purposes of enforcing the
provisions of this Programme Trust Deed against the Issuer upon the occurrence of
an Event of Default in which case such consent shall not be required.

Indemnity: The Issuer shall indemnify the Trustee (i) in respect of all losses, liabilities,
taxes, fees, costs and expenses incurred by it or by any Appointee or other person
appointed by it to whom any frust, power, authority or discretion may be
delegated by it in the execution or purported execution of the frusts, powers,
authorities or discretions vested in it by this Programme Trust Deed and (ii) against
all liabilities, actions, proceedings, costs, claims and demands in respect of any
matter or thing done or omitted in any way relating to this Programme Trust Deed
except as a result of the Trustee’s negligence and wilful default and provided
further that the indemnity contained in this paragraph (e) shall remain in full force
and effect notwithstanding any discharge of this Programme Trust Deed.
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18.2

18.3

18.4

(f) Payment of amounts due: All amounts payable pursuant to paragraph (d)
(Expenses) and paragraph (e) (Indemnity) of this Clause shall be payable by the
Issuer within five (5) days of demand by the Trustee.

(9) Payments: All payments to be made by the Issuer to the Trustee under this
Programme Trust Deed shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding
or deduction for, any taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of
whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or within any
relevant jurisdiction or any authority therein or thereof having power o tax, unless
such withholding or deduction is required by law.

Stamp duties: The Issuer will pay all stamp duties, registration taxes, capital duties and other
similar duties or taxes (if any) payable on (i) the constitution and issue of the Bonds, (i) the
credit of the Bonds to the Bondholder's Securities Account, (i) any action taken by the
Trustee (or any Bondholder where permitted or required under this Programme Trust Deed
so to do) to enforce the provisions of the Bonds or the Issue Documents; and (iv) the
execution of the Issue Documents.

Exchange rate indemnity

(a) Currency of Account and Payment: Unless otherwise provided in the applicable
Final Terms, the Nigerian Naira (the “Contractual Currency”) is the sole currency of
account and payment for all sums payable by the Issuer under or in connection
with this Programme Trust Deed and the Bonds, including damages.

(b) Extent of Discharge: An amount received or recovered in a currency other than
the Contractual Currency (whether as a result of, or of the enforcement of, a
judgment or order of a court of any jurisdiction, in the winding up or dissolution of
an Obligor) by the Trustee or any Bondholder in respect of any sum expressed to
be due to it from the Issuer will only discharge the Issuer to the extent of the
Contractual Currency amount which the recipient is able to purchase with the
amount soreceived orrecovered in that other currency on the date of that receipt
or recovery (or, if it is not practicable to make that purchase on that date, on the
first date on which it is practicable to do so); and

(c) Indemnity: If that Contractual Currency amount is less than the Contractual
Currency amount expressed to be due to the recipient under this Programme Trust
Deed or the Bonds, the Obligors shall, be deemed fo have indemnified such
recipient against the difference between those amounts. In any event, the
Obligors shall be deemed to have indemnified the recipient against the cost of
making any such purchase.

Indemnities separate: The indemnities in this Programme Trust Deed constitute separate
and independent obligations from the other obligations in this Programme Trust Deed, and
will give rise to separate and independent causes of action, will apply irrespective of any
indulgence granted by the Trustee and/or any Bondholder and will continue in full force
and effect despite any judgment, order, claim or proof for a liquidated amount in respect
of any sum due under this Programme Trust Deed or the Bonds or any other judgment or
order. Any such loss as referred to in clause 18.3(c) (Indemnity) shall be deemed to
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constitute aloss suffered by the Trustee, the Bondholders and no proof or evidence of any
actual loss shall be required by the Issuer or its liquidator or liquidators.

Establishment and Funding of Transaction Accounts

Establishment of Debt Service Account: Unless otherwise stated in any Series Trust Deed,
the Issuer shall, in respect of any relevant Tranche or Series of Bonds open the Debt Service
Account prior fo the Issue Date in the name and under the confrol of the Trustee. The
Sponsor shall make payments of all monies due on the Bonds to the Debft Service Account
in accordance with the terms of the relevant Series Trust Deed.

Establishment of Debt Service Reserve Account: Unless otherwise stated in any Series Trust
Deed, the Issuer shall, in respect of any relevant Tranche or Series of Bonds open the Debt
Service Reserve Account prior to the Issue Date in the name and under the control of the
Trustee. The Sponsor shall deposit funds in the Debt Service Reserve Account from time to
fime in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Series Trust Deed, for the purpose of
protecting the Bondholders against unexpected volatility, or interruption, in the cash flow
available to service the payment obligations of the Issuer under this Programme Trust Deed
and the relevant Series Trust Deed.

Establishment of Other Accounts: The Issuer shall open such other account(s) as may be
prescribed in any Final Terms towards the repayment of amounts outstanding under Bonds
of any Series.

Payments into Transaction Accounts:

(a) At every time, where the Sponsor pays the relevant sums due under the Bonds into
the Transaction Accounts in the manner prescribed by the provisions of the relevant
Series Trust Deed, it shall be discharged from its obligatfions in respect of the said
payments. For the avoidance of doubt, this clause 19.4(a) shall not apply if the
Sponsor fails to make the relevant payment within the period prescribed in the
relevant Series Trust Deed.

(o)  The Trustee shall, not less than fifteen (15) days before the applicable Payment Date,
issue a written notice fo the Sponsor and Issuer notifying them of the next Payment
Date and the obligation to fund the Transaction Accounts in accordance with the
relevant Series Trust Deed.

(c)  Allmonies due to the Issuer under the Master Notes Subscription Agreement, shall be
paid by the Sponsor directly into the Debt Service Account.

(d)  The Trustee shall ensure that the Account Bank utilizes funds in the Transaction
Accounts for purposes of effecting payments on the Bonds to Bondholders as and
when due.

Appointment and Retirement

Appointment of Trustee: The power of appointing new frustees under this Programme Trust
Deed shall be vested in the Issuer but no person shall be appointed who shall not previously
have been approved by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Bondholders for the time being.
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20.2

20.3

A frustee under this Programme Trust Deed shall at all fimes be a trust corporation and duly
registered as a frustee by the SEC and may be the sole trustee. Any appointment of a new
trustee hereof shall as soon as practicable thereafter be notified by the lIssuer to the
Registrar and the Bondholders. The Bondholders shall together have the power,
exercisable by Extraordinary Resolution, fo remove any trustee or trustees for the time
being hereof. The removal of any frustee shall not become effective unless there remains
a trustee hereof in office after such removal. No such appointment of a trustee shall be
valid without the prior consent of the SEC.

Co-trustees:

(a)  The Trustee may (with prior written consent of the Issuer) and upon approval of the
SEC appoint any other frustee registered with the SEC or any other relevant
regulators to act jointly with the Trustee if such appointment is in the interests of the
Bondholders and:

(i) to conform with any legal requirements, restrictions or conditions in any
jurisdiction in which a particular act or acts is or are to be performed fo give
effect to this Programme Trust Deed or the Bonds; or

(i) to obtain or enforce a judgment in any jurisdiction or enforce any provision of
this Programme Trust Deed in any jurisdiction of either a judgement already
obtained or any of the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed against the
Issuer.

(o)  Thelssuer hereby appoints the Trustee as its attorney to make such appointment and
in ifs name and on its behalf to execute any such instrument of appointment. Any
person appointed by the Trustee under the power granted under this clause 20.2
shall (subject always to the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed as applicable)
have such trusts, powers, authorities and discretfions (not exceeding those conferred
on the Trustee by this Programme Trust Deed as applicable) and such duties and
obligations as shall be conferred on it orimposed by the instrument of appointment.

(c)  The Trustee shall have power in like manner to:

(i) remove any such person by giving written notfice to the Issuer and the co-
frustee;

(i) confer on any co-trustee such duties as it thinks fit; and

(i) to pay such reasonable remuneration as the Trustee may pay to any such
person, together with any attributable fees, costs, charges and expenses
incurred by it in performing its function as such separate trustee or co-trustee,
shall for the purposes of this Programme Trust Deed be freated as fees, costs,
charges and expenses incurred by the Trustee.

Retirement of Trustee: Any Trustee for the fime being of this Programme Trust Deed may
retire at any time upon giving not less than three (3) calendar months' notice in writing to
the Issuer and the SEC without assigning any reason therefor and without being responsible
for any costs occasioned by such retirement save for costs associated with, and/or
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21
21.1

21.2

21.3

incidental to, delivering physical copies of any frust document(s) fo a new trustee. The
retirement of any Trustee shall not become effective unless:

(a) there remains a trustee hereof in office after such retirement; and

(o)  where a successor is required to be appointed, the successor trustee having
accepted such appointment, delivers to the Issuer the duly executed Accession
Agreement in or substantially in the form in Schedule 4 to this Programme Trust Deed.

The Issuer hereby covenants that in the event a sole frustee gives notice under this
Clause it shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure a new frustee, to be appointed
and if the Issuer does not procure a new trustee within three calendar months of such
notice being given, the Trustee may appoint a new trusteee. The appointment of any
trustee pursuant to this clause 20.3 shall be with the prior notification to, and clearance
by, the SEC.

Competence of a majority of Trustee: Whenever there shall be more than two trustees
hereof the maijority of such trustees shall be competent to execute and exercise all the
frusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested by this Programme Trust Deed in the
frustees generally.

Powers additional: The powers conferred by this Programme Trust Deed upon the Trustee
shall be in addition to any powers which may from time to time be vested in them by
general law or as the holder of the Bonds.

Merger: Any corporation into which the Trustee may be merged or converted or with
which it may be consolidated, or any corporation resulting from any merger, conversion
or consolidation to which the Trustee shall be a party, or any corporation succeeding o
all or substantially all the corporate trust business of the Trustee, shall be the successor of
the Trustee hereunder, provided such corporation shall be otherwise qualified and eligible
under this Clause, without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the
part of any of the parties hereto.

Bonds Register

The Issuer shall at all times keep at the office of the Registrar for the time being or at such
other place in Nigeria as the Trustee may approve, an accurate Register showing the
amount of the Bonds for the time being issued and fully paid and the date of registration
and all subseqguent transfers or changes of ownership thereof and the name and address
and description of the Bondholder and any person deriving title under if, such information
to be obtained by the Registrar at least one (1) Business Day prior to each Record Date
while the Bonds are outstanding.

The Trustee and the Bondholders or any of them and any person authorised in writing by
any of them shall be aft liberty at all reasonable times during office hours o inspect the
said Register and to take copies of and extracts from the same or any part thereof. The
said Register may be closed at such times and for such periods as the Registrar may from
time to time determine provided that it shall not be closed for more than thirty (30) days in
any year.

The Registrar shall maintain and update the Register until such time that all outstanding
Bonds have been fully redeemed and the Issuer’s liability under the Issue Documents has
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been discharged. The Registrar shall provide details of the Register to the Trustee during
the period in which the Bonds are outstanding.

21.4  Without prejudice to the aforementioned provisions of this Programme Trust Deed, the
Registrar shall, in the maintenance of the Register, obtain details (including bank account
details and payment instructions) of the Bondholders and shall provide such details to the
Trustee during the period which the Bonds are outstanding.

22 Notices

22.1 Addresses for notices: All notices and other communications hereunder shall be made in
writing and in English (by letter, telex or fax) and shall be sent as follows:

(b) If to Novambl Investments SPV Plc, to it at:

121/123 Funso Williams Avenue,
lponri

Lagos State

Nigeria.

Tel: [@]
For the Attention of: [@]
Email: [®]

(c) If to Nova Merchant Bank Limited, fo it at:

23 Kofo Abayomi Street,
Victoria Island

Lagos State

Nigeria.

Tel: [@]
For the Attention of: [@]
Email: [®]

(d) If to Stanbic IBTC Trustees Limited aft:

The Wealth House,

Plot 1678 Olakunle

Bakare Close, Off Sanusi Fafunwa Street,
Victoria Island

Lagos.

Tel: +234 803 300 2192; 014221313; 08187238223; 014221374
For the Attention of: Seyi Egbarin/ Temitope Onabowale
Email: SITLAgency@stanbicibtc.com

22.2  Effectiveness. Every notice or other communication sent in accordance with clause 22.1

142 shall be effective as follows:
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(a) Personal delivery: if delivered by hand or by courier, on signature of a delivery
receipt or at the time the notice is left at the address;

(b) Email: if sent by e-mail, one hour after the notfice was sent with proof of delivery
thereof or upon acknowledgment of receipt, whichever is earlier;

provided that any such notice or other communication which would otherwise take
effect after 5.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until 10.00 a.m. on the
immediately succeeding Business Day in the place of the addressee.

Compliance With The ISA

The Trustee in exercise of the powers and discretions vested in it pursuant to these presents
shall comply with the provisions of the ISA, and shall file with the SEC all necessary statutory
reports in relation to the repayment of principal and interest under the tfrust herein
constituted and in any frust deed supplemental to this Programme Trust Deed.

The Trustee shall inform the SEC whenever it becomes necessary to enforce the terms of
this Programme Trust Deed and any breach of the terms and conditions of the Programme
Trust Deed or a Series Trust Deed noft later than ten (10) Business Days after the breach.

Law and Jurisdiction

Governing Law: This Programme Trust Deed, the Bonds and all obligations arising out of or
in connection with them shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Nigerian
law.

Dispute Resolution: In the event of any dispute arising out of or under this Programme Trust
Deed, the parties shall within five (5) Business Days from the date the dispute arose, notify
the SEC of the existence of the dispute. The parties may within ten (10) Business Days from
the date the SEC was nofified, resolve the dispute by mutual negofiation.

Arbitration: Any dispute which cannot be mutually resolved by the Parties in accordance
with clause 24.2 shall be referred to Arbitration in accordance with the provisions of the
Arbifration and Conciliation Act, Cap A18, LFN, 2004. The arbitral fribunal shall consist of
three arbitrators. The Obligors and the Trustee shall each appoint one arbitrator. The two
arbitrators so appointed shall appoint the third arbitrator, who shall preside over the Panel.
PROVIDED THAT if the first two arbitrators are unable to agree on a third arbitrator within
two (2) weeks of the appointment of the second arbitrator, the matter shall be referred to
the Director General of the SEC who shall nominate the third arbifrator. The arbitrators shall
also have a maximum period of ten (10) Business Days to resolve the dispute after the
exchange of pleadings by the parties. In the event that the parties or the arbitrators are
unable to settle the dispute, the matter shall be referred to the Investments and Securities
Tribunal in accordance with the provisions of the ISA. The seat of arbitration shall be Lagos,
Nigeria, and the language of arbitration shall be English.

Consent to enforcement etc.. The Obligors consent generally, in respect of any
proceedings, or arbitral proceedings pursuant to Clause 24.3 (Arbitration) to the giving of
any relief or the issue of any process in connection with such Proceedings including
(without limitation) the making, enforcement or execufion against any property
whatsoever (irrespective of its use or infended use) of any final order or judgment which
may be made or given in such Proceedings.
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Cost of Arbitration: The Obligors shall bear the cost and expenses of the arbitrators
appointed pursuant to Clause 24.3 (Arbitration).

Waiver of immunity: To the extent that an Obligor may in any jurisdiction claim for itself or
its assets or revenues immunity from suit, execution, attachment (whether in aid of
execution, before judgment or otherwise) or other legal process and to the extent that
such immunity (whether or not claimed) may be attributed in any such jurisdiction to it or
its assets or revenues, such Obligor agrees not fo claim and irrevocably waives such
immunity to the full extent permitted by the laws of such jurisdiction.

Severability: This clause 24 shall be severable from the rest of this Programme Trust Deed
and shall remain effective if this Programme Trust Deed is cancelled or terminated.

Assignments and Transfers

No Restrictions: Other than as provided in this Programme Trust Deed or any Series Trust
Deed, there are no restrictions on the transferability of the Bonds.

Transfers by the Trustee: Upon duly obtaining the approval of the SEC and obtaining the
consent of the Issuer and Bondholders, the Trustee may assign or transfer any of its rights,
interests or obligations under or in respect of this Programme Trust Deed to any successor
as frustee subject to the provisions of this Programme Trust Deed.

Transfers by the Obligors: The Obligors may not assign or transfer any of their rights, interests
or obligations under or in respect of this Programme Trust Deed to any person, without
obtaining the approval of the SEC and without the express consent of the Trustee acting
on the instructions of the Bondholders.

Waiver of Defences

The obligations of the Obligors under this Programme Trust Deed shall not be affected by

any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this provision, might operate to release or

otherwise exonerate the Issuer from its obligations under this Programme Trust Deed, in

whole orin part, including, whether or not known to the Obligors or the Trustee:

(a) any fime, indulgence or waiver granted to or composition with any Obligor or any
other person;

(o) the taking, variation, compromise, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to
perfect, take up or enforce any rights, remedies or securities against any Obligor or
any other person or any non-presentment or non-observance of any formality or
other requirement in respect of any instruments; or

(c) anylegallimitation, disability, incapacity or other circumstances relating to the Issuer
or any other person.
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Severance

In case any provision in or obligation under this Programme Trust Deed shall be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, the validity, legality and enforceability of the
remaining provisions or obligations, or of such provision or obligation in any other
jurisdiction, shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Counterparts

This Programme Trust Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which when executed shall constitute a duplicate original, but all the counterparts shall
together constitute one agreement.

Transmission of the executed signature page of a counterpart of this Programme Trust
Deed by email (in PDF or JPEG) shall take effect as delivery of an executed counterpart of
this Programme Trust Deed. If either method of delivery is adopted, without prejudice to
the validity of the agreement thus made, each party shall provide the others with the
original of such counterpart as soon as reasonably possible thereafter.

No counterpart shall be effective until each party has executed at least one counterpart.

Status Of Programme Trust Deed

The terms and conditions of this Programme Trust Deed shall be subject to the provisions of
the Relevant Laws.

Declarations

Except as otherwise disclosed in this Shelf Prospectus:

(a)

(o)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(1)

No share of the Company is under option or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
put under opftion;

No commissions, brokerages or other special ferms have been granted by the Company
to any person in connection with the Medium Term Note Programme or sale of any
securities of the Company;

Save as disclosed herein, the directors of the Company have not been informed of any
holding representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company;

There are no founders, management or deferred shares or any options outstanding in the
Company;

There are no material service agreements between the Company or any of its Directors
and employees other than in the ordinary course of business;

There are no long-term service agreements between the Company or any of its Directors
and employees other than in the ordinary course of business;

No Director of the Company has had any interest, direct or indirect, in any property
purchased or proposed to be purchased by the Company in the five years prior to the
date of this SP;

No prosecution has commenced against the Company or any of its subsidiaries in respect
of any breach of any securities laws or CAMA; and

No action has been taken against the Company by FMDQ and NSE in respect of any
breach of the listing requirements of the Exchange.

Further declarations/information in respect of shareholders/key management staff:

It is further declared that to the best of knowledge of Directors as at 31st December, 2018:

(a) None of the above is under any bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings in any court of law;
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(b) None of them has been convicted in any criminal proceeding; and
(c) None of them is subject of any order, judgment or ruling of any court of competent jurisdiction
or regulatory body relating to fraud or dishonesty.

Material Contracts

Apart from the Transaction Documents to which it is a party, the Issuer has not entered into any
material contracts other than in the ordinary course of its business.

Cost and Expenses

The cost, charges and expenses of and incidental to the Issue, including fees payable to SEC,
FMDQ, The NSE, Clearing Agent, professional parties’ fees, brokerage commission, printing and
distribution expenses will be determined at each issuance. These costs are payable by the Issuer
and deductible from the proceeds of the Issue. This shall be specified in the relevant
Supplementary Prospectus to be issued under this Programme.

Relationship between the Issuer and its Advisers

No relationship other than the professional ones established pursuant to this Programme exists
between the Issuer and any of its advisers than in the ordinary course of its business.

Mergers or Takeovers

As at the date of this Shelf Prospectus, the Directors were not aware of a merger or takeover offer
by third parties in respect of the Bank’'s shares during the preceding financial year or current
financial year.

Consents

The under listed parties have given and not withdrawn their written consents to the issue of this
Prospectus with their names and reports (where applicable) included in the form and context in
which they appear:

Directors of the Issuer
Sunday Oroloke
Wuraola Ayodeji
Hanson Olumide

Director
Director
Company Secretary

Directors of the Sponsor

Phillips Oduoza

Chairman

Anyalechi Duroha

Managing Director/CEO

Shams Butt

Non-Executive Director

Malachy Nwaiwu

Non-Executive Director

Emmanuel liewere

Independent Director

Bolanle Onagoruwa

Independent Director

Habiba Ammah Wakil

Independent Director

Ayodeji Adigun

Executive Director

Nnadozie Ohgiji

Company Secretary

Professional Parties to the Programme
United Capital Plc

Lead Issuing House

Stanbic IBTC Capital Limited

Joint Issuing House

Union Capital Markets Limited

Joint Issuing House

Stanbic IBTC Trustees Limited

Bond Trustee

Leadway Capital & Trusts Limited

Share Trustee
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Consolex Legal Practitioners Solicitors to the Issuer
G. Elias & Co. Solicitors to the Issue
PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditors

Ernst & Young Reporting Accountant
Greenwich Registrars and Data Solution Limited  Registrars

United Bank for Africa Plc Receiving Bank

Documents Available for Inspection

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the offices of the Issuing Houses during
normal business hours on any weekday (except public holidays), during the validity period of the
Programme:

Vi.

Vii.
viii.

The Certificate of Incorporation of the Bank, duly certified by the Group Company
Secretary;

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Bank, duly certified by the CAC;

A copy of the resolution dated 22NP day of November 2019 passed at the meeting of the
Board of Directors, recommending the Programme for the consideration of the
shareholders; signed by a Director and the Company Secretary;

The Bank's Audited Accounts for the eight-month period ended December 31, 2017, and
the year ended December 31, 2018 prepared in accordance with IFRS;

The Reporting Accountant’s Report on the Audited Accounts of the Bank;

The schedule of the Claims and Litigation referred to above and the Solicitors’ opinion
thereon;

The material contracts referred to on page 51 of this Prospectus;

The written consents referred to on page 146 of this Prospectus;

The letter from Solicitors on claims and litigations; and

The lefter dated December 10, 2019 conveying the CBN “No Objection” fo the
establishment of the Programme
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Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be prepared by the Issuer for each Series of Bonds
issued under the Programme:

NOVAMBL Investments SPV PLC

RC:1642580
(A SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE INCORPORATED AS A PUBLIC LIMITED LIABILITY IN THE FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF NIGERIA)

OFFER FOR SUBSCRIPTION OF
[]
Series [o]: [e]-Year [¢]%
Fixed Rate Notes Due [e]
Under a N50,000,000,000 Bond Issuance Programme
Issue Price: [e] per unit

Payable in full on Application

Application List Opens: [e] Application List Closes: [e]

This Pricing Supplement is prepared for the purpose of Rule 279(3) of the Rules and Regulation of the Securities & Exchange Commission (the
"Commission” or SEC) in connection with the &#50,000,000,000.00 Bond Issuance Programme established by NOVAMBL Investments SPV Plc
(the “Issuer”). This Pricing Supplement is supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with, the Shelf Prospectus dated [e]Jand any
other supplements to the Shelf Prospectus to be issued by the Issuer. Terms defined in the Shelf Prospectus have the same meaning when
used in this Pricing Supplement.

To the extent that there is any conflict or inconsistency between the contents of this Pricing Supplement and the Shelf Prospectus, the
provisions of this Pricing Supplement shall prevail. This Pricing Supplement may be used to offer and sell the Bonds only if accompanied by
the Shelf Prospectus. Copies of the Shelf Prospectus can be obtained from any of the Issuing Houses.

The registration of the Shelf Prospectus and this Pricing Supplement shall not be taken to indicate that the Commission endorses or
recommends the Securities or assumes responsibility for the correctness of any statements made or opinions or reports expressed in the Shelf
Prospectus or this Pricing Supplement. No Securities will be allotted or issued on the basis of the Shelf Prospectus read together with this
Pricing Supplement later than three (3) years after the date of the issue of the Shelf Prospectus.

This Pricing Supplement contains particulars in compliance with the requirements of the Commission for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Securities being issued hereunder (the “Series [#] Bonds” or “Bonds”). Application has been made to the FMDQ/Governing
Council of The NSE for the admission of the Bonds to the Daily Official List of the Exchange. The Bonds now being issued will upon admission
to the Daily Official List qualify as a security in which Trustees may invest under the Trustee Investments Act (Cap T22) Laws of the Federation
of Nigeria, 2004.

The Issuer accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Pricing Supplement. The Issuer declares that having
taken reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Pricing Supplement is, to the best of its knowledge,
in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information and that, save as disclosed herein,
no other significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the information included in the Shelf Prospectus has arisen or has
been noted, as the case may be, since the publication of the Shelf Prospectus. Further, the material facts contained herein are true and
accurate in all material respects and the Issuer confirms that, having made all reasonable enquiries, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
there are no material facts, the omission of which would make any statement contained herein misleading or untrue.

This Pricing Supplement is dated [e]
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FINAL TERMS OF THE SERIES [¢] BONDS

1. Issuer

2. Description of the Bonds:

3. Series Number:

4.  Aggregate Principal Amount of Bonds:
5.  Issue Price:

6. Denomination(s):

7. Issue Date:

8.  Maturity Date:

9.  Principal Moratorium:

10 Interest Basis:

11. Redempftion/Payment Basis:

12. Status:
13. Security:
14. Listing(s):

15. Method of Distribution:
16. Offer Period

Provisions Relating to Interest (If Any) Payable

17. Fixed Rate Note Provisions

- Interest Rate:

- Coupon Payment Date(s) /Payment
Dates:

- Interest Amount(s):

- Business Day Convention:

- Business Day:

- Ofther terms relating to method of
calculating interest for Fixed Rate
Bonds:

18. Floating Rate Note Provisions
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NOVAMBL Investments SPV Plc

[Following Business Day Convention/
Preceding Business Day Convention/
Modified Business Day]

Modified Business Day

[e]

[e] (if not delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)
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Coupon Payment Date(s):
- Reference Banks:

- Spread (if applicable):

- Party responsible for calculating interest
rafe and interest amouni(s)

- Relevant Time (if applicable):

- Screen Rate Determination:
*  Benchmark:
+ Coupon Determination Dates(s):
* Relevant Screen Page:

- Day Count Fraction
Provisions Relating to Redemption
19. Optional Early Redemption (Call Option):
20. Optional Early Redemption (Put Opftion):
21. Scheduled Redemption/Amortization:
22. Redemption Amount(s):
23. Scheduled Redemption Dates:

24. Final Redemption Amount:
General Provisions Applicable to the Notes

Form of Notes:
25. Form of Dematerialized Notes:
Registrar:

2¢. Trustee(s):

27. Record Date:

28 Other terms or special conditions:
Distribution, Clearing and Settlement Provisions
29. Underwritten/Book-building:

30. If Underwritten, names of Underwriters

31. Clearing System:

General

32. Rating:

33. Taxation:

Actual/Actual: Actual/360

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[e]
[o]
[e]

Dematerialised Notes
[Registered/Certificate/Dematerialized]

[e]

[e]
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34. Governing Law Nigeria

Appendices

[List and Aftach Appendices if

35. Appendices: applicable]

Use of Proceeds

[Insert details of use of proceeds]

Material Adverse Change Statement

Except as disclosed in this document and in the Shelf Prospectus dated [e], there has been no
significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer since [insert date of last
audited accounts or interim accounts (if later)] and no material adverse change in the
financial position or prospects of the Issuer since [insert date of last published annual
accounts].

Responsibility

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement
which, when read together with the Shelf Prospectus referred to above, contains alll
information that is material in the context of the issue of the Bonds.
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